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Chairman’s Statement
FTEWME

On behalf of the board of directors,
the annual report of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the

| am pleased to present

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group recorded an audited consolidated revenue and loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounting
to approximately HK$349.24 million and HK$611.79 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2017, with a
decrease of 16.31% and an increase of 73.23% respectively
compared to last year. We felt extremely sorry and guilty for such
unsatisfactory overall performance of the Group.

The year of 2017 is a critical year for the Group’s strategic
transformation and is also a year witnessing that the Group
encountered major difficulties. Our group business suffered from
the great pressure caused by continued depression of shipbuilding
industry, and we had implemented business diversification and
reconstitution strategy since 2015 to support our shipbuilding
business and to maintain our equipment business in China. We
had successively invested in car-parking business, automotive
electronics business and steel structure business, as well as the
shipbuilding business in developed coastal areas, which further
interpret our idea of serving the country through industrial services.
As the only normally running shipbuilding enterprise listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the time being, we could be seen
as a window that reflects the situation of heavy equipment industry
in Hong Kong capital market. Though we know the hardships in
industrial services, we are determined to work hard for it.
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In 2017, due to the difficulties we went through in capital market,
some of our financing plans have not been carried out as expected,
causing severe adverse impact on businesses of the Group. Even
so, we kept communication with financial institutions, investment
institutions, cooperative partners and other parties and have
obtained their support and assistance in various businesses, which
enabled us to expand our industrial chain of car-parking business
and launch new products in automotive electronics business.
Our newly acquired steel structure business was developed with
a sound momentum and moved smoothly through its running-
in period, and issues left over from the past have been gradually
being addressed. The delayed delivery of vessels occurred in our
shipbuilding business remained the top priority of our works in
the past year, and lack of funds hindered the implementation of
our original plan to deal with the ships left over through leasing.
However, we had made some progress in negotiation with ship-
owners and banks and obtained their understanding, and actively
proceeded to negotiation with other investors to solve with these
unsettled ship problems.

With the efforts from all parties, we are pleased to see that a
preliminary program to realign the shipbuilding business through
cooperating with leading shipbuilding enterprises, improving
existing shipbuilding business and deploying shipbuilding assets
has been established and will be put into operation soon. We
believed that such program will be conducive to reorganization
of our shipbuilding business and will promote full and effective
utilization of wharfs, riverbank of the Yangtze River and other
resources.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEWME

Looking into 2018, though we may confront many pressures and
difficulties, we will continue to revitalize inventory assets, seek for
expansion into new business and close cooperation with financial
institutions, investment institutions and cooperative partners, and
take various methods to raise working capital, with a purpose
for supporting business development. Meanwhile, as Jiangxi
Shipbuilding is near the Yangtze River and its surrounding areas
have abundant limestone resource, the Group will leverage such
advantages and actively look for government support, transform
its wharfs for self-use into public wharfs, and focus on the
development of a new business system covering and centering
shipbuilding, storage and shipping by revitalizing the land, wharfs
and other assets in Jiangzhou Shipbuilding, so as to expand
sources of cash flow of the Group.

In closing, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to
our shareholders, investors and partners for their strong support.
| would also like to express my gratitude to our directors and all
Group employees for their diligence and valuable contributions.
Your support is our Group’s valuable assets and source of power to
move forward.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

China Ocean Industry Group Limited is engaged in the intelligent
car-parking and automotive electronics, shipbuilding, manufacture
and sales of steel structure, trading and finance lease business.

2017 was a crucial year to the business transformation of the
Group. The business expansion from shipbuilding business to
intelligent car-parking, automotive electronics, and steel structure
has brought forth new opportunities and challenges to the resource
integration and business expansion of the Group. Confronted
with sluggish shipbuilding business, the Group continued to
adjust the shipbuilding business and revitalize the shipbuilding
assets. With the support and help of local government, the Group
is about to achieve realized breakthrough in the cooperation
with advantageous enterprises in shipbuilding business, making
initial achievements in the revitalization of shipbuilding assets.
With the great pressure of shipbuilding business, the Group still
needs to make greater endeavor to solve problems left. In terms
of intelligent car-parking business, the Group cooperated with
advantageous enterprises in the industry to build the industrial
chain from equipment manufacture to car park investment
and operation, realizing certain achievements. With regard to
automotive electronics, it strengthens development of new products
in response to intensified market competition. The Group will
transfer the industrial focus to the coastal developed areas through
the steel structure business newly acquired in 2017. Under
complicated market environment, certain progress has been made
in the initial acquisition, forming powerful support for the business
transformation of the Group.

The Group focuses on the substantial industry and devotes
itself to development of heavy equipment industry. Most of its
subordinate enterprises are fund-intensive and technology-
intensive enterprises. Due to the fluctuation of share price, the
Group didn’t complete the contracted financing plans in the capital
market in 2017, causing material adverse impacts on the Group's
business. The Group has formulated reasonable plans, introduced
strategic partners and expanded sources of the fund on the basis
of integration and revitalization of shipbuilding assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRESm RO

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
external revenue of HK$349 million (2016: HK$417 million),
representing a decrease as compared to last year, which was
mainly attributed to reduction of contract price of the vessels under
construction. Shipbuilding business recorded a debit balance
of revenue (net) of approximately HK$79 million (2016: credit
balance of HK$154 million). The negative revenue was attributable
to the reduction of contract price of HK$163 million (2016:Nil)
arising from the delay delivery of vessels. The intelligent car-parking
and automotive electronics business recorded external revenue of
HK$120 million (2016: HK$211 million), which was mainly due
to failure to realize the expected objective of adjustment of sales
strategies of car-parking equipment affected by limitations of local
policies on car park construction and capital. The steel structure
business recorded revenue of HK$281 million (2016: Nil). During
the period under review, the Group recorded gross loss of HK$322
million (2016: HK$30 million), substantially increased as compared
to 2016, mainly due to the operating loss of shipbuilding business
and the reduction of contract price for the delay delivery of vessels.

The Group’s finance cost increased from HK$136 million to
HK$173 million, mainly due to newly increased capital in car park
business and capital brought by newly acquired steel structure
business.

In conclusion, the Group recorded a loss attributable to
shareholders of HK$612 million (2016: loss of HK$353 million)
during the year ended 31 December 2017, increased substantially
as compared to last year. In addition to the increase of the loss
of shipbuilding business and the impairment provision for delayed
delivery of vessels, the rise in finance expenses and other factors
also caused adverse impacts on the performance.

SHIPBUILDING BUSINESS

The shipbuilding business recorded a debit balance of revenue of
HK$79 million (2016: credit balance of HK$154 million) during the
period under review, mainly due to the reduction of contract price
totaling HK$163 million (2016: Nil).

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BHE_Z—+F+_A=+—HIEFE X£H
BSIN AN E349B BB T (ZF—RF 4178
BAxT) BEFRLAMRTE TERENER
MR R E AT B - E M R AF BTSN EE M 25-798 &
BL(ZT—RF1I4BEET) RARABH
TERANBEXNMETIRREREISHS
B (ZT—RF &) BEFELAHETE
BERB NI 1208 B AT (ZF—/RF: 211
BEETL) THRNIZ2RARFERHHER
i ) S B 2 I A 0 R B SR IR AR O BUR PR 1 -
AR E 77 E B4 - (£S5 5K B AR E D TR
AR - MEBEBESRE28IAERET (=%
—NEFE) RNEBEHRE AEEZEE /322
BEBET(ZZE—RF:30B8ET) BEFK
fRIE ETRARNEMETOERALGRER
MERERETE

AEEZREKARIZICABETLTELITZESE
B TERFESERIIERE MU e
RERBZETS T K ) BB P EE AR MV BA SRR 7t

mEmns ASBERBE_ZT—tF+_H
Tt HUEFEEBRREGERCIZEEET
(ZE—RF:BE33FHETL)  BEFHEL
RIEIEAN - BR 7 &M A5 BRI 0 - sHRIE M
EREBEAIN B EA EASEREHER
ERTNEE -

B R

EMEBREBERRRSIIMRER-7TIBEE
T(ZT—ARF 14888  TEZHNAK
SEAEMERERBISEREEL(ZT—X
FE)EMK



Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to continued sluggish international shipping market, the
shipbuilding business constituted great pressure on the Group's
operation. The depressing vessel prices, increasing labor cost,
rising financial and financing cost have increased the loss of
shipbuilding and consumed a great many cash resources of the
Group.

The delay delivery of vessels caused by the change of market
conditions has become the top issue need to be addressed by the
Group. In respect of the 7 vessels of delay delivery in 2016, the
Group has reached an agreement and delivered one vessel to ship-
owner, while the remaining six vessels are still under delay delivery.
The Group established a negotiating team to negotiate with ship
owner and its financing institutions on the delivery conditions or the
conditions of terminating the delivery. Meanwhile, the Group has
been exploring other solutions to strive for benefits of the Group.

To fundamentally solve the problem in heavy losses and limited
development of the shipbuilding business, the Group had
cooperated with major state-owned enterprises to establish
major shipbuilding plant in Nantong. With the advantageous
geographical location of Nantong and rich resources of the state-
owned enterprise, the Group integrated its shipbuilding business.
Meanwhile, it established a dedicated team to identify domestic
advantageous shipbuilding enterprises, aiming to integrate the
shipbuilding business of the key shipbuilding base of the Group,
Jiangxi Shipbuilding, consolidate and deploy shipbuilding assets
by class including land, factories and wharfs, adjust production
layout, by transferring surplus fix asset to assist the manufacturing
of parking equipment and special equipment, and upgrading the
Yangtze River Wharf to a public wharf for logistics purpose, and to
expand sources of cash of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRESm RO

INTELLIGENT CAR-PARKING AND
AUTOMOTIVE ELECTRONICS BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the intelligent car-parking
and automotive electronics business recorded a external revenue
of HK$120 million (2016: HK$211 million) with a decrease of 43%
as compared to last year. As the focus of the car parking business
has been shifted to car parking investment and operation, the
Group adjusted the sales strategy for car parking equipment which
stimulates the equipment sales through reform of car parking
in residential communities and investment, realizing certain
achievements. However, the commencement and sales of several
projects were affected due to the slow progress caused by sluggish
local policies on car parking construction and insufficient funds. In
the second half of 2017, the Group re-adjusted the sales strategy
of the car-parking equipment by devoting more effort to developing
the car-parking equipment market while continuing to focus on the
transformation of the parking lot of residential community, which
achieved a turnaround in the decline trend in sales of car-parking
equipment.

Confronted with intensified market competition, the sales of original
products has decreased. The Group reinforced the efforts on new
product development, launched new internet-related products, and
realized initial achievements in the product upgrading.

MANUFACTURE AND SALES OF STEEL
STRUCTURE BUSINESS

The Group completed the acquisition of steel structure business
at the beginning of April 2017, and recorded revenue of HK$281
million from April to December 2017 (2016: Nil). The segment
mainly provided relevant steel structure products for large-
scale bridge construction and shipbuilding. Thanks to the rapid
development of high-speed rail projects in China, the Group’s steel
structure bridge business grew fast with a large quantity of orders
and quality customers. It has successfully provided production and
processing service for several large-scale bridge projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to the difficulties facing the shipbuilding industry, the business
of ship equipment and ocean engineering related equipment
experienced a contraction in sales volume, which fell short of
expectation and adversely affected the performance. The Group
is currently seeking cooperation with other shipping companies
in Jiangsu Province, with a view to re-expand the manufacturing
business of ship and ocean engineering related equipment.

TRADING BUSINESS

During the year under review, the trading business recorded
external revenue of HK$26 million (2016: HK$51 million). It
conducted trading business in Hong Kong to provide new business
support and trade financing channels for the Group, which was the
Group’s strategy. New attempt will also be considered in the future.

FINANCE LEASE BUSINESS

During the year under review, the financial leasing business with
external parties is still in development stage. The finance lease
company established in Zhoushan with joint contribution from the
Group and the government investment platform company had a
stable operation.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

The Shipbuilding Business and Going Concern

As disclosed in the Auditor's report on page 66 of this annual
report, the Auditor's Disclaimer of Opinion mainly concerns the
shipbuilding business in particular issues surrounding the Six
Vessels which have not been delivered to the Two Customers
according to the schedule as set out in the respective shipbuilding
contracts and the going concern of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRESm RO

According to Baltic Dry Index, a general shipping market
bellwether, the international shipping industry in 2016 has the
worst performance ever. The market revealed a downward slopping
trend since 2008 and put pressure on the market price. Therefore,
ship owners are now having business difficulties and may have
the risk of bankruptcy. In the negotiation with the Two Customers,
the Company understands the shipping market situation caused
substantial difficulties to the Two Customers. In light of this, the
Company has been negotiated with the Two Customers in order to
reach an agreement of the prices of the vessels. Under the premise
that the negotiations are in the best interest of the Company, the
Board is trying its best to reach a reasonable price with the Two
customers, and ensure that the terms and conditions are fair and
reasonable.

In order to deal with the issues surrounding the Six Vessels,
the Board has established a dedicated task force to proactively
negotiate with the Two Customers, banks and potential customers
in order to reach agreements among the relevant parties including
but not limited to the delivery date and the price of the Six Vessels.
It is expected that the solution of the Six Vessels can be reached
in 2018. The Company will make further announcement(s) as
and when appropriate pursuant to the Listing Rules if there is any
updated situation.

One of the Two Customers expressed their little desire to accept
delivery of four of the Six Vessels (the “Four Vessels”) according
to the terms of the shipbuilding contracts. In view of the slow
negotiation progress with this customer concerning the new
contract prices, the Group has already started discussion with this
customer’s finance bank regarding the repayment schedule of the
progress payment and penalty interest while the Group has also
kept negotiating with banks in the PRC for possible financing. On
the other hand, a new potential customer shows his desire to take
over the remaining two of the Six Vessels and willing to continue
with the construction.

On the other hand, the Group has also commenced negotiation
with another two shipbuilding companies (including a PRC
shipbuilding company and a ship trading company), regarding the
sale and purchase of the Four Vessels in the event the cancellation
of shipbuilding contracts comes to effect. The parties are now
negotiating on the technical details, and if any agreement could be
reached, it is expected that the Group will be able to deliver one of
the Four Vessels within this year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Reference is made to the voluntary announcement of the Company
dated 26 March 2018, the Company has entered into a strategic
co-operation intention agreement with a Singapore listed company
(the “Singapore Listco”), the Company and the Singapore Listco
agreed to form a joint-venture company (the “JV”) to manage the
shipbuilding business of Jiangxi Shipbuilding. The JV will act as
the responsible company to manage four of the Six Vessels, and
reassess the terms of contracts of the other two vessels.

However, if no agreement can be reached and if the Group is
required to return all of the progress payment (approximately
HK$824.5 million) received from the Two Customers regarding the
Six Vessels, the Group may also incur interests expenses according
to the calculation as set out in the relevant shipbuilding contracts.
As at the date hereof, the exact amount of the interest expenses
could not be ascertained. On the other hand, the accumulated
revenue recognised related to the Six Vessels of HK$783,572,000
should be reversed, and the Six Vessels would be recognised as
inventories of the Company based on its net realizable value and
the cost of sales should be reversed as the same amount.

The Group incurred a loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$611,790,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$2,136,381,000
and the Group had net liabilities of approximately
HK$896,130,000. In addition to the abovementioned situation
of the shipbuilding business of the Group, the Auditor expressed
that these conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty
which may cost significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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The Board and the Audit Committee’s View and
the Plan to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Board has provided all necessary information to the Auditor
for their audit to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The Audit Committee from time
to time closely communicate with the Board and, the Auditor on
the updated business situation and financial performance of the
Group, in particular, the issues raised by the Auditor. At the pre-
audit meetings, the Auditor has drawn the Audit Committee’s
attention to the disclaimer of opinions in the previous financial year
and circumstances under which the same disclaimer of opinions
would be issued in respect of the current financial year. As such
the Audit Committee is fully aware of the repeated disclaimer of
opinions issued by the Auditor and the reasons for such disclaimer
of opinions.

Nevertheless, the Audit Committee believes that the root cause
for the repeated disclaimer of opinions is the prolonged global
shipping market slow-down which resulted in the continued
deteriorating operational situation of Group’s shipbuilding business,
the Company is no exception to all other ship builders in the PRC
and abroad which have suffered from the weak market.

Over the years, the Audit Committee has maintained close
communication with the management and the Auditor on the
issues involving the Seven Vessels such as the delivery status,
updated terms and conditions on the delivery, financial treatment
of undelivered vessels according to applicable accounting
standards, and consequently, the impact on the Group’s
financial position. In particular, deliberations were focused on the
uncertainty and difficulty faced by the shipbuilding business as
well as possibilities of debt financing plans. Notwithstanding this,
the Audit Committee acknowledged the business development of
the intelligent car parking and automotive device business and the
steel structure engineering and installation business which have
broadened the revenue stream of the Group and together with
the Company’s continued efforts in transforming its business, the
Board, including the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group
could continue as a going concern.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board, including the Audit Committee, has critically reviewed
the major judgmental areas, inter alias, the shipbuilding business
and cash flow forecast assumptions of the Group and understand
the basis of the opinion put forward by the Auditor. The Audit
Committee and Auditor held also various candid and productive
discussions on the accounting treatment for areas that fair
judgment were needed, in particular the disclaimer of opinions. No
disagreement had been raised among the members of the Board
including the Audit Committee, and the Audit Committee members
have fully agreed with the Auditors’ views and relevant accounting
treatment about the annual disclosure.

In addition to tackling the issues surrounding the Six Vessels, the
Board also spares no effort in enhancing the Group’s working
capital. The Board has adopted and considered different measures
with different dimensions to further improve its cash flow, e.g.
(i) diversifying its revenue stream of the Group by introducing
more segments (finance leasing business was introduced in
2014,
was introduced in 2015, and steel structure engineering and

intelligent car parking and automotive device business

installation was introduced in 2017); (ii) streamlining its operation
by cutting staff to around 600 employees as at 31 December
2017 compared to around 1,200 employees as at 31 December
2015 which has successfully reduced staff costs to approximately
HK$60,655,000 (2015: approximately HK$95,930,000); (iii)
revitalising shipbuilding assets of Jiangxi Shipbuilding by using its
spare resources for production, storage and transportation; and (iv)
negotiating with banks to delay the repayment of debt or to apply
for additional instalment to decrease the Group’s financial burden.
After the preliminary discussion with the Auditor, the Board,
including the Audit Committee, believe that the above measures,
if materialised, will not only bring to the Group a significant
improvement on the financial performance but also help to address
the Disclaimer of Opinions of the Auditor.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and cash
(including pledged bank deposits) of approximately HK$15.52
million (31 December 2016: HK$101.79 million) of which
HK$0.25 million (31 December 2016: Nil) was pledged; short-
term borrowings of HK$1,932.32 million (31 December 2016:
HK$1,049.15 million); long-term borrowings of HK$581.86 million
(31 December 2016: HK$1,039.05 million); convertible bonds
payable amounted to approximately HK$148.97 million (31
December 2016: HK$348.88 million) represented the fair value of
principal amount of HK$189 million (31 December 2016: HK$352
million). The gearing ratio defined as non-current liabilities and
short term borrowing divided by total shareholders’ equity was
(3.10) at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: (3.75)).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING FROM ISSUE OF SHARES/
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 6 December 2016, the Company and Macquarie Bank Limited
(“Macquarie”) entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to
which Macquarie has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, convertible notes
in aggregate principal amount of up to HK$400 million, which is
to be issued in 4 tranches with each trance in principal amount of
HK$100 million and with interest rate at 2% per annum (“2018
Convertible Notes”). On 15 December 2016, the Company issued
the first tranche in principle amount of HK$100 million. On the
same day, Macquarie exercised the conversion rights attached to
the 2016 Convertible Notes and converted principal amount of
HK$1 million into 4,775,000 conversion shares. During the year
of 2017, Macquarie continued to convert 163,580,000 conversion
shares in aggregate principal amount of HK$32 million at average
conversion price of HK$0.1956, representing an average discount
of 0.30% to the closing market price as quoted on the Stock
Exchange immediately preceding day the shares were issued.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$30 million from issue of
conversion shares were used by the Company for general working
capital purpose. Under Macquarie's early redemption notice on
26 July 2017, the outstanding 2018 Convertible Notes in principle
amount of HK$67 million was redeemed by the Company on
23 August 2017. As at the date of this announcement, the first
tranche of 2018 Convertible Notes was all redeemed and under
the subscription agreement, the remaining 3 tranches in aggregate
principle amount of HK$300 million is yet to be issued by the
Company.
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On 10 August 2017, the Company and Pacific Ocean Marine
Limited (“Pacific Ocean”) entered into a subscription agreement
(amended and supplemented on 10 October 2017) pursuant
to which Pacific Ocean has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, the
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$189
million. The convertible bonds have an initial conversion price
of HK$0.07 per share, representing a discount of approximately
2.78% to the closing price of HK$0.072 per share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 10 August 2017, and bear interest of
10% per annum. Upon full conversion of the convertible notes,
a total of 2,700,000,000 shares would be issued, representing
approximately 16.53% of the total enlarged number of issued
shares by the allotment and issue of conversion shares. On 10
November 2017, the subscription agreement was completed and
convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$189 million were
issued to Pacific Ocean. As the date of this announcement, no
convertible shares were issued under the subscription agreement
and among the net proceeds of HK$189 million, HK$170 million
was used for repayment of debts and HK$19 million was used for
general working capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The shareholders’ dilution impact in the event of the allotment and

issue of Conversion Shares upon full conversion of the Convertible

BIEES R R DM
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Bonds at the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.070 per Share are as el Z JUNNE
follows:
Immediately after full conversion
Shareholder RE At the 31 December 2017 of the Convertible Bonds (Note 2)
RZE—tFE+=A=+-H BETERES 2 HERE (72
No. of Approximate No. of Approximate
Shares percentage Shares percentage
RiHEE BOBHL ] BOBEDL
Mr. Li Ming THEE 1,137,577,954 8.34% 1,137,577,954 6.96%
Lead Dragon Limited (Note 1) Lead Dragon Limited
(Hiat1) 505,845,000 3.71% 505,845,000 3.10%
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong RETREE 227,600,000 1.67% 227,600,000 1.39%
The Subscriber REA 0 0% 2,700,000,000 16.53%
Public Shareholders N 11,765,815,886 86.28% 11,765,815,886 72.02%
Total: FCEE 13,636,838 840 100.00% 16,336,838,840 100.00%
Notes: BifaE -
1. Lead Dragon Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ming, the chairman and an 1. Lead Dragon Limited i = 3T B A AL 2 4

executive Director.

The shareholding structure set out in this column is shown for illustration
purposes only. The Conversion Rights shall only be exercisable so long as not
less than 25% of the then total number of issued Shares as enlarged by the
issue of the Conversion Shares are being held in public hands and will not
result in the relevant Bondholder, its associates and parties acting in concert
with it will, in aggregate, control or be interested in 30% or more of the voting
rights of the Company unless: (i) a whitewash waiver is obtained in accordance
with the requirements of the Takeovers Code; or (ii) a general offer is made in
accordance with the requirements of the Takeovers Code.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, HK$0.25 million (31 December
2016: Nil) of deposits, HK$327.91 million (31 December 2016:
HK$148.84 million) of property, plant and equipment, HK$221.80
million (31 December 2016: HK$129.87 million) of prepaid
lease payments and HK$8.90 million (31 December 2016: Nil)
of inventories were pledged to banks or other parties to secure
borrowings, bills payable and facilities granted to the Group. The
pledge on the bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bills payables and borrowings.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company pledged the entire
equity interest of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Jiangxi Jiangzhou Union Shipbuilding Ltd., to secure an bank
borrowing amounting to RMB107.41 million (31 December 2016:
RMB108.02 million).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND ANY RELATED
HEDGES

The income and expenditure of the Group were denominated
in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk profile as the Group could not find a suitable
instrument to manage this exposure. The Board will continue to

consider the appropriate hedging measures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NEW BUSINESS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 11 April 2017 (the “Completion Date”), the completion of
acquisition of the entire registered capital of Nantong Huakai Heavy
Industry Limited (FIiBESLE T BR A 7], “Huakai Heavy”) took
place and Huakai Heavy became wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Huakai Heavy is principally engaged in manufacturing and selling
steel structures and fittings for ship, marine equipment, mining
equipment, ro-ro equipment, being classified as manufacture and
sales of steel structure business or steel structure engineering and
installation business. The Board believed the acquisition provides
a valuable opportunity to broaden its source of revenue as well
as to diversify products mix to enhance competitiveness in the
heavy industry market. Pursuant to the acquisition agreement
dated 16 November 2016 (as amended and supplemented by
the supplemental agreement dated 18 January 2017) (collectively
the “Acquisition Agreement”) in respect of the acquisition of
Huakai Heavy, the vendors have irrevocably and unconditionally
guaranteed to the Group that the audited net profit after taxation
arising from ordinary course of business (“Net Profit”) of Huakai
Heavy and its subsidiaries (“Huakai Heavy Group”) shall be no
less than RMB15 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
(“2016 Guaranteed Profit”) and RMB50 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 (“2017 Guaranteed Profit”).
audited consolidated financial results of Huakai Heavy Group
for the two years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, Huakai
Group has fulfilled 2016 Guaranteed Profit and failed to achieve
2017 Guaranteed Profit. Accordingly, no adjustment for the
second consideration (as detailed in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements) payable by the Group to the vendors were

Based on the

required and the final consideration (as detailed in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements) payable by the Group to the
vendors were reduced and adjusted to RMB88.13 million pursuant
to the Acquisition Agreement.
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In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”)
36, an impairment loss shall be recognised for the CGU if the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU") is less
than the carrying amount of the CGU. The impairment loss on
goodwill of the Huakai Heavy Group of approximately HK$40.77
million has been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2017 due to the difficulties facing the shipbuilding industry,
the business of ship equipment and ocean engineering related
equipment experienced a contraction in sales volume, which fell
short of expectation and adversely affected the performance the
Huakai Heavy Group.

The recoverable amount was determined based on the value
in use (“VIU") calculation by using the discounted cash flow
valuation method. Its underlying inputs are future cash flows,
associated discount rate and growth rate assumptions, which are
all estimations based on the management’s expectation of future
business performance and prospects of the Huakai Heavy Group.

The Company has engaged Greater China Appraisal Limited as the
valuer to perform the valuation on the CGU of the Huakai Heavy
Group for the Completion Date and 31 December 2017.

There were no material changes in the methodology and sources
of market data applied in the valuation for Completion Date and 31
December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there was no new business, material

acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LITIGATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, details of the pending litigations of the
Group are set out as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In August 2017, an insurance company field its writ to
Wuhan Marine Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for
the failure to make payment of shipbuilding insurance
premium. At the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was judged and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of approximately
RMB1,241,000 in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade
and other payables” in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

In June 2016, a contractor filed its writ to Jiangxi
Province Nanchang County People’s Court against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding for the failure to make payment of contracting
services. At the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was judged and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of approximately
“Trade
in the consolidated statement of

RMB313,000 in aggregate, were recognised under
and other payables”
financial position.

In August 2016, a supplier filed its writ to Gaoyou City
People’s Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failure
to make payment of the sale of cable. At the end of
the reporting period, the litigation was judged and the
outstanding payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately RMB392,000
in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade and other

payables” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In September 2015, a contractor filed its writ to Wuhan
Marine Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failure to
make payment of provided vessel decoration services. At the
end of the reporting period, the litigation was judged and
the outstanding payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately RMB4,636,000
in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade and other

payables” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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(v) In November 2015, a supplier filed its writ to Jiujiang
Arbitration Commission against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the
failure to make payment of provided gas services. At the
end of the reporting period, the litigation was judged and
the outstanding payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately RMB3,525,000
in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(vi) In November 2015, a contractor filed its writ to Shanghai
Jinshan District People’s Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding
for the failure to make payment of provided vessel decoration
services. At the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was judged and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of approximately
RMB763,000 in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade
and other payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

(vii) In December 2014, a contractor filed its writ to Wuhan
Marine Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failure to
make payment of provided vessel decoration services. At the
end of the reporting period, the litigation was judged and
the outstanding payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately RMB4,101,000
in aggregate, were recognised under “Trade and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Save as disclosed above, the members of the Group has no other
material litigation as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had around 600 employees as at 31 December 2017.
It has been the Group’s policy to ensure that the pay levels of its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system. The
Group has participated in a mandatory provident fund scheme for
its employees in Hong Kong. Shares options may also be granted to
eligible persons of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group’s employees in Hong Kong participate in a mandatory

provident fund scheme. Particulars of this retirement scheme are

set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has not paid the social
security fund for and on behalf of its employees which
expose the Group to the risk of being imposed the penalty
by the relevant government authority. The social security
fund accrued up to 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$49,002,000 (equivalent to RMB40,835,000) in
aggregate, were recorded as “Trade and other payables”
in the consolidated statement of financial position (2016:
HK$40,206,000 (equivalent to RMB36,221,000)).

A repayment agreement was signed between Jiangxi
Shipbuilding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the relevant government authority on 26 January 2015 in
respect of the settlement of the unpaid social security fund.
Per the agreement, all outstanding amounts should be repaid
before December 2019. The Directors considered that if the
Group could settle the unpaid social security fund according
to the repayment agreement, no penalty would be imposed
by the relevant government authority.

BIEES MR DM
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BIEES MR DM

(b)

(c)

(d)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has not paid the housing
provident fund contributions for and on behalf of its
employees which expose the Group to the risk of being
imposed the penalty by the relevant government authority.
The housing provident fund contributions accrued up
to 31 December 2017 of approximately HK$8,724,000
(equivalent to RMB7,270,000) in aggregate, were recorded
as “Trade and other payables” in the consolidated statement
of financial position (2016:HK$5,483,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,940,000)).

The Directors are of the opinion that the possibility to the risk
of being imposed the penalty by the relevant government
authority is remote.

The Company had recognised the provision in relation to
the litigations of approximately RMB14,971,000 (2016:
RMB13,812,000) under “Trade and other payables” in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017. The management are of the opinion that it
is not probable that these claims would result in an out flow
of economic benefits exceeding the provisions made by the
Group.

On 3 December 2015, Merge Limited (“Merge”) and other
shareholders of Zhejiang Ocean Leasing Company Limited
(“Zhejiang Ocean”) as counter guarantors (collectively
referred to the “Counter Guarantor”) entered into the counter
guarantee agreement with Zhoushan Marine Comprehensive
Development and Investment Co., Ltd (#F1L/&F4R 4 B3
HEBRAT) (the “Guarantor”), pursuant to which the
Counter Guarantors shall, in proportion to their respective
shareholding in Zhejiang Ocean and upon demand of the
Guarantor, indemnify the Guarantor for all liabilities and
expenses which may be incurred by the Guarantor under any
guarantee given or to be given by the Guarantor in favour of
Zhejiang Ocean during the period from 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2020 in respect of loan agreements and asset
securitization agreements entered into by Zhejiang Ocean,
up to an aggregate amount of RMB900,000,000, together
with any interests, penalty, compensation and related fees
and expenses which may be payable by the Guarantor under
Zhejiang Ocean. Accordingly, the maximum amount which
Merge shall indemnify the Guarantor is 20% of the aforesaid
aggregate amount, being RMB180,000,000.
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(e)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Huakai Heavy had provided corporate guarantees (the
“Corporate Guarantee”) to two vessel agency companies
(the “Vessel Agency Companies”) in favour of Huatai Heavy
Industry (Nantong) Company Limited (“Huatai Heavy
Industry”), an independent third party. Due to the failure
of two ship owners to fulfill its payment obligation under
the relevant shipbuilding contracts, Huatai Heavy Industry
had cancelled the relevant export and import cooperation
agreements with the Vessel Agency Companies. Pursuant to
the terms of the export and import co-operation agreements
and the civil mediation agreements, Huatai Heavy Industry
was liable to refund the prepaid amount received from the
Vessel Agency Companies (the “Prepaid Amounts”).

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregated outstanding
balances of the Prepaid Amounts are RMB76,446,000.

The vendors undertake to use the consideration payable to
indemnify Huakai Heavy for all losses and liabilities incurred
by Huakai Heavy under the Corporate Guarantee.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are of the opinion that the

Group has no other material contingent liabilities at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

BARELE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Contracted for but not provided in the BRI AEH KRR
consolidated financial statement: GRE B TSR B
Unpaid registered capital for the associates B &N E 2 REVEME R 103,260 128,787
Unpaid registered capital for the subsidiaries WE Al 2 RECEMM & A 636,240 419,802
Unpaid registered capital for a joint venture —EeEhEL
RAECEME R 120,000 116,239
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of BRAWEDE BER
property, plant and equipment [l 2 B A ASE 29,498 78,977
888,998 743,805

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event after the reporting period.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will strive to consolidate and unleash
the capability of its shipbuilding assets to capture the opportunities
brought by the intelligent manufacturing upgrades in the PRC.
Meanwhile, the Group will further expand its industrial chain in
the intelligent car parking, automotive devices and mechanical
processing industries by combining its industrial and financial
expertise, so as to reinforce the Group’s industrial integration.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the shipbuilding business, the Group will focus on revitalising
the shipbuilding assets of Jiangxi Shipbuilding by strengthening
the scope and intensity of cooperation with leading enterprises.
For late delivery of the vessels, the Group will strive to work out
reasonable solutions as soon as possible to reduce the burden on
shipyards. Backed by the support from the government, the Group
will expand its cooperation with the leading shipbuilding companies
based on established intentions, streamline the existing operation
system for its shipbuilding business, improve production efficiency
and reduce procurement and financial costs in order to realise
turnaround from loss in the shipbuilding business of the Group.
Meanwhile, in view of the abundant limestone resources around
Jiangxi Shipbuilding, we will endeavour to fully utilise the excess
assets such as wharfs and lands of the shipbuilding business for
building material storage and logistics business so as to broaden
our sources of cash inflows.

The Group will enhance its investment on intelligent car-parking
and automotive electronics equipment and cooperate with
cooperative partners to provide car park equipment design &
manufacturing, car parks investment, car parks operation and
management and car owner value-added services on the market
via Internet channels.

Upon completion of the acquisition of Huakai Heavy, the Group
expanded its business scope, customer base and source of
revenue, and further dispersed relevant risks in the shipbuilding
business. The Group will establish its production base in the
coastal areas, and expand its business in terms of steel structure
bridge, ship spare parts and ocean engineering. Based on the
technology and excellent management team of Huakai Heavy and
by leveraging the riverbank of the Yangtze River, It will also expand
its business of building materials in Jiangxi Province based on the
regional advantage of Huakai Heavy.
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Meanwhile, the rise of the civil-military industry in the PRC has
provided the Group with potential to expand market by leveraging
the strength of Jiangxi Shipbuilding on manufacturing special
equipment. The Group will also identify opportunities to introduce
technologies to manufacture relevant equipment and expand the
new source of revenue of the Group.

In general, the Group will capture the development opportunities
and continue to operate under the strategy of diversity to effectively
consolidate existing resources and expand business basis, and
maximize the long term interests of Shareholders.
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Report on Corporate Governance

The Group has recognized the importance of transparency and
accountability, and the Board believes that shareholders can be
benefited from good corporate governance. The Company aims
to achieve good standard of corporate governance. The Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”),
throughout the year except the following deviations.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders; while code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting,
and should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.
Mr. Li Ming (the chairman of the Board) and the three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Hu Bai He (who is also the
chairman of the audit committeee), Ms. Xiang Si Ying and Ms.
Xiang Ying (who is also the chairman of the remuneration and
nomination committee) were unable to attend the annual general
meeting and the special general meeting of the Company held
on 29 June 2017 and 14 March 2017 respectively due to their
other business commitments. An executive Director chaired the
meetings whereas other attended Board members were already of
sufficient calibre and number for answering questions raised by the
Shareholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company's long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management and to evaluate the performance of the Group.
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Report on Corporate Governance

EXEBRS

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company has held 11 board meetings in total. Mr. Zhang Shi
Hong, who is also the CEO, attended both Annual Shareholder

Meeting and Special Shareholder Meeting held during the year.

The individual attendance of each Director is set out below:

EREEFENEHEENTRAEEZ
AR ERABRE - BE-_T—LF
=+ —HIEFE ARRHBTIIRES
o REREE (FTHAER) RFRS HRER
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10 | EE 4

B o mE}

Number of Meetings attended during
the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tFT-A=1T—HILFEZ

23 FE
Board Meetings 2017 AGM SGM
ZE—tF

Name ez Exeea BRFERBEFRE BEEFRIAE
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Li Ming (Chairman) THAEE (FE) 11/11 01 01
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong RIERE (TTHAEE)

(Chief Executive Officer) 11/11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wang San Long (resigned on ToREAEE (KT —tF

21 November 2017) T—HZ+—B#&T) 9/9 0/1 01
Mr. Zhang Weibing (appointed on REEEE(RZT—F

21 November 2017) T—HZ+—BEZMT) 1/1
Mr. Liu Jin R E 11/11 0/1 0/1
Non-executive director FHTES:
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BZERTE (ZEEE)

(Honorary Chairman) 11/11 171 0/1
Independent non-executive directors: B FHITESE:
Mr. Hu Bai He ikisk e 11/11 0/1 0/1
Ms. Xiang Si Ying BRERLT 11/11 01 01
Ms. Xiang Ying BEEE 11/11 01 01
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Report on Corporate Governance

When the Board considers any material transaction in which a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest, a
board meeting is held and Independent Non-executive Directors
who have no material interest in the transaction will be present
at such board meeting. At the meeting, the Director who has an
interest in the transaction is required to abstain from voting.

Every Director shall ensure that he/she can contribute sufficient
time and effort to the corporate affairs of the Company once he/she
accepts the appointment.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Board appointed Mr. Li Ming as the Chairman, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board
to achieve its primary responsibilities. With the support of the
executive directors, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and that
all directors receive adequate and reliable information on a timely
manner. The Chairman also encourages Directors to be fully
engaged in the Board’s affair and make contribution in performing
the Board's functions. The board appointed Mr. Zhang Shi Hong as
Chief Executive Officer, who is vested with executive responsibilities
over the business directions and operational decisions of the
management and performance of the Group.
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EXELCRS

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises four executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors as at
the date of this report. The independent non-executive directors
constitute over one-third of the Board. In addition, one of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.
The Directors are considered to have a balance of knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Group. The independent non-executive directors also serve
the important function of ensuring and monitoring the basis of an
effective corporate governance framework. The Board considers
that each independent non-executive director is independent
in character and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independent criteria as required by the Listing Rules.

DIVERSIFICATION OF THE BOARD

In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors and measurable criteria, such as age, education
background, industry experience, geographical location and
duration of service. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
composition of the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and
concluded that the composition of the Board is in compliance with
the diversification requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Report on Corporate Governance

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirement of the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Board confirmed that the Company has received written
confirmation from each of all three independent non-executive
directors of their independence and considers them to be
independent throughout the year.

Under Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an independent
non-executive Director serves more than 9 years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders. As such, although each of Ms.
Xiang Si Ying and Mr. Hu Bai He will be serving as an independent
non-executive Director for more than nine years at the coming
annual general meeting in 2018, the Board considers that each of
Ms. Xiang Si Ying and Mr. Hu Bai He is a person of integrity and
independent in judgement and character. They are independent
of management and free from any business or other relationships
or circumstances which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. The Board considers that each
of Ms. Xiang Si Ying and Mr. Hu Bai He meets the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and is of the
view that their independence is not affected by their long service
with the Company.

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors is appointed for
an initial term of not more than two years commencing from his/
her date of appointment and is renewable successively for a term
of two years until termination. He/She is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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EXELCRS

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Based on specific enquiry of all the
Directors of the Company, the Directors have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2017.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure that
there are fair and transparent procedures for the appointment, re-
election and removal of directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee comprises the Chairman of the Board and three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Li Ming, Mr. Hu
Bai He, Ms. Xiang Si Ying and Ms. Xiang Ying. The Chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Ms. Xiang Ying. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are consistent with the terms set
out in the Code. The nomination of directors should take into
consideration of the nominee’s qualification, experience, ability and
potential contributions to the Company.

Two meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2017. All members attended the meetings. The members of the
Nomination Committee reviewed the details of proposed directors’
and made recommendation to the Board for the appointment of
directors during the year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee to ensure
that there are formal and transparent procedures for setting
up policies on the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were consistent with the terms set out in the Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Hu Bai He, Ms. Xiang Si Ying and
Ms. Xiang Ying and one executive director, namely Mr. Zhang Shi
Hong. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Xiang
Ying.

Two meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2017. All members attended the meetings. They made
recommendation to the Board regarding the Company's
remuneration policy and the remuneration package of all directors
(excluding his own remunerations) of the Company. No Director
was involved in deciding his own remuneration during the year
under review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which was re-adopted on 31 March 2016 in light of the
amendment of Listing Rules, is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor; (b) approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; and (c) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control procedures.
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EXELCRS

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive BEZEZEEH -RBUIENTESMER  MEZ
directors, and the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Hu Bai RS EEMAMRMLEREEESHMERK
He, possesses a professional accountancy qualification and has Btk BEBTEREEEKR -
substantial experience in accounting and financial matters.
Four meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ERZEERNEE_T—tF+_A=+T—H
ended 31 December 2017. The individual attendance of each IHFEERTHAGH - EXNE 2 EFEHI N
member is set out below: Ik
Number of
committee
meetings attended
HEZES
Name of member REER BRZXHE
Mr. Hu Bai He itk 4/4
Ms. Xiang Si Ying HREZ LT 4/4
Ms. Xiang Ying mFEL L 4/4
The Group’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2017 ERZESLEBEHAEENEBE-_T—tF <A
and the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017 had “FHIEANBEAZHBREREE-S—+tF
been reviewed by the Audit Committee and recommendation was TZAZT—HALEFEZFR WERESTZIR
provided to the Board for approval. B EE AT -

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the auditors of the
Company received approximately HK$2,297,000 for audit services
and approximately HK$878,000 for other services (including
agreed-upon procedures on interim results and disbursement).
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Report on Corporate Governance

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken constant review of the
policies for corporate governance of the Company, the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. During this year, the Board
performed the duties relating to corporate governance matters such
as appointed external professionals to carry out internal control
review.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors are continually updated on the latest development
and changes in the Listing Rules, the Code and other regulatory
requirements in order to ensure the compliance with the same
by the Directors. Directors are also encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors namely Li Ming,
Zhang Shi Hong, Zhang Weibing, Liu Jin, Chau On Ta Yuen, Hu Bai
He, Xiang Si Ying and Xiang Ying had provided a record of training
they received during the year to the Company. According to the
training records provided by the Directors, the training attended
by them during the reporting period was related to Corporate
Governance, regulatory development and training on other relevant
topics.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other Board decisions. The Directors believed that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable. The management has provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates on internal financial statements so as
to give the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group'’s performance, position and prospects.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

During the year, the group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the board oversees management
in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in the
sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risks associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

° |dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which
enables the Company to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components
of the internal system are shown as follow:

° Control Environment: a set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: a dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

o Control Activities: action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

o Information and Communication: internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2017, no
significant control deficiency was identified.
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Internal Audit

During the year, the audit committee appointed external
professional to conduct an internal audit review of the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
external professional is assigned with the task to perform reviews
on operational, financial and compliance aspects and will alert the
management on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any,
advise on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group. The result of internal
audit reviews and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review and
the Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; (ii) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review made by internal audit function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such
systems, however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff
qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and
the training programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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INSIDER INFORMATION AND
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the group, which
include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are
in possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Confidentiality agreements are in place when the group
enters into significant negotiations.

° The executive directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Tin Shu, the Company Secretary of the Company,
confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during the financial year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders and investors. The Company’s annual general
meeting is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the shareholders. All shareholders of the Company are given
at least 21 days’ notice for the date and venue of such annual
general meeting. Shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings. The Chairman and/or the Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group's businesses at the meetings. The
Company provides information relating to the Company and its
business in its annual and half-year report and also disseminates
such information electronically through its website at “www.irasia.
com/listco/hk/chinaoceanindustry/” and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and
rights, separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each material matters, including the election of individual Directors,
for shareholder to consider and vote. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written
requisition (a) must state the object(s) of the meeting; and (b)
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal
office of the Company for attention of the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders.
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the
requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or
not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting any statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company for attention of the
Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of are solution
or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at the principal
office of the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
BYE-LAWS OF THE COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Ming
Chairman
29 March 2018
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 73 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
on page 77 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the noteholder
converted HK$32,000,000 of the 2018 convertible notes into
shares at average conversion price of HK$0.1956 per share,
resulting the Company to issue 163,580,000 ordinary shares.

As at 31 December 2017, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.05 each, of which 13,636,838,840
shares had been allotted and issued as fully paid or credited as
fully paid.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2017 are
set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company did not have any reserves available for distribution
(2016: Nil).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus and share premium accounts if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the company would

thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 300 of the
annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out under the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement’,
“Five Year Financial Summary”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
Report of the Directors.

Further discussion and analysis matters as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), including are view of the business of the Group, discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position, and an
indication of the outlook of the business of the Group, are set out
under sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report. Those discussions
form part of this Report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ") for the disclosure of information and
corporate governance. The Group also complies with the
requirements of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating
to occupational safety for the interest of employees of the Group.
Important events affecting the Group occurred after 31 December
2017 are mentioned in the section “Events After the Reporting
Period”. As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
report, the Board was unaware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which had a significant impact on the
Company.
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Environmental Policies And Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. It implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying,
promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption
by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliances.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s business to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — “Reduce”, “Recycle” and “Reuse”
and enhance environmental sustainability.

Please refer to the separately published Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules for detailed discussion of the Company’s
environmental policies and performance.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension
of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such
changes.

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. Details of
the principal risks and uncertainties are set out in Notes 5, 6 and 7
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Relationship with Suppliers, Customers,
Employees and Other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its business partners, suppliers, customers,
employees and other stakeholders to meet the Group’s immediate
and long-term goals.

Accordingly, the Group’s senior management have kept good
communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with the stakeholders when appropriate. The Group
also creates a framework for motivating staff and a formal
communication channel in order to maintain healthy relationships
with its employees and other stakeholders. Save as disclosed
elsewhere under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, during the year, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its business partners, suppliers
and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Li Ming — Chairman

Mr. Zhang Shi Hong — Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wang San Long (resigned on 21 November 2017)
Mr. Zhang Weibing (appointed on 21 November 2017)

Mr. Liu Jin

Non-executive director:

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen — Honorary Chairman
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Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hu Bai He
Ms. Xiang Siying
Ms. Xiang Ying

Mr. Wang San Long resigned as a director of the Company with
effect from 21 November 2017 due to his plan to devote more
attention and dedication to his other business engagement. Mr.
Wang confirmed that he has no claim against the Company
whatsoever nor disagreement with the Board and there is no
matter in respect of his resignation which ought to be brought to
the attention of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) and the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with Clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Li
Ming, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Hu Bai He will retire by rotation and are
eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Furthermore, under bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, any
Director appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the existing board should retire at the first general
meeting after his appointment. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Weibing will
also retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

All of the remaining directors will continue in office.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors in writing an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive directors to
be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of directors as at the date of this report
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ming, aged 55, was appointed as a Director in February
2009 and is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
Jiangxi Finance Institute (now known as Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics) majoring in planning statistics. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Li held senior positions in a number
of well-known companies in the People’s Republic of China and
had extensive experience in management and business planning.
Mr. Li has served as a non-executive director of DST ROBOT
Co. Ltd (Stock Code: A090710), a company listed on Korean
Stock Exchange, since March 2015. Mr. Li was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Skyworth Digital Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 00751), a company listed on Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, in March 2017. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Li did not hold any directorship in other public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas over the last three years.

Mr. Zhang Shi Hong, aged 49, was appointed as a Director in
December 2007 and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
Mr. Zhang has over 17 years of experience in finance, credit
management and investment management. He has worked for
the head office of the Bank of China for around nine years, mainly
responsible for credit management. He also pursued investment
management in various institutions in the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Zhang holds a Master’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Zhang Weibing, aged 52, was appointed as a Director in
November 2017. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor degree in economics,
a master degree in finance from Peking University and a doctoral
degree in finance from Sichuan University. He has over 26 years
of working experience in financial securities industry. Mr. Zhang
is the chairman and an executive director of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1192). Mr. Zhang has extensive experience
in corporate governance, initial public offering, mergers and
acquisitions, equity bond financing and investment.
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Mr. Liu Jin, aged 49, was appointed as a Director in September
2015. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma in Business Administration
from Singapore Institute of Management and a Master Degree of
Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr.
Liu is also a Certified Dealmaker endorsed by the China Mergers &
Acquisition Association. Mr. Liu has nearly 20 years’ experience in
the investment industry. He held senior positions in brokerage firm,
investment companies and private equity management companies
and has extensive experience in corporate finance matters, such
as corporate management, risks management, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate advisory and initial public offering in the
People’s Republic of China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 70, was appointed as a Director in
September 2007 and was re-designated as the non-executive
Director and Honorary Chairman of the Group in June 2015.
Mr. Chau graduated from Xiamen University majoring in Chinese
language and literature. Mr. Chau has been an executive director
of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Good Resources Limited, Come Sure
Group (Holdings) Limited and Redco Properties Group Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chau
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hua
Long Jin Kong Company Limited (Stock code: 01682), a company
listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, in September 2017. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Chau did not hold any directorship in
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over the last three
years. Mr. Chau is currently a member of the Chinese People
Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China
and holds the office of its deputy officer of the Social and Legal
Affairs Committee. He is also the vice chairman of Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations. Mr. Chau was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government of Special
Administration Region in 2010.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Bai He, aged 55, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2008. Mr. Hu was graduated from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics. He is a senior accountant,
certified public accountant, certified public valuer and certified
tax agent in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He
has extensive experience in finance and accounting field. Mr.
Hu is currently the general manager of Peking Certified Public
Accountants. Before he joined Peking Certified Public Accountants
in 1993, he has had over seven years working experience with
Ministry of Finance of the PRC. Mr. Hu has been an independent
non-executive director of China Tian Yuan Healthcare Group
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since August 2016.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hu did not hold any directorship in
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over the last three
years.

Ms. Xiang Siying, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2008. Ms. Xiang holds an MBA
degree from the London Business School. She has extensive
experience in all sectors of corporate finance, restructuring and
merge and acquisitions practice. From 2010 to April 2016, Ms.
Xiang was an executive director of CDH Investments, a leading
private equity firm in China. Prior to joining CDH, she had worked
for China International Capital Corporation Limited since returning
to China in early 2004. Before that Ms. Xiang had long career with
International Finance Corporation, the private investment arm of
the World Bank Group in Washington, United States of America.
Ms. Xiang is currently an independent non-executive director of
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 01192) and
Huili Resources (Group) Limited (Stock Code: 01303), the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xiang did not hold any directorship
in other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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Ms. Xiang Ying, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in August 2009. Ms. Xiang was graduated and
obtained her Bachelor's degree in economics from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. Ms. Xiang is a qualified lawyer
and a certified public accountant in the People’s Republic of
China. She also holds qualifications to act as a senior lecturer in
Economic Law. Ms. Xiang has significant experience in the fields of
mergers and acquisitions, financial services and risk management.
During the period from 31 August 2011 to 25 November 2012,
she was appointed as an independent director of Anxin Trust &
Investment Co. Ltd., the shares of which are listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Ms. Xiang was an independent director of
Guangdong Sky Dragon Ink Group Co. Ltd, the shares of which are
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from July 2010 to July 2013.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xiang did not hold any directorship
in other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives in the share capital of the Company
or its associated corporations, as defined in Part XV of the SFO and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

(i) Interest in ordinary shares of the company
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R-ZE—tF+-_A=1+—HB BFRKESTR
ABRARRARIHEBEEE (TERESRHE
EOIEXVER) 2 AT R LHEZES MG
{RPI B3GR EARRAFE ZELMA - 3
KBELETETAERETESFR S ZFETA
(MRESTAN) BITHASARRE MRz #Em
KRBT

() RERAEBERzER

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary the issued
Name Long/Short position Capacity shares held shares held
FEZ REEERfTRGZ
o] #E/ %R L) EBRREE BRERL
Li Ming (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 1,137,588,954 8.34%
A (J95E1) A ERfAA
Long position Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)  505,845,000,000 3.71%
A REtAEER (ME2)
Total 1,643,433,954 12.05%
w@at
Zhang Shi Hong (Note 3) Long position Beneficial owner 227,600,000 1.67%
K& (ME3) HE ERfAA
Zhang Weibing (Note 4) Long position Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.22%
REExE (HiTd) HE ERfAA
Note 1:  Mr. Li Ming is an executive director of the Company. MizEl: ZFBREEABAQRZHRITES-

Note 2:  These shares are held by Lead Dragon Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share
capital is solely and beneficially owned by Mr. Li Ming.

Note 3: Mr. Zhang Shi Hong is an executive director of the Company.

Note 4: Mr. Zhang Weibing is an executive director of the Company.

MizE2 : 5D M Lead Dragon Limited#74A @ %2
AN EBE LS EMARY K250 31T
AR FR R E R R ERSES
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(ii) Rights to acquire shares in the Company (i)

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company
had interests in share options to subscribe for shares in the

B
BEXAQARMG ZER
RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H ARAE
=

BEBREZ EDEARBA LR N

Company as follows: N
Company/Name of Number of
Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interest underlying shares Exercise price
ESpE AQF/HEEEERE BRME HERAHE TEE
Chau On Ta Yuen Company Personal interest (Note 1) 4,743,000 HK$5.69378 7T
BZER /NG| B AR (PHEEL)
Company Personal interest (Note 2) 45,000,000 HK$0.2117% 7T
YN B AR (fiHE2)
Zhang Shi Hong Company Personal interest (Note 1) 1,581,000 HK$5.6937% 7T
E WA /NG| B AR (PEEL)
Company Personal interest (Note 2) 16,000,000 HK$0.2117& 7T
YN BARER (ME2)
Company Personal interest (Note 3) 90,000,000 HK$0.287 71T
NG| E AR (FFE3)
Li Ming Company Personal interest (Note 3) 70,000,000 HK$0.287% 7T
FH /NG 8 AR (Fi5E3)
LiuJin Company Personal interest (Note 3) 110,000,000 HK$0.287 7T
2 NS B ARER (PiHEE3)
Hu Bai He Company Personal interest (Note 2) 1,000,000 HK$0.2117% 7T
A NG| AR (F2)
Xiang Siying Company Personal interest (Note 2) 1,000,000 HK$0.2117%8 7T
ERE /NS BARER (fHE2)
Xiang Ying Company Personal interest (Note 2) 1,000,000 HK$0.2117% 7T
A58 VN B AR (fiHE2)
Notes: B2 -
1. Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the options 1. ZERMEE AREBEARR BN 4R A

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or
their associates had any personal, family, corporate or other
interests in the equity or debt securities of the Company or

granted on 5 March 2008 under the share option scheme of the

Company adopted on 27 May 2002.

Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the

options granted on 7 May 2014 under the share option scheme of the

Company adopted on 27 June 2012.

Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the options

granted on 4 November 2015 under the share option scheme of the

Company adopted on 27 June 2012.

any of its associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
27 May 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. The term of 2002 Scheme is ten
years from its date of adoption. It has expired on 26 May 2012. As
at 31 December 2017, options to subscribe for 46,449,780 shares
were granted but not yet exercised under the 2002 Scheme. These
options shall remain exercisable pursuant to the 2002 Scheme.
At the Company’ annual general meeting held on 27 June 2012,
an ordinary resolution was proposed to approve the adoption of a
new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), which has taken
effect after the resolution was passed and the Company obtained
the listing approval granted by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. As at 31 December 2017, options to subscribe for
876,000,000 shares were granted but not yet exercised under the
2012 Scheme.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company issued
163,580,000 ordinary shares at conversion prices varying from
HK$0.1884 to HK$0.2121 to the holder of the 2018 convertible
notes.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in the Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme” in this
report, at no time during the year under review was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable a director of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the information disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected
with a director had material interests, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register (the “Register”) maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. Other than as
disclosed below, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2017.
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Approximate
Number of percentage of the
Long/Short underlying issued shares held
Name position Nature of Interests share held  at 31 December 2015
fR-B-E%
t=ZA=t-H
BEZ BFRERTROZ
i HE/%& BEHE HERGHE BREIL
Macquarie Group Limited Long Beneficial owner 1,666,666,666 12.22%
e ERBAA
Forward Fund SPC - Double Long Beneficial owner 1,842,857,142 13.51%
Management Fund SP
e ERBAA
Full House Asset Management Long Asset Manager 1,842,857,142 13.51%
Company Limited (Note 1)
Full House Asset Management e BEBEA
Company Limited (Fit3F1)
Pacific Ocean Marine Limited Long Beneficial owner 857,142 857 6.29%
A BERRAT e ERBAA
Notes B &
(1): Full House Asset Management Company Limited is the investment manager of (1):  Full House Asset Management Company Limited

Forward Fund SPC — Double Management Fund SP.

#Forward Fund SPC—Double Management
Fund SPZ I & 4538 o
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employee of the Company is set up
by the executive directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Board of Directors, having regard to their responsibility to the
Company, their qualifications, experiences and past remuneration,
the Company’s performance and current market conditions. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme is set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” and the convertible notes as
disclosed in the section headed “Convertible Notes” above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017 or subsisted at the said period.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted
for 14.43% and 30.87%, respectively, of the Group’s total
purchase for the year.

The aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers taken together
accounted for 24.44% and 36.69%, respectively of the Group’s
total turnover for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has an interest in any of
the Group’s largest supplier and customer.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has recognized the importance of transparency and
accountability, and the Board believes that shareholders can be
benefited from good corporate governance. The Company aims to
achieve good standard of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Further
information on the Company’s corporate governance practice is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 46.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors was interested in any business apart from the
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete either
directly or indirectly with business of the Group during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report, there was no significant
connected party transaction or continuing connected transaction
entered into by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
that require disclosure under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there was sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The bye-laws of the Company provides that each director, the
company secretary and other officers of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices or trusts. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in
respect of relevant legal actions against directors of the Company.

Such permitted indemnity provisions have been in force throughout

the year ended 31 December 2017 and is currently in force at the
time of approval of this report.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EERBERR2RES

BASEEBIN EENFAREREMERNE
BEGER AR EBRE A EEREF 25T
AR -

FEERXZ

BARF RS M MRM T REEIN K%
BREE—T—+tF+t-A=+—BLFEITE
RIMARIE FTRAIFIAAR AT HRENE AR E
NRGIFEBER S

RADBATERE

RERNRBES 2 AHERRBEESHA RA
BEAH 2RALFHBREZI PR EHARR
FTRE 2 AR A2 BT 125%

R RIER

REBARBZABMA ARBES  RAMWE
REMBE I BEANETRBHRBREETR
BmEL RAEERNITHMARRRART
B —PISRAA A B BREERMAX
ARBZEBERENTESRENAE- UL
ARRERSFHARBESNRBERFABE
BENESERITRABRETRE -

FRRETREGRINEE T —+tF+ A
=t —HIEFEEAME B ATR AN F R_LERD
R



MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Save for employment contracts, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any principal
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
report.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor
of the Company on 17 January 2012. The financial statements
had been audited by Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

LI Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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/ HEl(EB)EHAEEFAGRELE
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
TEEIRERRAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 73 to 299, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

(a)

(b)

Limitation of scope on prior year’'s scope
limitation affecting opening balances,
comparative figures and related disclosures

As explained in our report dated 30 March 2017 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, we were not provided with sufficient
evidence to enable us to assess as to the revenue and cost
of sales of the shipbuilding business for the year ended
31 December 2016 and the balance of the amounts due
to customers for contract work as at 31 December 2016
were fairly stated. We qualified our opinion on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 in respect of this scope limitation
accordingly.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the opening
balances as at 1 January 2017 may affect the results and
related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017. The comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2016 shown in these consolidated financial
statement may not comparable with the figures for the
current year.

Limitation of scope on revenue, cost of sales
and amounts due to customers for contract
work of shipbuilding business

Included in the Group’s revenue and cost of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was a debit balance of revenue
(net) and cost of sales of approximately HK$78,989,000 and
HK$350,683,000 from shipbuilding business respectively.
Revenue from shipbuilding business had been recognised by
the Group based on the percentage of completion. As set out
in Notes 2 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
due to delays in shipbuilding production schedules and the
decrease in market prices of the vessels, the Group reduce
the contract price for four vessels to an aggregate amount
of approximately USD24,008,000, accordingly, a reversal of
revenue of approximately HK$162,830,000 and foreseeable
loss of approximately HK$46,751,000 were recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Limitation of scope on revenue, cost of sales

and amounts due to customers for contract
work of shipbuilding business (Continued)

Due to delays in shipbuilding production schedules, two
customers relating to six vessels (collectively referred to as
the “Two Customers”), in accordance with the terms and
conditions stated in the relevant shipbuilding contracts,
have the rights to issue rescission notices to the Group if the
Two Customers cannot receive the vessels on or before the
agreed vessels delivery dates in accordance with the terms
and conditions stated in the relevant shipbuilding contracts
(i.e. June 2016 to March 2017). If notice were issued by
the Two Customers, the Group is required to return all of
the payments received so far from the Two Customers, of
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$824,486,000
(equivalent to approximately USD105,568,000) and to pay
interests on such amount calculated in accordance with
the relevant terms stated in the shipbuilding contracts (the
“Interests”). The management of the Group have been in
negotiation with the Two Customers since June 2016. Up
to the date when the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, the management of the Group have not
yet reached any formal agreements with the Two Customers.
Taking into account the specific facts and circumstances, it
was uncertain the Two Customers will exercise their rights
to issue the rescission notice to the Group and request
for return of payments together with Interests from the
Group. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence we consider as necessary in order to assess
whether the related revenue and cost of sales should be
reversed.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION BMERREREE(H)

(CONTINUED)
(b) EMFEBHNE HERERE

(b) Limitation of scope on revenue, cost of sales

and amounts due to customers for contract
work of shipbuilding business (Continued)

Similarly, if the abovementioned revenue and the related cost
of sales were reversed, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we consider as necessary as to
determine whether the value of the work in progress vessels
are fairly stated. Further, the Group had not recognised any
additional penalty to be incurred due to the late delivery nor
recognised any Interests as the management of the Group
believes that these amounts cannot be reliably measured
taking into account the fact that the management of the
Group is still in negotiation with the Two Customers.

There were no other alternative audit procedures that we
could carry out to determine whether the related revenue
and cost of sales should be reversed during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the balance of the amounts
due to customers for contract work of approximately
HK$336,169,000 as at 31 December 2017 was fairly stated,
which could have consequential effect on the net current
liabilities and net liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2017 and the loss for the year then ended.

Any adjustment to revenue, cost of sales, amounts due to
customers for contract work and additional provision for
Interests and foreseeable loss found to be necessary would
affect the Group’s net current liabilities and net liabilities as
at 31 December 2017 and the Group's loss for the year then
ended and related disclosures to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Material fundamental uncertainties relating to

going concern basis

As set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the Group incurred a
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$611,790,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$2,136,381,000 and the Group had net liabilities of
approximately HK$896,130,000. Also, as mentioned in point
(b) above, it was highly uncertain whether the Two Customers
will exercise their rights to require the Company to repay all
the payments made to the Group and the Interests. These
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the directors of the Company (the“Directors”)
on a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent
on the Group’s ability to obtain sufficient future funding. Due
to the uncertainty of the Group’s ability to maintain adequate
future cash flows, we were unable to ascertain whether
the assumptions made by the Directors in preparing the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
are proper and appropriate.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Material fundamental uncertainties relating to
going concern basis (Continued)

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments would be necessary to reclassify all non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively, write-down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities
which may arise. The consolidated financial statements
have not incorporated any of these adjustments. However,
the uncertainty surrounding the Group’s future cash
flows raises significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made in the consolidated financial
statements concerning this situation, but we are unable to
obtain adequate evidence concerning the Group’s ability
to meet any financial obligations as and when they fall due
and we consider that this material uncertainty relating to
going concern basis and their cumulative effect on the
consolidated financial statements is so extreme that we have
disclaimed our opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act and Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor's report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Lam Chik Tong

Practising Certificate Number: P05612

Suites 313-316, 3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
IreERREMEENETR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT T

Revenue W as 8 349,238 417,313
Cost of sales 8 & AR (671,626) (447,796)
Gross loss EE (322,388) (30,483)
Other income H A 4 A 9 26,820 15,429
Other gains and losses H b o zs K B8 10 10,803 (25,102)
Change in fair value of contingent eI A REZ

consideration payable RNEBEES) 38 (5,081) (1,888)
Gain on settlement of contingent BB ARE 2 Wz

consideration payable 38 39,704 -
Change in fair value of investments FIEEBEREZATEE

held for trading (143) 225
Change in fair value of convertible JER AT ]mRES 2

bonds payables RNEBEES) 35 (6,247) 55,989
Change in fair value of investment properties 1% &% 7 A F(E# 18 1,730 211
Gain on early redemption of convertible IRATER EN T RRES

bonds payables Was 35 5,003 -
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds EHE R E AT MR ES <

payables upon maturity Was 35 13,872 -
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R D iHAY (7,397) (11,019)
Administrative expenses 1T 2 (208,525) (299,920)
Finance costs & A 11 (173,491) (136,324)
Share of profit of associates DR E R T 2 m F 22 1,692 14,277
Share of profit of joint ventures DG E R E 23 - 52,206
Loss before tax BRELAIE B (623,648) (366,399)
Income tax credit FriSfiik e 12 2,696 7,173
Loss for the year REFEE 13 (620,952) (359,226)
Other comprehensive (expenses) income:  H 2 (BIx) WA :
ltems that may be reclassified HETREENIEZEREZZ

subsequently to profit or loss: HE:
Exchange differences arising on translation of #E GINEFZEEAL 2

foreign operations bE X ERE (71,336) 77,471
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEREZ AT EE

investment 29 9,240 -
Share of translation reserve of associates DI E N R 2 R E 22 3,110 (734)
Share of translation reserve of joint ventures & &2 7 # & (# 23 16,398 (2,677)
Other comprehensive (expenses) income FRAEMEE () BA -

for the year, net of income tax Bk TS (42,588) 74,060
Total comprehensive expenses for the year S RZHEF XA (663,540) (285,166)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
IReERREMEERNZESR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo e FET FHETT
Loss for the year attributable to: JEAGF AHIE -
— Owners of the Company V. N/NEIE7Z =N (611,790) (353,156)
— Non-controlling interests — PR RE RS (9,162) (6,070)
(620,952) (359,226)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to: f&1f 2 M f Sz 4258 :
— Owners of the Company . N/NETE7Z =N (653,902) (278,338)
— Non-controlling interests —JEVERR R (9,638) (6,828)
(663,540) (285,166)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and diluted —BEARREE 16 (HK$0.05) (HK$0.03)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B VNI

At 31 December 2017 R —ZE—+F+-F=+—H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = FET THE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I EN & L] 17 562,258 195,022
Investment properties AWM 18 25,104 15,745
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion T & E —JEREIZH 19 362,093 283,724
Goodwill RS 20 182,145 123,574
Intangible assets ETEE 21 183,410 205,840
Interests in associates iR/ v e 22 249,919 192,706
Interests in joint ventures RE&EEEZER 23 485,980 527,461
Trade receivables — non-current portion B REWHIE-JERSED 25 1,391 683
Deposits — non-current portion FRR—FEmeEn &1 25 - 66,711
Available-for-sale investment Al ERE 29 24,840 =
Amount due from an associate Ji& U — R Bt & R R SR8
— non-current portion —3ERE 1D 22 6,110 2,775
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 35(c) - 94,000
Deferred tax asset RIETRIBE E 36 130 120
2,083,380 1,708,361
CURRENT ASSETS nBEE
Inventories FE 24 134,988 53,696
Trade and bills receivables B Z W FIE R EREE 25 212,226 58,793
Other receivables L 8 W IR 25 709,003 299,260
Prepayment TEf 3R 25 271,458 426,389
Tax recoverable A] Y [2] 7 18 5,725 —
Amount due from an associate JfE Ug — e Bt i A Bl ZR IR 22 4,800 4,440
Prepaid lease payments BT E T8 19 9,243 6,873
Investments held for trading BIEEE KA 26 54 2,177
Finance lease receivables JE W gt & & RRIB 27 9,353 17,833
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITFR 28 248 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIE® 28 15,276 101,785
1,372,374 971,246
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and other payables E 5 K Eith e FR 18 30 815,509 411,227
Amounts due to customers for contract work JEfIEF & 4 T8 31 336,169 17,177
Amounts due to related parties e A RE S A - 30E 46 811 425
Amounts due to directors e EEFIE 46 10,034 1,521
Borrowings BE 32 1,932,324 1,049,146
Contingent consideration payable JERT SR ARE 38 170,552 317,628
Amounts due to associates JE A< Bt = A B RN IE 22 15,159 877
Provision for warranty IREB R 33 4,171 3,357
Provision for financial guarantee SRR 45 217,843 =
Convertible bonds payables FER AT R E S 35 - 256,032
Tax liabilities MIEBE 6,183 4,064
3,508,755 2,061,454
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEEFHE (2,136,381) (1,090,208)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAMS
LIABILITIES (53,001) 618,153
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RS M IFBANIT IR R

At'31 Decerbér 20171 = Zar e Btit— B

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Nz FET FHE T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHE
Share capital f& s 34 681,842 600,138
Reserves s (1,629,046) (1,244,602)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR &% A A E{HAELS (947,204) (644,464)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R E = 37 51,074 39,712
TOTAL DEFICITS 42 15 A (896,130) (604,752)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Other payables — non-current portion Hitn e sRIBE—3EmEBEH 30 5,337 4,937
Borrowings — non-current portion a8 —3ER BN 1D 32 581,856 1,039,050
Convertible bonds payables FER AR ES
— non-current portion —IEmENZBH 35 148,965 92,847
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIER & 36 106,971 86,071
843,129 1,222,905
(53,001) 618,153

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 299 were EEgERT\F=AZTNLBRBREE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 FIZEHEH R F 7322998 v R e M FHwEK - W HT

March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: TNEERREERE:
LI Ming ZHANG Shi Hong
Z= 8 RN
Director Director
EF o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
IRERERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & & —

Attributable to owners of the Company

Z—tF+ZRA=t+—HIt

FE

NG PN
Share Convertible Non-
Share Share  Contributed Statutory Other ~ Translation option bonds  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
ik
A ROEE  BARR  iRRE  AtEE  AERE BREEE GREE  ZHER &t FekiEs gt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TR Fhr T i T T T T T Thr Fhr
(Note 34) (Note a) (Note b) (Note 35)
(K1) (Wiita)  (HWib) (Hiit35)
At 1 January 2016 R=%-~5-A-A 507899 1630063 3368411 34920 980 108826 135,060 11343 (6,274908)  (387,416) 644 (386,772)
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - - - (3%3156)  (353,156) (6070)  (359.226)
Other comprefensive income Efp2ENE (Fx):
(expenses):
Items that may be reclassified ERTgEN BZ
subsequenty to profitor loss: KalER:
Exchange diferences arisingon ~~ EENEBREEL
translation of foreign operations EXZR - - - - - 78229 = = 78,229 (758) 71471
Share of translafion reserve of HEBERALZ
associates HERE - - - - - (734) - - (734) - (734)
Share of translafion reserve of PMEREREL
joint ventures HERE - - - - - (2677) - - (2677) - (2677)
Other comprefensive income REEEMRENE (FX)
(expenses) for the year, (MeFER)
net of income tax - - - - - 74818 - - 74818 (758) 74,060
Total comprehensive income TEE2ANE (RR)E8
(expenses) for the year - - - - - 74818 - (33150 (278338) (6828)  (285,166)
Capital contribution from SERRELA
a non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - 1,110 1,110
Deemed disposal of n partial interest & {E(H ER—EHEAF
ina subsiciary without losing o~ BPERERKEE %‘H
control (Note 50) (Kiza0) - - - - 5,163 - - - 5,163 44786 49949
Issuance of shares upon exercise of BRI ;‘EH% G0
share options (Note 42) (Hi30) 2,000 11580 - - - - (5,140) - - 8,440 - 8,440
Issuance of shares upon conversion of RE A 4% E#E ATk {
convertible bonds (Note 35) (Hi##35) 239 347 - - - - - - 586 - 586
Share of other reserve of associates  AMEBFEAFIZ R - - - - 1,598 - - - 1598 - 1598
Share of other reserve of MR ELE A ER
joint ventures - - - - 5,503 - - - 5503 - 5,503
Trangfer e - - - 7443 - - - (7.443) - - -
AL 31 December 2016 ROE-RETSAST-B GOB LGNS0 M L% 134 I6M 10910 133 GEBE MM BT 647ED

PEETIEEBRAT Fik 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Share  Convertible  Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Statutory Other ~ Translation option bonds  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus resenve resenve reserve resenve resenve reserve losses Total  interests Total
TER  REEH
Bx  RORE HABR  iERE EtHE  RERE BRERE B58E f#E 2ifEE ai FERER &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEn  FEr  fEx  TEx  THEx  TEx TR TEn  FER  TEn  TER  TEn
(Note 34) (Notea) ~ (Note b) (Note 35)  (Note 29)
(H#234) (Kda)  (Hib) (H#35)  (Kd29)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-H 600,138 1,641,990 3368411 42,363 13244 183644 129910 11,343 - (6,635507) (644,464) 39712  (604,752)
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - - - (611,790) (611,790)  (9,162) (620,952)
Other comprehensive (expenses) income: £t (B30 -
ltems that may be reclassified subsequenty EETEEFAEZ
to profi or loss: B EE -
Exchange differences arising on REBNEBREL ERZR
translating foreign operations - - - - - (70,860) - - - - (70,860) (476) (71,336
Change in fair value of avallable-forsale ~ HEHERE 2 ATER
Investment - - - - - - - - 9,240 - 9,240 - 9,240
Share of ranslation reserve of associates ~ HEBED A A ERE - - - - - 3,110 - - - - 3,110 - 3,110
Share of transation reserve of jont ventures AEAS A% 2 A EEE — - - . - 16398 - — - - 16,398 - 16,398
Other comprehensive (expenses) income ~ AFEEM2E (Bx) 4
for the year, net of income tax (HRFER) - - - - - (51352 - - 9,240 - @1 (476)  (42,588)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income ~ AFE2E (Fx) haies
for the year - - - - - (51,352) - - 9,240  (611,790) (653,902 (9,638)  (663,540)
Redemption of equity component of RISRRE AR ES 2
convertible bonds upon maturity 7 - - - - - - - (11,343) - 11,343 - - -
Recognition of equity component of RiEH 2 ERHS
convertible bonds (Note 39) 5) - - - - - - - 42,127 - - 42,127 - 42,127
Issuance of shares upon conversion of TRREFREORE
convertible bonds (Note 35) (H#35) 8179 22,932 - - - - - - - - 31111 - 3111
Capital contribution from a non-controlling~ FEERER A
sharenolder - - - - - - - - - - - 21,000 21,000
Issuance of shares for setflement of EARANEEENDARE
contingent consideration payable 73,525 204,399 - - - - - - - - 211924 - 271924
Release of other reseve of associate BRBENRANGE - - - - (56) - - - - 56 - - -
Release of other reserve of BRAELEZ A DGR
Joint venture - - - - (5,503) - - - - 5,503 - - -
Transfer gz - - - 231 - - - - - (231) - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+#+-A=1-A 681,842 1,869,321 3368411 42,59 7685 132292 129910 42,127 9,240 (7,230,626) (947,204) 51,074  (896,130)

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017




Notes:

(a)

(b)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

fREERmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

There were a group reorganisation in 2001 and share consolidation in 2005
and 2006, the aggregate amount of approximately HK$3,368,411,000 was
recorded in contributed surplus.

According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the companies established in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their net
profit after taxation, as determined under the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations, to statutory reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital. The transfer to this statutory reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to equity owners. Statutory reserve can be used to
offset previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation. The companies established in PRC are also required to maintain a
staff welfare and incentive bonus fund, while the amount and allocation basis
are decided by the enterprise.

Fif ot -

(a)

(b)

RoFF—FrEMEMRN - FFAFR_FEA
E2IRBA bF - KEFAI3,368,411, 0008 TR BA RS
AR

RIFPEARKFE ([0 E]) 16652 R Bz
B R RIR AR AE BT & = 2E R K B I R et E B 7
RAVFI10% B )X E (1 B 2% E [ e r R
HEMEARAI50% ° BB 220X T i AL D IRE T
BRIFAARIEL  JXE MR AR E—F AR
B (E)  BEBISN TAESIRZ M - R Bk
HY R BT BT IE R 18 7 R BEE RS - M AR 7 Ao E
BAHZPRRE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IREREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Loss before tax bR 7 A ES 18 (623,648) (366,399)
Adjustments for: APV EE
Share of profit of associates SaN [y AN i | (1,692) (14,277)
Share of profit of joint ventures DIEEEEFE & - (52,206)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y- B MBI ITE 60,333 52,933
Change in fair value of investments BIEEBRE 2 AT EEE
held for trading 143 (225)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration ~ Bt AR(E 2 A FEEH
payable 5,081 1,888
Change in fair value of investment properties wEYE 2 AT EE (1,730) (211)
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration BERMIARE 2 K=
payable (39,704) =
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—REE AR 2 &8 1,215 =
Loss on disposal of investment property HEREYEZEIE 224 =
Loss on disposal of investments held for trading ~ HEFEEERE 2 EE 149 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME MEREZHEZ
plant and equipment 18 (Yezs) 284 (463)
Change in fair value of convertible bonds JERATMRES 2
payables NEEEF) 6,247 (55,989)
Loss on written-off of property, WEH Y - B &
plant and equipment R E1E - 36
Interest income FEMA (877) (1,099)
Finance costs A& B AR 173,491 136,324
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE A 70 & SR IE B 5E 8,654 7,332
Amortisation of intangible assets T 41,371 39,840
Impairment loss recognised in respect of YE - BB REEERLZ
property, plant and equipment B EE - 66,828
Impairment loss recognised P ERER ZREEHE
in respect of goodwill 40,771 64,483
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FIENHEFIBER
prepaid lease payments BB E - 18,766
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MBI B ERR 2 REEE
intangible assets 16,925 -
Gain on early redemption of convertible IRATE D E N AR ES 2
bonds payables &S (5,003) -
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds EHARE O fE (S AT IR E S 2
payables upon maturity U =5 (13,872) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in 70l 5t B 5 1 SR IE i R
respect of trade receivables BB EE 77) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of LE 5 FE W SR T e RR
trade receivables BEEE - 844
Impairment loss recognised in respect of L L At FE U 5K T8 T e RR
other receivables BB E - 9,177

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Operating cash flows before movements in RITEEESBHAIZ
working capital KREBESRE (331,715) (92,418)
Decrease in inventories FERD 20,975 41,850
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 1 WG IE K FE I 2 45 38 0 (263,511) (40,228)
Decrease (increase) in deposits and other o & E M EBGRIE
receivables WA (38 0) 166,146 (186,313)
Decrease (increase) in prepayment FES R IER A (3E0) 189,503 (261,836)
Decrease in finance lease receivables JE Uk b & AE B SRR D 9,926 8,899
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to related FE1S B BB A - 5IEE a0 (R 4>)
parties 352 (3,491)
Increase in amounts due to directors e E EFRIB L 0 8,471 959
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 8 5 K& H b fE {5t k1832 o0 (R 4>) 52,947 (58,414)
Increase in provision for warranty R B IE AN 641 3,539
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to ERREEG#TE I N
customers for contract work R A) 317,599 (239,296)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from B8 N B e A SRR A (3 0)
an associate 29,174 (4,440)
Increase in amount due to an associate JE (ST BSE 22 3 B FRIALE N 14,211 877
Cash from (used in) operations KERB (A RE 214,719 (830,312)
Tax paid EERE ] (8,016) (6,248)
Interest received EEERSE 877 1,099
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REZEERS () REFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 207,580 (835,461)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REX®
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEREZE (40,399) (42,356)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEBRNEENRE - (11,987)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B IR ER 1T 17 50 - 76,696
Net cash outflow on capital injection/ EE BB E AR 2
acquisition of associates We&mt F58 (82,800) (84,155)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a joint venture UBE—EA SR E 2
IRE ML F R - (311)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEZE  BE REE 2
plant and equipment Fr{S sk I8 27,748 1,197
Proceeds from disposal of investment property HEREYEMSKIE 1,421 =
Proceeds from disposal of investments HEBIEEBERE ZFENIEA
held for trading 1,831 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B B A A (182,421) —
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WS A Al 2 IR & 7t 1 F 58 91,085 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXKFFARLSEE (183,535) (60,916)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IREREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

T o) e R

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B EK
Increase in amount due from an associate Bt 22 N ) JE S FR TR 38 11 (3,110) (2,775)
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash PR HIER SR A (3E40) 94,000 (94,000)
Settlement of convertible bonds payables upon BHBE RN TR R ES
maturity (155,000) -
Borrowings raised ey 153,171 1,292,426
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (226,249) (376,527)
Early redemption of convertible bonds payables 2 Al iE [B] f& (< AT 2 % (& 5 (62,980) -
Interest paid B FE (83,620) (81,834)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BRERETEREITROZ
exercise of share options ﬁﬁ@?&( - 8,440
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds TR (E 5 2 P15 3R I8 189,000 94,000
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in Hj’ifﬁ% A EB D HE 2
a subsidiary without losing control FT 1S sRIE B 2K A 12 il 4 - 49,949
Capital injection from a non-controlling I 122 1% 3% 2R 1A) — A
shareholder into a subsidiary B AREE 21,000 1,110
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING REER (FTA)MSREFH
ACTIVITIES (73,788) 890,789
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERASEZEYRD FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 49,743 (5,588)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BZzBHER
AT 1 JANUARY ReZEEY 101,785 70,181
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREH) & (36,766) 37,192
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—BA=+—-H%2
AT 31 DECEMBER RERASZEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BUERITAE SR IR & 15,276 101,785

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The
Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Other than those subsidiaries established in Hong Kong
whose functional currencies are Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”"), the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively known as the “Group”)
was Renminbi (“RMB”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$ for the convenience of the
shareholders as the Company’s shares are listed in Hong
Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
considered the liquidity of the Group in future.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
a loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$611,790,000, and as at that date, the
Group recorded net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$2,136,381,000 and HK$896,130,000,
respectively.

1.

—REE

hEETREARAT ([AAF]) 5 M
1R 0 B A FLAR B SR M 7 2 2
WRBRAF AARAZRAREEHA
2 SFARAT ([BRF]) b AAT
S SO B B 0 B Y s A 4
BATER — B -

ARRR/—HREERLQF - HEMBERA
T E2XRBEHNGE PERARM E48

BRZENEBKLZMBARNINEER
BET (BTSN RRBREK B A A
(ATHBIAKEDZNEEERAR
B (TARE]) -ARARBRNOREE L
mRAERR REMBRRUETE
5] e

REMBHRREREE

ARRES ([EF])) EREFAMBRE
B ODRAKEZ RS ESFLEE -

BHE-_T—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE"
AEBEERRREA ARGFABERY
611,790,000/ 7T - MR &% B 8 A & E 8%
BeRnBPABFEARBERFRIIOR
2,136,381,0007% 7T, 52896,130,00078 7T, ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

To improve the Group’s operation and financial position, the
Directors have been implementing the following operating
and financing measures:

(@) The Group actively reorganised the shipbuilding
business, introduced leading shipbuilding companies
to integrate the shipbuilding business, and revitalised
the shipbuilding assets. According to the new
cooperation framework agreement, Jiangxi Jiangzhou
Union Shipbuilding Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Shipbuilding”)
will be managed by leading shipbuilding companies to
leverage their resource advantages and management
experience to improve the production and organisation
system, increased production efficiency, and reduce
procurement and financial costs. At the same time, the
spare resources such as wharfs and lands of Jiangxi
Shipbuilding will be used for the production, storage,
and transportation of limestone, bringing additional
cash flows to the Group and introducing new partners
to the Group to provide new funding source;

(b) The Group will continue to promote business
diversification to create new cash generating units. And
it will, with efforts devoted to the building an industrial
chain of intelligent car parking and automotive
electronics business, make full use of the resources
of the Nantong manufacturing bases to expand the
production scale for large-scale steel bridge. Besides,
the Group will seek opportunities to cooperate with
other shipbuilding companies in the production of ship
equipment, so as to expand the Group’s business base
and improve its ability to acquire new bank facilities;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. MEVBHRREREE (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

The Group is in negotiation with its lending banks to
allow revolving of loans upon their due dates when the
same renewal conditions entitling the past renewal are
met. It is also in the process of negotiating with several
financial institutions, with the purpose of gaining new
borrowings or seeking for new convertible security
insurance;

The Group is seeking assistance from local
government; and

The Group is in negotiation with its suppliers and
creditors to extend payment due date.

In addition, for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
delays in shipbuilding production schedules have an adverse
effect on the shipbuilding business. One out of the seven

vessels, in which the shipbuilding production schedules were
delayed during the year ended 31 December 2016, has
been delivered to the customer during the year ended 31

December 2017. The Group is now in progress to negotiate

with the customers (the “Two Customers”) to resolve the

problem of delays in production schedules for remaining six

vessels (the “Six Vessels”).

(c)

(d)

(e)
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

If the Group fails to reach the agreement with the Two
Customers relating to the Six Vessels, the Two Customers
have the rights to issue rescission notice and the Group
is required to return all of the payments received so far
from the Two Customers, with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$824,486,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD105,568,000 and to pay interests on amount calculated
in accordance with the relevant terms stated in the
shipbuilding contracts (the “Interests”). The repayment plan
and the amount of Interests to be paid should be negotiated
by the Group and the Two Customers. On the other hand,
the Group has approached two to three potential customers
to deal with the Six Vessels. As the management of the
Company believes that the Six Vessels could be disposed of
at the current market price, therefore the original contract
prices of the Six Vessels has been adjusted to the current
market price for prudence. Also, the Group will consider the
result of the negotiation with the banks which finance the
construction of the Six Vessels before finalising the action
plan on the Six Vessels.

Also, the Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account
the measures as above, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due in the next twelve months from this consolidated
financial statements were authorised to issue. Accordingly,
the Directors believe that the consolidated financial
statements should be prepared on a going concern basis.
However, the eventual outcome is uncertain, should the
going concern assumption be inappropriate, and/or the
Group fails to reach agreement with the abovementioned
Two Customers and the Group is required to repay all
the payments paid to the Group as well as the Interests,
adjustments may have to be made to reverse related revenue
and cost of sales, to write-down on work in progress vessels,
to provide for further foreseeable loss that might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to Hong Kong Disclosure Initiative
Accounting Standard
(“HKAS") 7

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses

Amendments to HKFRSs 12 As part of the Annual

Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MM EMRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure
Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
In addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;(ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in Note 53 to the consolidated
financial statements. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
the application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
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effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation
(“Int”) 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and related
Amendments!

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?
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3. HRAMAREBRI 2BRMK

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Prepayment Feature with
negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Transfers of Investment
Property!

Long-term Interests in
Associate and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Annual improvement on
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and

interpretations mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that

the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs

and interpretations will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss;
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or
loss;

o for non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated
at the present value of the modified contractual
cash flows and discounted at the financial liabilities’
original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the
modified financial liabilities and are amortised over
the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification. Currently, the Group
revises the effective interest rates for non-substantial
modification of financial liabilities with no gain/loss
being recognised in profit or loss;
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3. AT REBRI 2BRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised;

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk

management policies as at 31 December 2017, the Directors

anticipate the following potential impact on initial application
of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in Note
29 to the consolidated financial statements: these
securities qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the fair value gains
or losses accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve amounting to approximately HK$9,240,000
as at 1 January 2018 will no longer be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss under HKFRS 9, which is
different from the current treatment. This will affect the
amounts recognised in the Group’s profit or loss and
other comprehensive income but will not affect total
comprehensive income.

£

HEA (EREVBHREE

a1 (&)

EEMENRERZHT REE
AERMBEREER (F)

BB BHEEREIRTHBTA

(&

M BEEZRENS  BEEES
FERIZEIRIE MEEELEEERE
A ERR - BEM RS ERFEIR
RERBREEBREANE -BH
FEEEEEARTERNZRE AT
KB EEBRRXEFRIEERER
ZEBAR ARBEERRB VA
RAR BB E 2 EARFHE
L EESEHRTEREERE:

REASER_-_ZFT—tF+_-_A=1+—8
ZEMIANEREERRX EFHHA
IRIE BRI i s RN FR AT REELE T
M E

DG E -

iR e SRR T 29PT IR B 0 R R
RNHEFIRM A HEERE 2 ETK
AEH REBEBBHMBREERIFE
B RFESTREREERERF
BEf ARMEEWE AW RES
BB REENFESE- R _F—N
F-A—HERBEEEREEBRTZA
{8 18 %5 499,240,000/ 7T 12 18
BEMSBRERD ERTEEED
Rl ot R EERARE B RMEAM
EHRSETHERAZEE ESTER
B 2EKEHEER-

BRAT FH 2017

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. HRAMAREBRI 2BRMK

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

Convertible bonds issued by the Group designated
as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") as
disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements: these financial liabilities qualified for
designation as measured at FVTPL under HKFRS 9,
however, the amount of change in the fair value of
these financial liabilities that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of those liabilities will be recognised
in other comprehensive income with the remaining
fair value change recognised in profit or loss. This is
different from the current accounting treatment under
which the entire change in fair value of the financial
liabilities is recognised in profit or loss. The change
in fair value attributed to a change in credit risk of
these financial liabilities amounting to approximately
HK$449,000 during the current year would be
recognised in other comprehensive income were
HKFRS 9 applied; and

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred
in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under
HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on trade receivables and other receivables, finance
lease receivables and amount due from an associate. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit loss
model would increased the opening accumulated losses as at
1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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3. 3. HRAMAREBRI 2BRMK

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS 15
introduces a b-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, they
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. 3. HRAFA KRB 2BRBME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$23,958,000 as disclosed in Note 54 to the consolidated
financial statements. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 addresses how to determine the “date of
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or
income, when consideration for that item has been paid or
received in advance in a foreign currency which resulted in
the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability (for example a non-refundable deposit or deferred
revenue).

The interpretation specifies that the date of transaction is
the date on which the entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Interpretation
requires an entity to determine the date of transaction for
each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of this
amendment will have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4. 4., TEESTTHEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Exchange (the “Listing Rule”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Shared-Based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follow:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities including
structured entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including reattribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains controls), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or a group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or a group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-
generating units in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

4. TEEFEE (&)

(]
WiE—REBEL 2B RN EBHWE
AH (R EXEFBR) PTHEL 2 AR R
sOREER (WA) 5k

i

AETRENS BEERIEEBHEA
BHZHEREMSEL AEBZERES
EEEMG (KReEEEMER)  BBtR
MEEMEEERENKRERR RTAR

Z(« .L AN _LB

EOEEmBnNReELEN (HREELE
4R ggFETRENR  IRAITR
FBRZEM A e IR R ERETERER
WERIE - K — & AR R WS FrE
AZBENE BOoRBECHEELEN
(IR EEBERAER) R ZHRE BRRE KA
ETRENR - MR EELEML (HREE
HEAAR) P E KRR DR ERREE -
AREEREg ERERRERNSEEZE
UHEENREE HRIRZELAZ
BEEERRENIDEEZEMNEAM

REERBERSELABENR ENETE L
ENBERSRRFARENEEESRE (X
AEBEERENE S ELEMARN N
TAREELEEL) -

AEEEBEERE QT
ﬁﬁ%ZEﬁZﬁ%ﬂWDTO

REREME

PBETEBBERAT F3k 2017

107



108

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purpose are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or joint ventures exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or joint ventures is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal or partial disposal
of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. The
stage of completion of the contract is determined as follows:

- installation fees are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the installation, determined as
the proportion of the total time expected to install that
has elapsed at the end of the reporting period;

- servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the service for
the product sold; and

- revenue from time and material contracts is recognised
at the contractual rates as labour hours and direct
expenses are incurred.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting policy
for construction contract below.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating lease is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at costs less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised accumulated impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

4. TEEFEE (&)

REM=

REMEEFIERDNES R HFE AT
BzMmE-

BREMENTERA (BREFNERENR
PSR & R HERR  REVEEHR
BRAFEFE-AKEMEREEEHE
RBMMERBE SR FEAREREZY
ERGCOBIARIBREMERES
NFEEAFE-RENEZAFER
FELZBENELHRG ARG

BEMEINHERIEREMEKAN
BEAAERLHENETEELERREE
MR BURTRR -BORER LM EREE
ZERBE (RHEMBSHRBFEEAZE
EZREEZ ZRAE ) AZMEIURRE
RHYREzBEA-

HE+T#HREF

EAKER-ENEEx (BREEL
REBFEID)ERNRE  AEEERES
BB PR A RS 0 4B K R 3 [ e K (B ¥ 2
DEBEAKE 2L BIUFESES 2
DRSO SKERE  IBOHYE
BEREHERE -FH2 2HMKE (R
AR —RMEFEN ) R S HERE - 7
EtEEFHRONHEERDNERAF
ENLHIERS L EEFHSEETD
fic

PBETEBBERAT F3 2017

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance

lease.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the

time value of money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
the relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the
date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's
obligation.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivables as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract for shipbuilding
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, as determined
by reference to the standard hours incurred up to the end
of the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
standard hours for each contract. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position, as a liability, as advances received.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customer are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under trade receivables.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading, (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL
or (iii) contingent consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “change in fair value
of investments held for trading” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
7(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans
and receivables or financial assets at FVTPL. The Group
designated listed equity securities as AFS financial assets in
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period except for unquoted
equity investments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS debt
instruments relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, and changes in foreign
exchange rates, if applicable, are recognised in profit or
loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, finance lease receivables, pledged bank
deposits, amount due from an associate, restricted cash and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objected evidence of the impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade, bills and other receivables and finance
lease receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade, bills and other receivables
and finance lease receivables is considered uncollectible,
it is written-off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited to
profit or loss.

When on AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) it is designated as at FVTPL or (ii)
contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as
part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability other than contingent consideration
that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities
and is included in the “change in fair value of convertible
bonds payables” and “change in fair value of contingent
consideration payable” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
7(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
borrowings, amounts due to related parties, amounts due to
associates and amounts due to directors are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain equity component

The component parts of convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated loss.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain equity component (Continued)
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds designated by the Group as fair value
through profit or loss

Some of the convertible bonds issued by the Company
are designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each reporting dates
subsequent to initial recognition, the entire convertible
bonds is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(ii)  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expired, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

4.

FTESTHEE (#)

BEITA (&)

AU B
EEREERIREREZ A OENEM
B AARESUHREENZREEMARE
ZRREOERNMBEREE S —HE
AEEN R ILERZBENHEE - WAK
B EERXNREMEE BRI ER
RERGEEENZEEREE AKHE
FLE A RE AT S R IERN B E M AARE
BETHRBED HMAKRERECEZ
MG BEMARE BRI E KRN @R -
AIREEEERRBZAMBEE e
WS HIERR AR RREE-

RIERVBEER EEREEREDK
REWKEARD R EMEE RS ERIL
NiEs Rt 2 Rt B RERR 2=
BN EE R

AREBEERERECRER EHEIEW
B8R IEFERM IS B (E - BURRER < #1
HREREEEENRENREZERT
1B R A FERR ©

BiIE

PS8z 4 BB RS Fi 18 B ETR IR 2
AN



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised into profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interest as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial assets), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the assets is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=—Z—+tF+=-A=+—HILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE ==

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if

the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from

those involving estimations (see below), that the

Directors have made in the process of applying the

Group'’s accounting policies and that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

(i)

Going concern and liquidity

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the financial position and
financial performance of the Group indicates the
existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The assessment of
the going concern assumptions involves making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point
of time, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
Directors consider that the Group has ability
to continue as a going concern and the major
conditions that may cast significant doubt about
the going concern assumptions are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. EEHANE (EHTRBE
AR

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(ii) Classification of Zhoushan China Ocean
Investment Fund (“Zhoushan Investment
Fund”) as a joint venture
Zhoushan Investment Fund is a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC whose
legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangements and the
parties themselves. There are no contractual
arrangements or any other facts and
circumstances that indicate that the parties to
the joint arrangements have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangements. Furthermore, under the joint
venture agreement, the significant investment of
Zhoushan Investment Fund requires the consent
and approval from all joint venturers. Accordingly,
Zhoushan Investment Fund is classified as a joint
venture of the Group. Details of the interests in
Zhoushan Investment Fund are disclosed in Note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(iii) A subsidiary controlled by the Group

through contractual arrangement

Jiangxi Shipbuilding, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
contractual arrangements with Jiujiang Jinhu
Equipment Manufacturing Company Limited
(“Jiujiang Jinhu”), which enable Jiangxi
Shipbuilding to:

- exercise effective financial and operational
control over Jiujiang Jinhu;

- irrevocably exercise equity holders’ voting
rights of Jiujiang Jinhu;

- receive substantially all of the economic
returns generated by Jiujiang Jinhu by
way of business support, technical and
consulting services provided by Jiangxi
Shipbuilding; and

- obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right
to purchase the entire equity interest in
Jiujiang Jinhu from the respective equity
holders.

Even though the Group does not have any equity
interest in Jiujiang Jinhu, however through a
series of the contractual arrangements, the
Group has rights to the variable returns from
its involvement in Jiujiang Jinhu and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over Jiujiang Jinhu, and is considered to control
Jiujiang Jinhu. Consequently, the Company
regards Jiujiang Jinhu as the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
has included the statement of financial position,
results and cash flows of Jiujiang Jinhu in the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

(i) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and
profit or loss on each shipbuilding contract
according to management’s estimation of
the outcome of the contract as well as the
percentage of completion of shipbuilding works.
Notwithstanding that the management reviews
and revises the estimates of both contract
revenue and costs for the shipbuilding contracts
according to the contract progress, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total
revenue and costs may be higher or lower than
the estimates and this will affect the revenue and
profit or loss recognised. The Group also revisits
the estimate of contract profit or loss according
to the contract progress based on the information
available in the market. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, due to unforeseen
circumstances in certain shipbuilding contracts,
the Group recognised the foreseeable losses in
respect of certain shipbuilding contracts in cost
of sales as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i) Construction contracts (Continued)

5. EESRHIE R
EZEERR (&)

(b) fEETFRARBIER 2 ERRIR
(%)

(i) ZBEESH (H)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAIT
Penalties due to the Delay (Note 2) LR Z B (KaE2) - 49,719
Additional costs for raw materials R BB IINGK AR 3,571 2,342
Reduction of contract price THRELHER
(included approximately (B FE/SAERSAA R Ay oA A
HK$46,751,000 for A& KB 18 %946,751,000
four out of Six Vessels) )
48,585 -
52,156 52,061

(if)  Profit recognition for construction

contracts

The Group commences recognition of profit for
each shipbuilding construction contract when
the percentage of completion exceeds 10% for
that vessel, assuming that the outcome of the
contract can be reasonably ascertained, as the
management considers that after this stage, the
total contract costs attributable to the contracts
can be measured reliably.

(i) FBEEAEREF

AEERMMATIADLLER
10%I R A R IR HETE & # 48
REFRERSENRESLD
wil - REREIRER AN LR
BRi%  BEHNBAE KRB

DELIE T
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RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=—Z—+tF+=-A=+—HILtFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EESHHERASTAHEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EZ2ETERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETFHABAEZEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

(iii) Allowance for inventories (i) ZFE#E

144

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. The Group reviews
its inventory levels in order to identify slow-
moving and obsolete items. When the Group
identifies items of inventories which have a net
realisable value lower than its carrying amount,
the Group estimates the amount of write-
down of inventories to net realisable value is
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down occur. During the year ended 31
December 2017, no write-down (2016: Nil) were
considered necessary by the management of the
Group and at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of inventories amounted to approximately
HK$134,988,000 (2016: HK$53,696,000).

If the net realisable value of inventories of the
Group become lower than its carrying amount
subsequently, an additional allowance may be
required.
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RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. EESRHIE R
EZEERR (&)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETFHABEZEZEERIR
(Continued) (#&)

(iv) Estimated impairment of property, plant (iv) W% BERREZIZHE

and equipment

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed and adjusted for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets whenever certain events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
determine the recoverable amount of the assets
based on the estimations of future expected
cash flows from the usage of these assets
and a suitable discount rate. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, no impairment loss
was recognised by the Group (2016: impairment
loss of approximately HK$66,828,000) in respect
of property, plant and equipment. Details of
the calculation on the recoverable amount for
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

]
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IS EMRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=ZF—t &+ =B =+ —HILtFE

5. EESFHE R AT
EZEERR (H)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETHBEEZEERR
(Continued) (#&)
(v) FBEHEEMEZ G EE

(v) Estimated impairment of prepaid lease

payments
The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments FENBEEREZREE  E8E
is reviewed and adjusted for impairment in aHTSEH4ERES L BRERE

accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets whenever certain events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The Group determined
the recoverable amounts of the assets based
on the comparison approach assuming sale
with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales
evidences as available in the relevant market.
Where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying value, an impairment loss may arise.
No impairment loss was recognised by the
Group (2016: impairment loss of approximately
HK$18,766,000) in respect of prepaid lease
payments for the year ended 31 December

B AR O  RIFRHE
5T 4E I EE365% & 2 6 1B 3#E 1T R
BEEZRAE NEBMERLER
&(Eﬁ&&%%%‘&ﬁﬁ#
MREHE) RBERAIREET
%tk127%ﬂ%mhﬁh
EZEEE 2 AT E &8 o fga]
W el & ERAREE - Al eg
EEREEE REE-T—C
F+_A=+—HILEE &
B I £ 5T & RIB R
BEB(ZZ— X F : REERE
#918,766,000/570) - TN E
Bz E B EFER
%Rﬁé%%ﬁ%%ﬁwo

2017. Details of the calculation on the
recoverable amount for prepaid lease payments
are disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. EESRHIE R
EZEERR (&)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETFHABEZEZEERIR
(Continued) (#&)

(vi) Estimated impairment of trade and bills (vi) E 5 E0TE R FE W Z 45 L

receivables and other receivables

When there is objective evidence indicate
that the trade and bills receivables and other
receivables may not be recovered, the Group
estimates the future cash flows to determine
the impairment loss. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including creditworthiness, the past collection
history of each customer/debtor and their
operation as a going concern. If the financial
conditions of customers/debtors of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, no impairment
loss was recognised by the Group in respect of
trade and bills receivables (2016: impairment
loss of approximately HK$844,000) and
other receivables (2016: impairment loss of
approximately HK$9,177,000), respectively
and at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of trade and bills receivables and other
receivables is approximately HK$213,617,000
(2016: HK$59,476,000) and approximately
HK$709,003,000 (2016: HK$299,260,000),
respectively.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(vii) Provision for warranty

The Group provides the cost of warranties
granted on shipbuilding products and
undertakings to repair or replace items that do
not perform satisfactorily at the time revenues
for the related items are recognised. The
shipbuilding products are covered by warranty
for one year from the date of delivery. While
the Group has put in place product quality
programs and processes, warranty obligations
are affected by actual product failure rates and
by material usage and service delivery costs
incurred in correcting a product failure. The
warranty provision is established based upon
the best estimates at the amounts necessary
to settle future and existing claims on products
sold as at the end of the reporting period. While
management believes that the Group’s warranty
provisions are adequate and that the judgements
applied are appropriate, the ultimate cost of
product warranty could differ materially from the
estimates. When the actual cost of quality of the
products is lower than management originally
anticipated, the Group releases an appropriate
proportion of the provision, and if the cost of
quality is higher than anticipated, the Group
increases the provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. EESRHIE R
EZEERR (&)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETFHABEZEZEERIR
(Continued) (#&)

(viii) 22 FEET B R 15 EBE

(viii) Fair value measurements and valuation

processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Directors determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management of
the Company works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Note 7(c) to
the consolidated financial statements provides
detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EESHHERASTAHEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EZ2ETERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETHBEEZEERR
(Continued) (#&)
(ix) BERBFEEEZ GG HE

(ix) Estimated impairment of goodwill and

150

intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible
assets are impaired requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill and intangible assets have
been allocated. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$40,771,000 (2016: HK$64,483,000)
and approximately HK$16,925,000 (2016:
Nil) in respect of goodwill and intangible
assets, respectively. Details of the value-in-
use calculation are disclosed in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group also monitors the current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that sufficient
working capital and adequate committed lines of funding
are maintained to meet its liquidity requirements. Upon
the discovery of any default, the Group would negotiate
immediately with the relevant lenders for proper arrangement
in order to maintain sufficient working capital. Upon the
expectation of any cash insufficiency, the Company would
seek new source of funding so as to maintain sufficient
working capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include borrowings, convertible bonds payables,
contingent consideration payable, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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ImE B IMIRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 i 2 =ZF—tF+ = A=T—HILFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT HA
a. Categories of financial instruments a. MBEIARER
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets BKEE
Fair value through profit or loss BATER ABRE
— Investments held for trading —BHIEEBEHRE 54 2,177
Loans and receivables (including bank BN E W s
balances and cash) (BIERITESRERS) 818,774 430,066
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 24,840 =
843,668 432,243
Financial liabilities ke s
Fair value through profit or loss RN E AERE
— Contingent consideration payable — B ARE 170,552 317,628
— Convertible bonds payables — R BRES - 106,719
— Provision for financial guarantee — IS ERE 217,843 -
Other financial liabilities measured at REEKAGTEZ
amortised cost HEMyEasE 3,352,655 2,498 668
Convertible bonds payables e TR ES 148,965 242,160
3,890,015 3,165,175
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IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, finance lease
receivables, investments held for trading, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, amount due from(to)
associates, restricted cash, available-for-sale investment,
trade and other payables, amounts due to related
parties, amounts due to directors, borrowings, convertible
bonds payables, provision for financial guarantee and
contingent consideration payable. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk, operational risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Company and its major operating
subsidiaries use RMB as its functional currency
and are mainly exposed to currency in respect of
United States dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”) and
HK$, arising from foreign currency denominated
bank balances and cash, restricted cash, trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, trade
and other payables, convertible bonds payables,
provision for financial guarantee and contingent
consideration payable. The Group’s other
operating subsidiaries established in Hong Kong
whose functional currency is HK$ and do not
have significant foreign currency exposure.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ImE B IMIRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7.
(CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and

B TR (&)

b. MEEMREEBBFEREE
(%)
wEmE ()
() EEmEE (H)

TRITRRHRE R - AEE A
SNESIEZEBEERERA

monetary liabilities at the end of reporting period B REE :
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=L EE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—+F | 2 RF | ZB—+tF | ZZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FERT T T
usD ETT 17,748 8,029 191,657 182,210
EUR BT - - 174,263 142,268
HK$ B IT 283,069 698,182 92,340 97,412
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign
currency risk of USD, EUR and HK$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE ==

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against the relevant foreign currencies.
A 5% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translations at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax loss where RMB
strengthens 5% (2016: 5%) against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax

IR B WIRMIEE

—EFt_A=+—HLFE

7. BT A (&)

b. HEEE
(8&)

5 Rk ()

() EEERE (&)
BRREDN (&)
TRFIHEAEAREES B A
R H B BINEFERFES%
(ZE—REFE 5%) ZHREE -
5% (ZF—/NF:5% ) &N I
MEZEEABREINIERR
REANBBRERNE WIEE
BELHERAEABEEH 2T
fly o BUKE DIT(E BIEIAINE 5T
BZHAFREKIER - WHTH
HEAR TR H AR B SN
X 25% (ZT—RF:5%)
25 TWE%%mAE%RE
BEEFESS (ZZT—NF:
9@%%&%%%&%%ﬁ
4\%AEMRE% %%@
5% (ZE—"F:5%) B
ﬂﬁﬁé%%x&ﬁ &ﬁ&

AT 2 EBREK AR

EEEREREXR

‘T’/ =
loss and the balances below would be negative. o
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Decrease (increase) in loss 5B > (3E0)
— USD Impact —EnTTE (8,695) (8,709)
— EUR Impact —BRTEE (8,713) (7,113)
— HK$ Impact —BILEE 9,536 30,038
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and borrowings, and
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate finance lease receivables, fixed-rate
borrowings, the liability component of convertible
bonds payables.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 5 and
50 basis points (2016: 5 and 50 basis points)
increase or decrease in interest rate for bank
balances and borrowings is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. BT A (&)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016:
50 basis points) higher/lower for borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2017 would increase/decrease by approximately

HK$4,141,000 (2016: HK$3,577,000).

If interest rate had been 5 basis points (2016:
5 basis points) higher/lower for bank balances,
and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2017 would decrease/increase by approximately

HK$7,000 (2016: HK$51,000).

(iii)  Price risk
Price risk on investments held for trading and

available-for-sale investment.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments held for trading and available-for-
sale investment. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on listed equity securities
quoted in the Exchange and the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations in Beijing. The
management manages this exposure by closely
monitoring the price risk and maintaining a

portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity

price risks at the end of the reporting period.

b. MBEREERBFRRBUR

(%)

m5 B ()
FE b (&)

(ir)

(i)

BRE DT

(%)

fisi f& & 2 A & E 7+, 505
Bh(ZZ — /X 50EF) AT

BEMTRERRHTE

Al

BE-_T—tHFT-A=1—
B IEFE 2 R B8 R N
SR 94,141,000 T (— B
— <4 £ 3,577,000 7T) °

MIRITAEBARMI X L7 T pE5E
B (ZF— /NG :5&H)  MmAm
BHMAZRNR®EFIE: A
BE_T—tFt-_A=+—
B 1EFE 2 BR B 1R 85 18 R

S IN47,0008 T (Z 8 —7

% 51,0004 7T) °

B8R

/\

FIEFEERERAIHEERE
Z B R

AEEREFIEEERERA
HEEREMAAXZRANER
R - AR 2 RAERERE
EEPRUEREER/PNEER
MERERBE 2 ETRAE
7o BEEBABTYERERR
BN gF—ATERRERE

AEEEZ

BURE DT

FRK -

TXZHBRESMERBER K
FERRBAR 2 RAERRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective equity instruments

had been 5% (2016: 5%) higher/lower:

post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$3,000 (2016:
decrease/increase by HK$109,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of
investments held for tradings; and

investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,242,000 for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investment.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. MBEIA (&)

(CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives b. MEREREEEBERBE
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Credit risk (Continued) EEmE (&)
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management AREREEERE ~EEZER
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring ERAEEHERAMEEREF - X
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to R BN BERGEHE cEH o It
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews SN AREE R B E R B IEE
the recoverable amount of each individual receivable B FE Y RIBHY A U [B] & 58 - LARE(R BE
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that e BB L R SR EE 1 © 5
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable It BEERAEAEBERUFEZEE
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that [2\ B2 B R MR R > o
the Group's credit risk on receivables is significantly
reduced.
The Group has concentration of credit risk in finance RZE—tF+=ZRAR=+— El :
lease segment as the entire outstanding finance lease 2HAREEE K EHEE R
receivable of approximately HK$9,353,000 (2016: 499,353,000 7t (=& — < ¢ :
HK$17,833,000) was contributed from a single 17,833,000 ) KRB — % &E—F
customer as at 31 December 2017. The Directors P '%$%Eﬁ§ﬁ‘ﬂf§”*ﬁﬁﬁuuﬁ“
consider that the risks will be mitigated by exploring SHERE -EERAN BB A REHE
new customers in future. s FERZERE -
The Group also has concentration of credit risk in RZE—tF+_HA=+—H 23
trading segment as the entire outstanding trade KREEE FEWNFIEL)17,837,0007%8
receivable of approximately HK$17,837,000 (2016: 7t (== — 754 : 8,069,000/ 7T ) 3
HK$8,069,000) was contributed from a single E—RE—RF NSAEEE S D
customer as at 31 December 2017. The Directors HEGREESTRR ZE=2RRAB
consider that the risks will be mitigated by exploring BHERENREERZERR-

new customers in future.

The credit risk or liquid funds is limited because the MBESHNEERRER AR5
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings FHRERBREENREELT=E
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. BT RAIRIT o

Operational risk ABEm /"ﬁ"

The Group had improved the operational risk as more HREE—_ZT—tF+=-_A=+—H
new customers were added to minimise the effects of k== */\i‘f’ A —‘?‘* HIEFE
over reliance on one customer during the years ended ENEZFRFPUREREEGE B
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. BEEHTE A& @E’J,ﬁ%%ﬁ S E R

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IS EMRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group was exposed to liquidity risk at 31
December 2017 as the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$2,136,381,000
and HK$896,130,000 (2016: HK$1,090,208,000 and
HK$604,752,000), respectively. In order to improve
the Group’s liquidity position, the Directors have
been implementing various operating and financing
measures, details of which are set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group relied on borrowings as significant sources
of liquidity, details of which are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 E—Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

= —
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT R (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. MKREKEEBEZERBE
- - - = =
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TREBELREE (&)
Liquidity risk tables TRE)E TR g K
The table includes both interest and principal cash TREEYIFE &$§2ﬁ$5ﬁ§ o
flows. To the extent that interest flows are at floating WA BRI F BRI R E  RAGE S
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest HANZRREBRZFIRFTESE -
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
Weighted Over Over Over Over
average On demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years Total Carying
effective or less than but less than but less than but less than but less than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2017
R
Z5-tF
nETH RERY, 1AM WAL 150 WHE FEBEE t-A=1-B
ERAIZ SRIBR  BOR3EA Bhi1E BhieE BHi5E FEAE ZEAfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n N7 T#n THRL T#n THR Ti#n
217 e
Non-derivative financial liabilites 74 BB &R
Trade and other payables BAREETE TER NA 717,647 21,222 68,265 5337 - 812,471 812,471
Amounts due to related parties EfEERALIE TER NA 811 - - - - 811 811
Amounts due to directors RS TER NA 10,034 - - - - 10,034 10,034
Amount due to an associate fEft B E DA TER NA 15,159 - - - - 15,159 15,159
Provision for financial guarantee BBERER TER NA 115,735 - 102,108 - - 217,843 217,843
Contingent consiceration payable EfgARE TER NA 170,552 - - - - 170,552 170,552
Convertible bonds payable (Nofe) ErmaRES (Hi) 10 - - 18,375 208,425 - 226,800 148,965
Borrowings f&&
— fixed rates -ER 7.04 672,911 177,551 692,708 210,996 21,720 1,781,886 1,685,909
- variable rates —HE 4.95 237,606 2,756 244,443 122,476 308,578 915,859 828,271
1,940,455 201,529 1,125,899 547,234 336,298 4,151,415 3,890,015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B HRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

7.

st

= —
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT R (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. MERKEEBERBE
- - - A==
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nEBEZEE (&)
Liguidity risk tables (Continued) REELRERE ()
Weighted Over Over Over QOver
average On demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years Total Carmying
effective or less than but less than but less than but less than but less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2016
ZE0F
METH BELY 1HANE 3EAME L3 2N E AUREE TZA=1-A
EIRHI= SRIER  BAR3EA BLME BonE BHRSE k£ ZEAE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThL T ThL T ThL Thn T
216 “E-RF
Non-derivative financil iabilties SHTEREEE
Trade and other payables BARAMERTE - 314720 10948 77044 4937 = 407,649 407649
Amounts due to related parties EEEBALRE - 4% - - - - 4% 4%
Amounts due o directors LOEES - 1521 - - - - 151 1521
Amount due to an associate fEf-ERENANE - 877 - - - - 877 877
Convertile bonds payables (Note) BT & ( 5% 7,500 4% 255,435 100,980 - 364410 348879
Borrovings EE
- fixed rates -E8 711 424,382 12328 41859 409867 159,542 1424718 137285
- Variable rates -%8 516 65,031 101,191 55,378 54,945 444,000 720,545 71534
814,456 124962 806,456 570,729 603,542 2,920,145 2847547
Note: The undiscounted amount represents the coupon interest and KifaE - REGHE 2 BBIEERBRE BRI BB 2

redemption amount on maturity on the assumption that there

was no conversion prior to maturity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
there was no principal amount of the Group’s bank
borrowings with unconditional repayment on demand
clause.

The amounts included as above for variable interest
rate instruments of non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if change in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rate
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

The Directors are responsible for determining fair value
and the process of determining fair value. In estimating
the fair value, the Group uses market-observation data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The Directors works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and imports to the
model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=ZF—t &+ =B =+ —HILtFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. M IH (&)

(CONTINUED)

c. Fair value measurement of financial c. BBIAEZAFEFE
instruments (Continued) (&)
Some of the Group's financial assets and financial AEBRHNMEEERMEEER SR
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each EHRZAFEFE TREFZE
reporting period. The following table gives information B EERVBABATEFZEAN
about how the fair values of these financial assets and (LEZEERM RATE R A ZUR)
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the KB R o

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

AV
Financial assets/ 31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant
financial liabilities 2017 2016 hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs
“E—tf —T—RE
HEEE/ BHEEE tZA=t-B | tZA=t-8 AVEER HERGREIZWAE EXTABRAAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
Held-for-trading non-derivative Listed equity Listed equity  Level 1 Quoted prices in an N/A
financial assets classified as securities securities active market
investments held for trading in the in Hong Kong - in Hong Kong —
consolidated statement of approximately approximately
financial position 54 2,177
RERFBRARASER REBLTZ REELTZ F-EBR REBTHIEE NiEfA
FIEEEREZH ?E’E JRAE % — BRAZEH—
FOTEBBEE %54 #2,177
Listed available-for-sale investment Listed equity N/A  Level 1 Quoted prices in an N/A
securities active market
in the PRC -
approximately
24,840
EmAfRHERE RPEEHZ TER F-Ef RNERmSZRE NER
RAE % -
424,840
Derivative financial liabilities N/A Liability - Level 3 Binomial Model - volatility, Volatility and effective
classified as convertible bonds approximately time to maturity, applicable interest rate
payables in the consolidated statement 13,872 stock price, risk free rate,
of financial position effective mterest rate
REEHBRRENS R R TERA | AFE-113872 E=ER *Iﬁﬂi’*" m JHHE K8 R E B H =
ENSRES 2T KR E ERRE ik
BRFI=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

C.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets/

Fair value as at
ATE

31 December

31 December

7. BT A (&)

C.

Fair value

MBTAZAFEE

(%)

Valuation technique(s)

Significant

financial liabilities 2017 2016 hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs
—E-t% ZE-RF
HBEE/ BHEE TZAZ+-B | TZA=Tt—-H ATEER HERHNRIEGAE EXTAERAAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER THET
2018 Convertible Notes at FVTPL N/A Liability - Level 3 Monte Carlo Simulation Effective interest rate
(defined in Note 35) classified as approximately Method - volatility, time
convertible bonds payables in the 92,847 to maturity, applicable
consolidated statement of stock price, risk free rate,
financial position effective interest rate
REEFIBRARAS AR TER 85— Z=ER FEEERE- IR =
R E S 2 RATEA #192,847 KiE EEHAE - BARE-
Bz ZE - \FABRER ERBHE  BERANE
(% RHE35)
Contingent consideration N/A Liability - Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market N/A
payable in a business approximately
combination 317,628
REBA G 2 BRNFIAKE TER Bff- E-EfR RNERTHZRE TER
#1317,628
Contingent consideration payable Liability - N/A  Level 2 Reference to the profit for N/A
in a business combination approximately the years ended 31 December
170,552 2016 and 2017
REBE G 2 BRHIAKE BfE- TER F-ER 2EBE_TEFR TER
#170,552 —Z—tF+ZA=1+—H
IEEERA
Provision for financial guarantee Liability - N/A  Level 3 Probabilities of occurrence of Default rate, recovery rate
approximately default incidents and the and risk free rate
217,843 potential losses upon the
occurrence of such incidents
R ERER BfE- TER FZER  BEEOSMHMRRMRAEE BRE EYRER
£217,843 SEEHRNELRE BERF=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT E (&)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. BBIAEZAFEFE
instruments (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy
APEEBR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-BR E-BR EZER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THx TER
2017 —E—t&
Financial assets HMBEE
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE 54 - - 54
Available-for-sale investment AEPERE 24,840 - - 24,840
24,894 - - 24,894
Financial liabilities BREE
Contingent consideration payable ~ [ERf S AR E - 170,552 - 170,552
Provision for financial guarantee BT 1R & (&
(Note 3) (KtzE3) - - 217,843 217,843
- 170,552 217,843 388,395
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7. BT A (&)

(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. MEIEZAFEE
instruments (Continued) (#8)
Fair value hierarchy
DIEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8  F-ER  $=EM it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET T
2016 TR
Financial assets HREE
Investments held for trading FEEBZRE 2,177 = = 2,177
Financial liabilities HBAE
Convertible bonds payables [ AR B
- Derivative financial liabilities —TERBEE
(Note 1) (K1) - = 13,872 13,872
- 2018 Convertible Notes at —BRAFEFARZZ
FVTPL (Note 2) T\
REE (Kr2) - - 92,847 92,847
Contingent consideration payable ~ [ERf S AR E 317,628 = = 317,628
317,628 - 106,719 424 347

Note 1: An increase in effective interest rate used in isolation
would result in an increase in fair value measurement of
the derivative financial liabilities, and vice versa. As at 31
December 2016, a 5% increase/decrease in effective interest
rate and holding all other variables constant would increase/
decrease the carrying amount of the derivative financial

liabilities by HK$188,000/HK$189,000 respectively.

An increase in volatility used in isolation would result in an
increase in fair value measurement of the derivative financial
liabilities, and vice versa. As at 31 December 2016, a 5%
increase/decrease in volatility and holding all other variables
constant would increase/decrease the carrying amount of the
derivative financial liabilities by HK$964,000/HK$818,000
respectively.

et : FTE 2 B A B I8 LT 5 SR ST B 75 A
BZRAFEFEEN RZIHK - RZFE—RF
T=A=+—8 &R FIE LA, TFES% - i
FEEMGES R TE  FERITEMERIEZ
BREIE 5 548 11, 188,000 7T,~189,000
BT e

BTEARZ KI8ERB FHSERITENERAES
ATEABIEN K2 IR = F—ANF+=
A=+—H & EEH"TIHE5% MHAEHE
BB IF T BT B &2 BREE
23 BII1E #1136 4°964,000% 7T 818,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

C.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Note 2:  As at 31 December 2016, an increase in effective interest
rate used in isolation would result in a decrease in fair value
measurement of the 2018 Convertible Notes at FVTPL, and
vice versa. A 5% increase/decrease in effective interest rate
and holding all other variables constant would decrease/
increase the carrying amount of the 2018 Convertible Notes
at FVTPL by HK$12,000/HK$10,000 respectively.

Note 3: As at 31 December 2017, a decrease in default rate used in
isolation would result in a decrease in fair value measurement
of the provision for financial guarantee. A 5% decrease in
default rate and holding all other variables constant would
decrease the carrying amount of the provision for financial
guarantee by approximately HK$10,892,000.

As at 31 December 2017, an increase in recovery rate
used in isolation would result in a decrease in fair value
measurement of the provision for financial guarantee. A
5% increase in recovery rate and holding all other variables
constant would decrease the carrying amount of the provision
for financial guarantee by approximately HK$10,892,000.

As at 31 December 2016, the contingent consideration
payable represent the fair value of the Second
Tranche Consideration (as defined in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements). The fair value of the
contingent consideration payable as at 31 December
2016 amounts to HK$317,628,000. As at 31
December 2016, as the Guarantee Profit (as defined
in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements)
has been achieved, the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable represented the market value
of the Second Tranche Consideration (as defined in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements) on
31 December 2016. Therefore the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable was determined
based on a published price quotation available on the
Exchange and was classified as Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Other than disclosed above, there was no transfer
between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BT HE (&)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. MEIEZAFEE
instruments (Continued) (#8)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FEZEBRAFETEZEH K
measurements
2018
Contingent Convertible Derivative  Provision for
consideration Notes at financial financial
payable FVTPL liabilities guarantee Total
BATETA
BEz
—E-N\f TERE
ENSARKE FTRREE 8 BEEREE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT TBT TBT TBT TBT

At 1 January 2016 R-F—~F—HA—H 315,740 - 55,018 - 370,758
Transfer out of level 3 BHEZER (315,740) - - - (315,740)
Extension of 2017 ER-Z—tF

Convertible Notes Il AARREI = - 14,736 = 14,736
Addition NE - 92,954 - - 92,954
Fair value change ATEZS - (107) (55,882) - (55,989)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE

+-A=t+—-H - 92,847 13,872 - 106,719

Exchange realignment S - - - 12,776 12,776
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries W& Kt B 2 B {3 - - - 208,981 208,981
Settlement He - - - (3,914) (3,914)
Conversion of 2018 Convertible Notes ~ E#.=F — \ Fr[# K ElE - (31,111) - - (31,111)
Early redemption of 2018 Convertible  1€AIEEI —F— /\&E

Notes RREE = (62,980) = - (62,980)
Gain on redemption of 2017 Convertible 2| E - —+4F

Notes Il upon maturity HRREEI s - - (13,872) - (13,872)
Gain on early redemption of 2018 RABE-Z—-N\F

Convertible Notes ARRE 2 Ka - (5,003) - - (5,003)
Change in fair value NTEEE = 6,247 = = 6,247
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF

+-A=+—-H - - - 217843 217843
Of the total gains or losses for the year ended FPAGREBE REMEE KGR ZE
31 December 2017 included in the consolidated E_E—tF+-_A=+—HI#F
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive JE Y 25 =X &5 18 48 %8 #96,247,000/8
income of approximately HK$6,247,000 (2016: 7t (= Z — 74 : 107,000/ 7T ) £ 7%
HK$107,000) relates to 2018 Convertible Notes at —E—+F+-A=+—HEQAFE
FVTPL held as at 31 December 2017. FFABR T N\FABRREER
o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Of the total gains or losses for the year ended
31 December 2016 included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$55,882,000 relates to
derivative financial liabilities held as at 31 December
2016.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, “Steel structure
engineering and installation” became a new operating activity
of the Group and it is separately assessed by the CODM.
Therefore, it is reported as a new reportable and operating
segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments areas follows:

a)  Shipbuilding business — provision of shipbuilding
services under shipbuilding construction contracts
and operated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

b)  Trading business — provision of trading of electronic
appliance and operated in Hong Kong.

c) Finance leasing business — provision of direct finance
leasing, sale and leaseback, advisory services and
provision of factoring services in the PRC.

d) Intelligent car parking and automotive device business
— manufacturing and sales of car parking equipment,
investment, operation and management of car parks
and electronic automotive devices in the PRC.

e)  Steel structure engineering and installation —
manufacturing and selling of steel structures and
fittings for ship, marine equipment, mining equipment,
ro-ro equipment, ship, bridge and building steel
structure in the PRC.

8.

ko EHER (&)

ABME AREREEFEMBEHRSER
FWARE BB D 2 A 2R E ) BRI
T.

a) MMAREXB-HETEARKMNE
([HhE ) R IRIBEM & KR A A
SUERRF

b) EBRZXB-HEBEKEETEMHES
E N

c) MEMEXK-GEPRREHEE/ME
HAE -E%RMAE - BMRS &R ERE
1B AR 7% ©

d BEEFERAEEFES- EAEPI}E
HEERBENEERHE KE B
%*%E%i%%&mﬁﬁ—?ﬁﬁo

e) MAEBIREMLZE -NHERENRH
EH RSB R FUBRE R
BRE RERBARMM BRR
SRR s o
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=ZF—t &+ =B =+ —HILtFE

8. WEkoHMESR (&)

Pk TG S E 3

AREEZA 2
EENMTIT -

HREEDEE D 2 Wam K

BE_ZF-—+tHF+-A=1+T—-HLLFE

Intelligent car Steel
parking and structure
Finance  automotive  engineering
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation  Elimination Total
BEFE
MrigE REHE RAEETF HERIR
% EREH % % k&% i b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn Thn THEx TEn Thn TR
Segment revenue AHRE
- External sales —HNPiEE (78,989) 26,166 615 120,427 281,019 - 349,238
- Inter-segment sales -DHREE - - 5,857 14,077 - (19,934) -
Total segment revenue AR AE (78,989) 26,166 6,472 134,504 281,019 (19,934) 349,238
Segment result PHEE (538,213) 130 (29,939) (79,472) 3,779 (643,715)
Unallocated other gains and losses A& E iz KRB R 14,303
Unallocated other income RAMEMBA 877
Gain on seftlement of contingent BRI ENHARE 2 Mz
consideration payable 39,704
Change in fair value of convertible  FE Rk EH 2
bonds payables ’AWEH@ (6,247)
Change in fair value of investments ~ B{EEERE 2 ATFELE
held for trading (143)
Change in fair value of REMEL D TER
investment properties 1,730
Gain on early redemption of REBEEMTARES .
convertible bonds payables Wi 5,003
Gain on redemption of convertible 72 385 FE 1 & f T #3k
bonds payables upon maturity EHz s 13,872
Share of profit of associates HMEEEE DR m 1,692
Unallocated corporate expenses RARZARRY (21,309)
Unallocated finance costs RAEZBERK (29,415)
Loss before tax BRERER (623,648)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WEkoHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEUNB RS (F)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HIEFE
Intelligent car
parking and
Finance automotive
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device
business business business business Elimination Total
S {o
frdnglE HERE RAEET
£% B5%% 2% 2% ikic 6]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL TEL THL FHT T
Segment revenue AR
- External sales —NPEE 154,220 51,124 1,420 210,549 - 417,313
— Inter-segment sales -DHREE - 14,885 7,850 57,013 (79,748) =
Total segment revenue panail €kl 154,220 66,009 9270 267,562 (79,748) 417313
Segment result PHPEE (321,284) (15,359) (14,548) (49,749) (400,940)
Unallocated other income AAEEBBA 1,09
Unallocated other gains and losses ROBEMYEREE (25,066)
Change in fair value of contingent ERHAREZ
consideration payable ATEES (1,888)
Change in fair value of investments FHEEEREZ
held for trading ATEES 225
Change in fair value of convertible ERmakES 2
bonds payables ATEES 55,989
Change in fair value of BV E AN
investment properties (211)
Share of profit of associates HEEEE DR & 14,277
Share of profit of joint ventures MEBBEE LR 52,206
Unallocated corporate expenses L WAL (24.934)
Unallocated finance costs KA ZBERKA (37,156)
Loss before tax BB ATER (366,399)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment result
represents the profit earned by (loss from) each segment
without allocation of certain other income, certain other gains
or losses, change in fair value of contingent consideration
payable, change in fair value of investments held for trading,
change in fair value of convertible bonds payables, gain on
settlement of contingent consideration payable, change in
fair value of investment properties, gain on early redemption
of convertible bonds payables, gain on redemption of
convertible bonds payables upon maturity, certain finance
costs, share of profit of associates, share of profit of joint
ventures and certain corporate expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

8. WamKkaoHESR (&)

THMEERAE

AEBRAZBREEENTHEDZEENR

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: BESTWT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Assets BE
Segment assets D EPEE
— Shipbuilding business — MM R E TS 614,424 813,180
— Trading business —B 5% 17,837 8,069
— Finance leasing business —HEREER 180,246 221,667
— Intelligent car parking and automotive —HBEEFEER
device business REE ¥R 756,908 693,651
— Steel structure engineering and installation —MEBTIRERETHE 1,019,399 -
Total segment assets DEEEER 2,588,814 1,736,567
Pledged bank deposits, bank balances and BRI RITEH
cash and restricted cash FIR& AKX R AIIR € 15,524 195,785
Interests in associates REEE N B 2 249,919 192,706
Interests in joint ventures RELDLEZEDR 485,980 527,461
Investment properties KEYE 25,104 15,745
Amount due from an associate & Wk — Bt & R Bl 5k 1B 10,910 7,215
Unallocated corporate assets APBZAREE 79,503 4,128
Consolidated assets LEEE 3,455,754 2,679,607
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities nEHEE
— Shipbuilding business — P RARLIE E TS 2,098,246 1,773,558
— Trading business — B 5% 17,748 8,029
— Finance leasing business —EREER 574,063 523,207
— Intelligent car parking and automotive —BEEFER
device business REETFEK 374,419 194,430
— Steel structure engineering and installation —MEBTRERTHE 711,663 =
Total segment liabilities DEPEEETE 3,776,139 2,499,224
Convertible bonds payables JE {5 AT $R % 1 148,965 348,879
Contingent consideration payable RS ARE 170,552 317,628
Deferred tax liabilities EENIE A R 106,971 86,071
Amounts due to associates JFE ST Bs R B) FRIE 15,159 877
Unallocated corporate liabilities VN A/NETN= 134,098 31,680
Consolidated liabilities meatE 4,351,884 3,284,359
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=—Z—+tF+=-A=+—HILtFE

8. 8. WaEKkoHESR (&)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interests in associates, interests in joint ventures,
investment properties, certain other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
restricted cash, investments held for trading, amount
due from an associate, tax recoverable, and certain
corporate property, plant and equipment; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than convertible bonds payables, contingent
consideration payable, deferred tax liabilities, amounts
due to associates, amounts due to directors, tax
liabilities, and certain other payables and accruals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 E—Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WmkoiHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information Hitt o ZER
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tH+-A=1+—HLFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment result or ESREENSHEERTAZSREN
segment assets: e

Intelligent car Steel
parking and structure
Finance  automotive  engineering
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation  Unallocated Total
BERE
HMEE HEHE RAEET HERIR

B EAEER %% % k%% RIE &
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

Additions to property, N ER B

plant and equipment 72 - 4 20,473 150,337 1,639 172,525
Additions to property, plant and WiEMRB A RMEER

equipment arising through N5 BEREERE

acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 210,270 - 210,270
Additions to prepaid lease payments  WEEH B A AIFTE £ 4

arising through acquisition of BENRERELEMN

subsidiaries - - - - 62,342 - 62,342
Additions to intangible assets WiEMB A RMEER

arising through acquisition of BREEEM

subsidiaries - - - - 36,276 - 36,276
Change in fair value of contingent e HEJZWﬂEE’\J”H—‘ﬁ

consideration payable - - - 5,081 - - 5,081
Depreciation of property, %% BRE Rk E e

plant and equipment 38,804 - 112 2,902 17,863 652 60,333
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments JE/70 & 7B & 8 7,232 - - 251 1,171 - 8,654
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEER - - - 39,484 1,887 - 41,371
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HENE BRE Rk

plant and equipment (W) B8 (225) - - 19 490 - 284
Foreseeable losses (included penalties  BEESMi st A

due to the Delay) recognised in (nJr/\LF/ HAAR
respect of additional estimated costs F
(included in shipbuilding contract

cost and recognised as cost of sales)  (FFREE:E 2 Ei3k)

(Note 5(b)(i) (Hiasm)i) 52,156 - - - - - 52,156
Impairment loss recognised in REVEERRL

respect of intangible assets HEBE - - - 16,925 - - 16,925
Impairment loss recognised in BEBRAZNEER

respect of goodwill - - - - 40,771 - 40,771
Finance costs BERA 85,292 - 26,479 10,518 21,787 29,415 173,491
Goodwill arising through acquisiton ~ WEHBARIFEEZ

of subsidiaries mE - - - - 86,488 - 86,488
Other income Hipl A 776 - 11 13,634 11,522 877 26,820
Other gains and losses Hipls kSR (7,081) - - (165) 3,746 14,303 10,803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=ZF—t &+ =B =+ —HILtFE

Year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)

BE—

(%)

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WaEKkoHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information (Continued) HittpEFR (&)

E-tHF+-A=+—-HLLFE

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in EHRITEZLERKREEESED
the measure of segment result: HEERTETAZESTENAT
Intelligent car Steel
parking and structure
Finance  automotive  engineering
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation  Unallocated Total
B2fE
MRRE HEHE RAEEF HERIR
%  EREH £% £% RZ# FAR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhx FER Thn FEn TER Thn FhR
Interest income M ERA (115) (1) (20) (55) (684) ) (877)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) B EE (W) 706 (1,482) - 1,099 4 (16,181) (15,854)
Share of profit of associates PMEEEE DR a8 - - - - - (1,692) (1,692)
Change in fair value of convertible ~ FEf ATk % 2
bonds payables AT EZE - - - - - 6,247 6,247
Additions to interests in associates ~ FABEE N A Z N - - - - - 82,800 82,800
Change in fair value of investments ~ B{EEERE 2 ATFELH
held for trading - - - - - 143 143
Gain on settlement of contingent & fTRAKE 2 Yz
consideration - - - - - (39,704) (39,704)
Gain on early redemption of RABEESARESR
convertible bonds payables W - - - - - (5,003) (5,003)
Gain on redemption of convertible  ZI B EIEM AT AR ER 2
bonds payables upon maturity Wiz - - - - - (13,872) (13,872)
Loss on disposal of HERENEZFR
investment property - - - 224 - - 224
Addition to investment properties  AEREME - - - 7,660 - - 7,660
Change in fair value of RENEZATEED
investment properties - - - (1,730) - - (1,730)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—MBENmZER - - - - - 1,215 1,215
Loss on disposal of investments LEREEEREZER
held for trading - - - - - 149 149
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. W&EKkDHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information (Continued) Hittp#&ER (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"E+-_A=+—HILFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment result or STENSEEXDBEERTAZESEN
segment assets: e
Intelligent car
parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device
business business business business  Unallocated Total
B2
i sE BEHE RAEET
ES UL ES =% i Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR THT THT THL T
Additions to property, REME BE R
plant and equipment 6,066 - 23 40,500 704 47,293
Addition to prepaid lease payments T € FIAEE M - - - 11987 - 11,987
Depreciation of property, nE BERXEZTE
plant and equipment 50,548 - 102 1,895 388 52,933
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE{7E S Z18 & 3 7,090 - - 242 = 7332
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEEESR - - - 39,840 - 39,840
Loss on written-off of property, WENE BERXEEE
plant and equipment 18 - - 18 - 36
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BE Rk s
plant and equipment (463) - - - - (463)
Foreseeable losses (included penalties Zt&EIMEETAX A
due to the Delay) recognised in (FIABHAEORAR
respect of additional estimated costs B AHERR)
(included in shipbuilding contract mERZ IR AEE
cost and recognised as cost of sales) (5t REFERR 2 Sizk)
(Note 5(b)(i)) (Hia£500)0)) 52,061 - - - - 52,061
Impairment loss recognised in respect SL#1% - MR kR EMER
of property, plant and equipment HEEE 66,828 - - - - 66,828
Impairment loss recognised in HEFERFEMERLZ
respect of trade receivables HERBE - - - 844 = 844
Impairment loss recognised in FEMEYFIBMER L
respect of other receivables HEBE 9,177 - - = = 9177
Impairment loss recognised in HBAEEFEMER
respect of prepaid lease payments  H{EEE 18,766 - - - - 18,766
Impairment loss recognised in REEMBERZAESE
respect of goodwill - - - 64,483 - 64,483
Finance costs AEKA 89,593 - 8,023 1,552 37,1% 136,324

PEETEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in
the measure of segment result:

8.

ko EHER (F)

Hft o HE#R (F)

BE-T—AF+-A=+—AILEE

THRRTEZLERREBEAED R

EERYEFAZEENAT

Intelligent car

parking and
Finance  automotive
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device
business business business business  Unallocated Total
BERHE
fRE BEME RAEET
% B5%K E3) £5 B h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TET FHL FHL
Interest income FERA (534) - (27) (535) (3) (1,099)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) EHEE (Wa) 6,693 1,585 = (604) 17474 25,148
Share of profit of associates PEBERR 2R - - - - (14,277) (14,277)
Share of profit of joint ventures PEEELE R - - - - (52,206) (52,206)
Change in fair value of Rk ER AT EE
convertible bonds payables - - - = (55,989) (55,989)
Additions to interests in associates ~ FEEE A 7] Z R = = = = 84,155 84,155
Additions to interests in joint ventures A &4 % Z N - - = = 311 311
Change in fair value of investments  H{EEERE 2 AT EE
held for trading - - - - (225) (225)
Change in fair value of contingent BN AREBZ ATER
consideration payable - - - = (1,888) (1,888)
Addition to investment properties  RBERENE - = = 16,386 = 16,386
Change in fair value of RENEZ N TEEE
investment properties - - - (211) = (211)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. W&EKkDHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information HEER

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, Hong Kong, AREB 2 EZBAURTRE - -FF 2B R
Germany and Northern Europe. BX o

Information about the Group’s revenue from external BEAAREE 2 INBE PR ER AR T
customers is presented based on the location of customers. M AEEZY -FREAEEERBEE
Information about the Group’s non-current assets (A7 TEBRIN) BRI A B EFTEH (2 AR
(excluded financial instruments) is presented based on the 2o

geographical locations of the assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
Year ended 31 December at 31 December
BEZE+-A=1+—8H R+=—HA=+—Hz
LFFEZIMBEF W IRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016

—R—tF | T AF | ZF-tE | T AF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THR| TER| FHE| TER

Germany = (78,989) 151,429 - =
The PRC s 396,866 214,760 | 2,048,994 1,609,923
Hong Kong BB 26,166 51,124 2,045 980
Northern Europe 1t Bk 5,195 = - =

349,238 417,313 | 2,051,039 1,610,903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

ko EHER (F)

EBEEREFZEHN

RERFERAEASEAWZEAI0%
BERPzWaEmT

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TABT
Customer A* BB A 96,426 -
Customer B* ZFB* 65,625 =
Customer Ct =2 Cl 79,937 101,982
Customer D? = FED? N/ATiE 3 51,124

L MR BLE RS U

! Revenue from shipbuilding business

2 EEES TG

2 Revenue from trading business 5 seqt B
s The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% if the total BT AR BB 10% M L
revenue of the Group B o e A
& Revenue from steel structure engineering and installation BB IRRZERG NS
OTHER INCOME 9. HftslftA
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Consultancy income EA R YA 8,853 =
Government grants BB & 1,996 9,313
Rental income S ON 9,428 =
Sales of scrap materials 55 BERL - 1,632
Interests on bank deposits RITHFRFE 877 1,099
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BE&
plant and equipment 2 W= - 463
Others H b 5,666 2,922
26,820 15,429
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hftt s R &G E
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FEIT
Loss on disposal of property, LEMHE BE&
plant and equipment Bl Ei] (284) -
Loss on written-off of property, WEEYZ - S &
plant and equipment Lz BB - (36)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—E#E AR 2 EE (1,215) -
Loss on disposal of investment property HEREYE L EE (224) -
Loss on disposal of investments held for trading HEFIEEERE 2 EiE (149) -
Sales of scrap materials SHE RER (3,069) -
Foreign exchange gain (loss) b Wz (E548) 15,854 (25,148)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BRI E 5 E WA
in respect of trade receivable R 2 B EEE 77 -
Others EHAh (187) 82
10,803 (25,102)
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. &R A
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Interests on borrowings wholly repayable ERAFATBHEEZ
within five years: BEHE:
Convertible bonds payables (Note 35) FES AT R E S (Y #E35) 24,628 37,081
Overdue interests on convertible ERRRES 2
bonds payables B ER I S 4,782 =
Interests on bank borrowings RITEEFE 57,241 35,598
Interests on other borrowings HigER B 78,109 52,206
Guarantee fee and fund management BREEZERER
fee incurred in connection with borrowings B ERE 8,726 11,364
Others EAh 5 75
173,491 136,324
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. TBHER

2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TFHE T
Current tax BN ER%R 18
— PRC tax — B I8 20,573 10,207
Deferred tax (Note 36) IRIEREIA (H7E36) (23,269) (17,380)
(2,696) (7,173)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made since the Group has
no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for both years.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group has obtained the
qualification of High and New Technology Enterprise from
the relevant PRC government authorities and subject to a
preferential tax rate of 15%. Certain subsidiaries of the Group
in the PRC enjoy the tax holiday and the profits are fully
exempted from EIT for three years starting from its first year
of profitable operations, followed by 50% reduction in EIT in
next three years.

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
declared by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to a 10% PRC Withholding Tax. If
a foreign investor incorporated in Hong Kong meets the
conditions and requirements under the double taxation treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be reduced from 10% to 5%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE ==

12. FREBiE % (&)

REEMEHEREGRS B
Wt RATSIZ BR AL AT B 1R 2 BIRRIA T

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

—EFt_A=+—HLFE

5 N H A2 E

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAIT
Loss before tax R %% Al B5 18 (623,648) (366,399)
Tax at applicable domestic income R 3 A FT1S B R 25%
tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) (ZZ—RF:25%)
FTE 2 BIE (155,912) (91,600)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible M E AR Z L2
for tax purpose MG & 47,191 51,900
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose LTS M S B H ki 2
WA Z RS2 (23,362) (30,967)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERZHIBEEBEZ
Mg E 140,379 58,659
Tax effect of PRC withholding tax AR B TR N A < B TS ?7.5. 4,199 14,850
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REAMBERERRKE 2
operating in other jurisdiction NN R Z%’E 2,078 1,567
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised 8 F %t Bl AR #E iR 2 B TE 65 18 (8,214) (185)
Reduction of income tax under preferential tax  [E i 758 22 1 2 BT 15 54 1 36
treatment (9,055) (11,397)
Income tax credit for the year REEFREHRER (2,696) (7,173)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FAEHE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RXF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T T
Loss for the year has been arrived FABEE R
at after charging: T%|BB %=
Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments EERFETHRAEZHME
(Note 14) (Ktat14) 5,842 5,799
Other staff costs: EME THA:
Salaries and other benefits B Kz A 43 F| 46,367 42,041
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme EREFFEIE R 8,446 7,538
Total staff costs BT RAERE 60,655 55,378
Auditor’'s remuneration ZELED B &
— Audit service —EZ R 2,297 3,035
— Non-audit service —EEZRE 878 539
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BRARI ZFEKAR 297,968 174,847
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7% - 5= & % 37 & 60,333 52,933
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TET A E SR IREE 5 8,654 7,332
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 41,371 39,840
Minimum lease payments paid under operating S EMEBIELSTAL 2
leases in respect of rented premises SEAERMR 7,767 7,847
Shipbuilding contract costs recognised as cost of #&E 2 A 5 & AN 2
sales EMA LKA 350,683 268,260
Foreseeable losses (included penalties due to BLEEIMEFTAC A
the Delay) recognised in respect of additional (FTAZEME LI AR R
estimated costs (included in shipbuilding RAHEKA)
contract cost and recognised as cost of sales) MmiER 2 7] T8 R E#E
(Note (5)(b)(i)) (FF R AER 2 1 50)
(B aEB)Db)I)) 52,156 52,061
Impairment loss recognised in respect BB Z R GRIBMER
of trade receivables BIEEE - 844
Impairment loss recognised in respect B - BB R ERETER
of property, plant and equipment BB E R - 66,328
Impairment loss recognised in respect BT E AR
of prepaid lease payments BB E R - 18,766
Impairment loss recognised in respect BEEEERRZNEEE
of intangible assets 16,925 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill Ht 22 FE R 2 6l B &5 18 40,771 64,483
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B HE i FE U GRIBTERR 2
other receivables VEREY R - 9,177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14.EERITETHRAEMS
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the years, RUATEERRBEERA EMANREER
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong AEBIHECEEREZITHABBE I
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: T
Year ended 31 December 2017 Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-EZ-tETZA=T-BLEE BE-2-AE+t-B=t-RILEE
Contributions Contributions
to retirement to retirement
benefits benefits
Fees Salaries scheme Total Fees Salaries scheme Total
BHEA RIEEH
g A HE 1758 @zt fika e FE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THER TR THER TR L TR L AT

Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Li Ming (‘Mr. L") (Chairman) — FH%4 (5% 4])
(£E) - 1,480 18 1,498 - 1504 18 1522
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong RIREE (TH4EH)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 1,182 18 1,200 - 1,200 18 1,218
Mr. Wang San Long (Note ¢) ToBRE (M) - 321 - 321 - 360 - 360
Mr. Liu Jin AErE - 942 18 960 - 951 18 969
Dr. Zhang Weibing (Note ) FEERT (Ha) - 133 - 133 - - - -
Non-executive director: FunEs:
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen ARERLE (REEE)
(Honorary Chairman) - 1,430 - 1,430 - 1430 - 1430

Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:

Mr. Hu Bai He HiREE 100 - - 100 100 - - 100
Ms. Xiang Siying BEELT 100 - - 100 100 - - 100
Ms. Xiang Ying RALT 100 - - 100 100 = = 100

300 5,488 54 5,842 300 5445 54 5799
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

14. %%&EE?TBIAEEH%

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

(b) The independent non-executive directors’ and the non-executive
director's emoluments shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company.

(c) Resigned as executive director with effect from 21 November 2017.

(d) Appointed as executive director with effect from 21 November 2017.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. Apart from the
Directors, the Group has not classified any other person as
chief executives during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included four directors (2016: four), detail of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 14 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2016: one)
highest paid individual were as follows:

I5. A REHMES

RAFEE AEEzAEGaTWEER
BOE(ZE—RF MNB)EF HEHM
FEEN LI - FAEB—R (ZF
—RNF—R)RSFHMES 2 FHMFIS
T

2017 2016

—E—tF —EREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FEIT

Salaries and other benefits e hEAMmEF 1,260 1,260

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016, the remuneration of the highest paid
employee who is not the Directors fell within the band of
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the five highest paid employees waived any emoluments in
both years.

z=
—RNF+_A=+—HItFE VIE=E
R & = & B 13 31 721,000,000/8 T 2
2,000,000/ 7T &) EB & A -

AREEIY EFER DB R MES
e (ERIMAREB RN IAKE B
HEE) ERBERME -RMEFEA-
BELZ RS MNES RETAME -

BRAT FH 2017
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16. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

16. BIRE#E

AEARBEEARGERERREEE
BIAT I BUE R R IR

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Loss [Fi=]
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AU ESRER R
the Company for the purposes of basic b 5= Wi NN
and diluted loss per share e AEIEFENEE (611,790) (353,156)
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
'000 ‘000
F A T %
Number of shares IR EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AU EESREARK
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss #EE e v Eimix
per share InE 35 13,119,433 11,996,663

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 does not assume i)
the exercise of the Company's share options; and ii) the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds

decrease in loss per share for the year which is regarded as

anti-dilutive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ BERRKRE

Furniture and Motor Plant and Construction
Buildings fixtures vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BF [EAREE AE BEREE EBRIR @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TATT THATT THT TAT

COST RA
At 1 January 2016 R=ZE-—"F—H—H 1,059,443 5517 26,426 203,878 - 1,295,264
Exchange adjustments ERFE (96,570) (664) (1,341) (12,722) - (111,297)
Additions NE 5,376 6,753 850 13,666 20,648 47,293
Transfer E 1,042 - 15 77 (1,134) -
Disposal HE = - (1,766) (1,538) = (3,304)
Written-off HisE = (18) (60) (3) = (81)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-R"F+-A=+—H 969,291 11,588 24,124 203,358 19,514 1,227,875
Exchange adjustments fERAE 147,075 1,062 1,716 3,295 2,598 155,746
Acquired on acquisition of NG IEUNGTES: IN

subsidiaries (Note 39) (H1:#39) 110,200 56 747 93,842 5,425 210,270
Additions NE 126,621 4,703 288 1,016 39,897 172,525
Transfer to inventory (Note) BREEE (M) - - - = (27,633) (27,633)
Disposal HE (641) (25) (1,115) (3,956) = (5,737)
Transfer i 23,241 = = 112 (23,353) -
At 31 December 2017 W-Z—t&+=-A=1+-H 1,375,787 17,384 25,760 297,667 16,448 1,733,046
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2 MERRE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 RZE-—RF—H—H 836,976 3,562 22,716 116,399 - 979,653
Exchange adjustments [EH A% (54,676) (286) (1,230) (7,754) - (63,946)
Provided for the year FREE 32,099 1611 1,819 17,404 = 52,933
Eliminated on disposal o 5 R 3 - - (1,678) (892) - (2,570)
Impairment loss recognised EERREESR 66,828 = = = = 66,828
Written-off HisH - (2) (42) (1) = (45)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-—R"E+=-A=+—H 881,227 4,885 21,585 125,156 - 1,032,853
Exchange adjustments LR 74,125 478 1,586 6,751 - 82,940
Charge for the year ERZH 24,736 2401 1,500 31,687 - 60,333
Eliminated on disposals B 8 (641) (6) (988) (3,703) - (5,338)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—t&+=-A=1+—-H 979,447 7,758 23,692 159,891 - 1,170,788
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—t&+=-A=1+—-H 396,340 9,626 2,068 137,776 16,448 562,258
At 31 December 2016 R-E-—R"F+-A=+—H 88,064 6,703 2,539 78,202 19,514 195,022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2=Z—+t &+ =B =+ —HILtFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ BENSE (E)

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term
of the lease, or 5%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 12.5%

Plant and machinery 5% — 25%

At 31 December 2017, plant and machinery with
carrying values of approximately HK$103,708,000
(2016: HK$65,694,000) and buildings of approximately
HK$224,204,000 (2016: HK$83,141,000) have been
pledged to various banks and a financial institution in the
PRC to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 41).

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, with the amount of
inventories approximately HK$27,633,000, the Group has changed
its intention from held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services for administrative purposes to held for sales in the ordinary
course of business. Thus, the same amount was reclassified from
construction in progress of property, plant and equipment to the
finished goods of inventories.

Property, plant and equipment for
shipbuilding business segment

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Directors had considered that, after taking into account the
economic condition and industrial development prospect,
the gross operating loss incurred during both years
indicated impairment issue for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in the shipbuilding business segment and
therefore conducted an impairment review on the carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Eiltx - BE k& (ERIRERIN IR
BREREEUTIFERFERE:

’BF R FEK5%
(B EHAE)

REREE 20%

B 12.5%

B 55 % 1 2% 5% —25%

R—ZE—+E+_A=+—H - BM@E
f549103,708,000/8 L (=& — /XN F :
65,694,000/ T ) 2 & B & # 25 A &
#9224,204,000%8 70 (= F — N F ¢
83,141,000% 7T ) 2 BFEEF THEZ K
MITR—REBEE UERASEEE
(MF7E41) °

ffet: RBET—tF+t-A=+—HLEFE e
##27,633,0008 T2 FEM 5 - AREE HE
FERNTHABG  EERBRERKRBEZ
EREESHER —REBKBRZTHE - Bt
ZERRTBEEYE BERREERTE
ENDEETR MM

MAMBEXRB LB 2YE BER
&

BE_Z—tHFEK-_FT-—XE+=A
=+—H M:EE : %%ﬁ‘“%)‘gﬁ%@ (EDIN
TRERARR®G RAXNMEFERNEE

HYAS & B 1R AR R RS AN 5 s AR %ﬁﬁk
DESZ W B R AR ER R
LEE - BE RR ﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂzﬁﬂ@
Ry o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment for
shipbuilding business segment (Continued)

The Directors appointed an independent professional valuer,
BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI Appraisals”), an independent
professional valuer not connected to the Group, to perform
a valuation on the property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2017 and 2016. No impairment loss was
considered necessary as the recoverable amount based
on the valuation report issued by BMI Appraisals, which
exceeded the aggregate carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2017. Impairment
losses of approximately HK$66,828,000 on property, plant
and equipment was considered necessary as the carrying
amount of the assets as at 31 December 2016 exceeded the
recoverable amount based on the valuation report issued by
BMI Appraisals. The value-in-use calculation is based on a
pre-tax discount rate of 16.35% (2016: 16.92%) and cash
flow projections prepared from financial forecasts approved
by the management of the Group, taking into account the
current economic condition and operation of shipbuilding
industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales, gross margin and relevant
facts and circumstances related to the Group’s current
situation. Such estimation is based on the management'’s
expectations about the Group's shipbuilding business.

Property, plant and equipment for steel
structure engineering and installation
segment

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$132,126,000 was
recognised by the steel structure engineering and installation
business which represented the fair value of property, plant
and equipment of a former related company used to settle
the amount due from this former related company to the
Group (Note 49).

17. % - BER&HE (&)

MMSERB S 2WE BER
= (&)
EEZEBEVERMGEMTNBENESR
IRAR (TR - R EAREE L HEERE
ZBYBXGEM R _F—FR=F
—RETZA=T—HAZYE -BERR
EETHE - REPNABE L NG ER
ERGL ARV EEE QY TS E )i -
E—+tF T A=t BZBKRHEE &
ZRENEFHRMERE - REDNAE
ZHNHERS EER_T—AF+=
A=+—HAZzKREEBBAAIKLOSE &
ZEBELERYE BE MR ERME
J5518466,828,000/8 7T * (£ BEERZEERH
AT B3R %£16.35% (ZF — 7/ F :16.92% )
MASEEEEE 2 MBRAMERZ
BeRnERAFE Lt RRTEBERR
FMEMmEz 2B - EREEAEZHEMT
ERFERERA/MELETEH 215
FEHER ENEUMERAEERR
ZHEBEERER -ZEATNEEEY
AEBEMMREXEG 2 RRAEE-

HERIERZEIB2UE
=& ]

REBEE—ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HIFE-
MEBTERTEERERYE BE R
& HE#132,126,0007% L5 AT RAE A R AR
BEMBEARENAEBRENDE -
B KA A TFE (HE49) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=—"ZE—t+tF+=-A=+—HILtFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ BENSE (E)

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment for steel
structure engineering and installation
segment (Continued)

Applications for property ownership certificates of certain
buildings have still in progress and these property ownership
certificates had not been issued by the relevant government
authorities at 31 December 2017. The aggregate carrying
amounts of those buildings at 31 December 2017 is
HK$178,385,000. The Directors are of the opinion that the
Group has acquired the beneficial title to those buildings at
31 December 2017, and the property ownership certificates
can be obtained in the near future.

MERIERZEDRZUE

EEE S AE )

HETRFYRAAEERBINEETT

MxENEMEEER _T—LF+_H
=+ BIARERBRAHERAE K=
E—+tHF+-_A=1+—"RH ZFEFZH
AR /178,385,000 L EHR A A
SER_T—tF+-_A=+—HEWE
ZSETFTCESEN BRAMFABES

AR ARSI o

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. ®EW X
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Fair value A¥E

At 1 January w—HA—H 15,745 =
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 & 1,614 (852)
Additions (Note 49(i)) NE (MFaE493)) 7,660 16,386
Disposal HE (1,645) -

Net change in fair value recognised RERERZ
in profit or loss N EEE) TR 1,730 211
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—H 25,104 15,745
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

The Group'’s properties interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
the beneficial interests of certain properties with aggregated
carrying values of approximately HK$25,104,000 (2016:
HK$15,745,000), which were located in Shandong Province
and Shanxi Province through the contractual arrangements
with certain property developers.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2017 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out by Greater China Appraisal Limited
(“Greater China”) (2016: BMI Appraisals), independent
qualified professional valuers, not connected to the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

18. REW= (&)

AEERELLHEERAARDESXHE
RENEERSBENZYERDZRARAFE
BAGtE AR ARIIRIREYE-

REE—ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HBItFE"
AEBEBEREETMERBE/IENL
BB RN ILRE IR 2B TYEN
T s SR EY 525,104,000/ 7T
(ZZ—7%: 15,745,000 7T ) °

rEBMREWMEZ ATEFTE

AEER-_ZE—tF+-_A=+—Hz¥&
BMERAFEDRIEENREL EREED
ﬁIéiﬁ%i%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
Z(NEFE]) (ZT—RF hMBE)
L EEERE

EMEE‘HF@%QEFEE% MEZ &REREKE
HEAEEERAE

PEEITEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REY % (/&)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s AEEBRENMEZAFEFTE
investment properties (Continued) (#&)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information rEER-_ZE—tF+_A=+—HKZ=
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 and E—RNFT_A=+—BZEEVXEFIE
31 December 2016 are as follows: RAFEERERDT
Level 3 Fair value
E=BR AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T 7T
2017 —E—+tF
Investment properties e E7/ES 25,104 25,104
2016 —E-RF
Investment properties TEMSE 15,745 15,745
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the HEz_Z—tF+-_A=+—HBEk=%
years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. —RNE+-_A=+—"HBLFE BMEF=
[EF T YNNG
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of BHREMEE=ERATEFEZER :

investment properties:

Valuation technique Key input Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
fRERM TERAHE EXTABREBAE BRE
Direct comparison Recent sale price of comparable Rate of discount on quality of The higher the discount the lower the

properties, time factor and discount  properties of a range from 2% to 8% fair value of properties
or premium on quality of properties

BELBE AhBEMEZTREE KRRE NEEE2HEENT2%28% MEUS VE2ATEEE
WRMEEE 2SR E
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IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements of investment properties:

The fair values of investment properties are determined using
direct comparison approach assuming sale in its existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence or asking prices of comparable
properties as available in the relevant market.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
investment properties on recurring basis:

rEBMREWMEZ A TETE
(%)

RENMEFE=-ZERAFEFEMER 2
B+ M A BUR

KREWMEZ A FEDERERLBUERR
MENERARIEHE UREAELR
HERESEAMS RS ZAELERY
XWEMEE -

REMEETBRA VAN BRI EDE
2 15

Investment

properties

classified as

Level 3

PEREZER

ZREYE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2016 R=ZZE—R"E—H—H =

Exchange adjustments PE W A (852)

Addition NE 16,386

Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R EZE PR Z A F(EEINEE 211

At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF+-A=+—H 15,745

Exchange adjustments PE N R 1,614

Addition NE 7,660

Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R IBiE PR Z A F(EEINEE 1,730

Disposal & (1,645)

At 31 December 2017 R-FB—tH+=-A=+—H 25,104
PEEISEERAT F®R 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (Continued)

18.

REWZE (&)

FEBRENMEZAFEHNE

(%)

The above net increase in fair value recognised in FHAFEEINFER GEESREME
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HlmkERTHEERNRSHAREEDZE
comprehensive income and is attributable to the change in ZAFEEE -
fair value of investment properties at the end of the reporting
period.
19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. A{HERKE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBZENEERBERE:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Leasehold land in the PRC R B2 E i
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 290,597 308,841
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 & 27,051 (4,133)
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) U B& B & A &) B EE A
(K$7%39) 62,342 -
Additions NE - 11,987
Amortised during the year FNEEE (8,654) (7,332)
Impairment loss recognised BRI EESE - (18,766)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HZEAE 371,336 290,597
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBREMNSITWT :
Non-current asset ERENEE 362,093 283,724
Current asset mENEE 9,243 6,873
371,336 290,597
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017, the Group's certain prepaid
lease payments with carrying value of approximately
HK$221,799,000 (2016: HK$129,870,000) have been
pledged to various banks to secure the Group's borrowings
(Note 41).

Prepaid lease payments for shipbuilding
business segment

Application for land use right certificate of the lake located
in Xiaochao Lake Ruichang City Jiangxi Province (the
“Lake”) with aggregate carrying values of approximately
HK$149,537,000 (2016: HK$148,740,000) was still in
progress and the land use right certificate had not been
issued to the Group by the relevant government authorities at
31 December 2017. The Lake is amortised over its estimated
useful life of 50 years (2016: 50 years) on a straight-line
basis.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired
the beneficial interest of the Lake at the end of the reporting
period, and the land use right certificate can be obtained
upon the settlement of the purchase consideration.

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Directors, after taking into account the economic condition
and industrial development prospect, had considered
that the gross operating loss incurred by the shipbuilding
segment during both years indicated impairment issue for
the Group’s prepaid lease payments and therefore conducted
an impairment review on the carrying amounts of prepaid
lease payments for the shipbuilding segment.

19. AR HEERE (&)

RZE—+tF+_A=+—RH XEER
M 1B #9221,799,0008 70 ( =T — /N F -
129,870,000/ L) 2 & THEMNMEEFIEL
BT ETRIT LWERAEBEEE (M
41) o

MR EXEE I B2ENSHER
b |

RImEmET FEMB ([ZHR)) 8
R HI{E 49149,537,000/8 7T ( — B — N4 :

148,740,0007% 7T ) 2 #1782 + i 5 F #
FHEDENETR R-_T—tF+=A
=+ — 8B ANEEERER BT E
L {E AR - X R BRI G
SHA{E A FHAS0F (= F —/ & 1 50%F ) 8

HE - Z—+t&RK-_ZT—XRF+_-A
=t+—HLFE EELEREEBRRT
XERAISE RERMEFEANEMRD
BEENCEFBEERETASE BN
MERELERERME B EiEmo
2 TE T EFIE 2 BREE (R E R ET o
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19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Prepaid lease payments for shipbuilding
business segment (Continued)

The Directors appointed an independent professional valuer,
BMI Appraisals, to perform a valuation on the prepaid lease
payments at 31 December 2017 and 2016. No impairment
loss was considered necessary as the recoverable amount
based on the valuation report issued by BMI Appraisals,
which exceeded the carrying amount of prepaid lease
payments as at 31 December 2017. Impairment loss of
approximately HK$18,766,000 was considered necessary as
the aggregated carrying amount of prepaid lease payments
as at 31 December 2016 exceeded the recoverable amount
based on the valuation report issue by BMI Appraisals. The
recoverable amount is calculated by comparison approach
assuming sale with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales evidences as available
in the relevant market. Other key assumptions for the prepaid
lease payments valuation relate to (i) the property is sold in
the market without the benefit of deferred terms contract,
leaseback, joint venture, management agreement or any
other similar arrangement; (ii) no account has been taken
of any option or right of pre-emption concerning or effecting
the sale of the property and no forced sale situation in any
manner; and (iii) the proper legal title of the property is in
possession and the property could be transferred freely in the
market at no extra land premium or other onerous payment
payable to the government.

Prepaid lease payments for steel structure
engineering and installation segment

Application for land use right certificates of certain prepaid
lease payments for steel structure engineering and
installation segment were still in progress and these land use
right certificates had not been issued to the Group by the
relevant government authorities as at 31 December 2017.
The prepaid lease payments are amortised over its estimated
useful life of 50 years on a straight-line basis.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired
the beneficial title to those buildings as at 31 December
2017, and the land use right certificates can be obtained in
the near future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

19. A HEERKE (&)

MEREXREIB2ANEER
H (&)

EEREBYEXRAEMPMABBHR =
F—tFERZF-R"FtA=1t—HZ
BENEERRETHE - RIEPMABEE D
MEERS BANEHERER _Z—tF
ToA=+—BzAKE S REEREE
BEFELRERRE - RIFHAFEBHD
BERS BNEEFER T —RF+=
A=+ HZzRKEERar Ko EHE:
WE B 2 F R B &5 18 4918,766,000
BT IR E e BRALEEA EYRRY
ERRARETHEL2ERETH AR
HERE FTERENEERRZ EMEZR
REUTRIBER: (VEBETBLE
WEREGFRE LD  ERHAR 2R %-
B2 fh kS AT A B A T B2 Ml & (i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL 20. &
HK$'000
T T
COST B AR
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and N—_E—RF—H—H"
1 January 2017 ZE—ARFE+tZHA=F+—8K
—E—+F—F—H 188,057
Exchange adjustments PE 58 & 3,678
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) WHEME A Rl BB A (FY7139) 86,488
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tHF+=-HA=+—H 278,223
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 25 RE
At 1 January 2016 N_E—F—H—H =
Impairment loss recognised BERERREEE 64,483
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+=—A=+—H 64,483
Exchange adjustments PE N R (9,176)
Impairment loss recognised ERERREEE 40,771
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—tF+=-A=+—H 96,078
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 R=B-—tHFE+=A=+—8H 182,145
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"F+-_HA=+—H 123,574
Particular regarding impairment testing on goodwill EENEREANN CFIBEERGE B
are disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidation financial R I EEA0 ©
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B EE
Contracted and
uncontracted
customer
relationships Licenses Patents
(Note (a) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) Total
BETAK
KT Z
EFERE Eil) =X
(Kiit@)) (KizEb)) (Htit(c)) @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FET THT
COST B
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—A—H 1,725,615 249,000 - 1,974,615
Exchange adjustments 0 5 & (100,466) - = (100,466)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+-A=+—-H 1,625,149 249,000 - 1,874,149
Exchange adjustments fE R 128,105 (2,224) 2,247 128,128
Acquired on acquisition of WENBARREA
subsidiaries (Note 39) (Htz39) - - 36,276 36,276
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tF
+=A=t-—-H 1,753,254 246,776 38,523 2,038,553
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R&H# 85K FE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 R-E—~"F—H—H 1,725,615 3,320 - 1,728,935
Exchange adjustments ER (100,466) - - (100,466)
Amortisation for the year F N B 5 - 39,840 = 39,840
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=-ZA=+—H 1,625,149 43,160 - 1,668,309
Exchange adjustments ME B A= 128,105 351 82 128,538
Amortisation for the year FENEHH = 39,484 1,887 41,371
Impairment loss recognised BHRRREEE = 16,925 = 16,925
At 31 December 2017 R=B—tF
+=ZA=+-H 1,753,254 99,920 1,969 1,855,143
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tF
+=A=+-AH - 146,856 36,554 183,410
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF
+-B=+—-H - 205,840 - 205,840
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 1. BEEE (&)

Notes: o -

(a) Contracted and uncontracted customer relationships was arising (a) BalH R RTHEFBEAREE —TENF
from the acquisition of INPAX Technology Limited and its subsidiaries +=A=1—HIEFEWKFEINPAX Technology
(collectively known as the “INPAX Group”) Group during the year Limited K& EZ[f1/88 22 a] (#:#8 [INPAXSEE ] ) i1 2=
ended 31 December 2008 and are amortised over its estimated useful LA B AH 5 A (E FHF B 10F Ig B AR A B8 o
life of 10 years on a straight-line basis. The balance had been fully BEERBE—T—FTF+-A=1+—HIF
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2010. BB E -

(b) Intelligent car parking manufacturing licenses was arising from the (b) HEEFEELAEFAIAREZ=-T—HhF+=H
acquisition of Success Capture Limited during the year ended 31 =+—H I FEHESuccess Capture LimitedBX
December 2015. 13 o
Licenses are amortised over its estimated useful life of 6.25 years on a Z T A LAE G5 AT (& A F 6. 25F IH B #R0%
straight-line basis. By o

(c) A patent represented “a type of trapped-rail running gear” was arising (c) EBiERBEE-_FT—+tF1+-_A=1—HIF

from the acquisition of Nantong Huakai Heavy Industry Company
Limited (“Huakai Heavy”) during the year ended 31 December 2017
(Note 39).

Patents are amortised over its estimated useful life of 14.67 years on a
straight-line basis.

EREBEVEERBAAZFHBR

BlErEE) ETHR AR ([FEHET )
oy [—REEBMTERE] (FaE39) -

BRI AR (Gt Al & AFRI14.67F I H A
#i -

T4

Particular regarding impairment testing on intangible assets NR A
are disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidated financial B 75 R MY 5E40 o
statements.
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REtERT 2R
Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as follows: AEBRBE QAR ZESFBOT
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH T
Unlisted cost of investment in associates REEE R BRE Z FE LA 225,901 172,219
Share of post-acquisition profits {5 U B 1% g 25,131 24,654
Share of translation reserve of associates "TE%% ENRZBEEE (3,635) (6,745)
Share of other reserve of associates DL RN R 2 E b EE 2,522 2,578
249,919 192,706
Amount due from an associate i Gl A /NCI B
— non-current portion (Note 1) —3EBNERER > (HTaEl) 6,110 2,775
Amount due from an associate within a year —FRER— Fﬁﬁ?ﬁ%’& AlFA 4,800 4,440
Amounts due to associates within a year — 4 [N B B N B TR (15,159) (877)
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, amounts
due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

Note 1: The balance represented secured deposit for borrowings from

associates (Note 32(iv)).

Details of the Group’s material associates at the end of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

22. Nt E N E 2w (&)

R-E—+F+-_A=+—HE=-ZT—
F+_A=+—H8 EBRUDBEERRR
HAERE 2EREAEREREE-

Wit : EREEIEMERI A N ElC FIAEEES (Mfat
32(iv)) °

AEBETEMERRNBERRZFREN

reporting period are as follow: N
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests/
Principal place Group's effective interest Proportion of voting
Name of entities of operation held by the Group rights held by the Group Principal activities
AEBERERE
HMALY  BER/AREERER KB
EREE TEEENY 4] REELH TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—tF |ZERF [ZE-tF 22 1F
Zhejiang Ocean Leasing Company Limited PRC/PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Finance leasing business
(“Zhejiang Ocean”) HE /R BEHEER
AL RERA AR (THIER])
Zhoushan Ocean Leasing Company Limited PRC/PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Finance leasing business
(“Zhoushan Ocean”)* HE REMEEHR
RLEFREERAAERAE
(AL
Zhoushan Fishing Development Services PRC/PRC 7% 7% 7% 7% Qcean fishery industry and
Company Limited (“Zhoushan Fishing”)* HE/h providing shipyard finance
MLEFREERRBERAE leasing
(TALaz]) BARAERRANBRERE
Zhejiang Ocean Lihe Capital Management PRC/PRC 9% 9% 9% 9% Asset management business
Company Limited (“Zhejiang Line")* HE/ BEEEEN
LB NG EAERERARA
(IhED
Beijing ZhongShou Intelligent Parking PRC/PRC 25.24% 25.24% 25.24% 25.24% Investment and management of car
Management Company Limited HRE parks
IRPEREREERERAT REREREER
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

Name of entities

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

Place of
incorporation/
Principal place
of operation

Proportion of
ownership interests/
Group's effective interest
held by the Group
rEBARHE
AMRIBY/ EER/ AREERER

22. N E N E 2w ()

Proportion of voting

rights held by the Group

Principal activities

REBfE

BEREH TEEERY t 6l BRERLL A TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—+E |22 5F [ZF-tE |22 F
Qiandao Financial Leasing Company Limited ~ PRC/PRC - 25% - 20% Finance leasing business
(“Qiandao Financial Leasing”) (Note c) HE/h BEREEXH
HITEREREERAR ([TERE])
(Hftce)
Nantong Xiangyu Ocean Equipment PRC/PRC 24% 24% 27% 27% Shipbuilding, shipping logistics,
Company Limited (“Nantong Xiangyu") HE/ (Note b) leasing of ports, shipbuilding
ERZEEFEEEREMLT (Hith) financial leasing
(lARzE]) B fsmR MESD - EH
China Ocean Intelligent Equipment PRC/PRC 40% N/A 20% N/A Research and develop intelligent
Manufacturing (Shenzhen) Company HE/ NER | (Note d) A#EA  equipment, automate
Limited (“China Ocean Intelligent (Hiitd) equipment, industrial robot;
Equipment”) (Notes a & d) import and export business
HEE R ERE (R ERAR MESwRE aotRE I
(MHa8akEl) (Mitakd) KRN ELOER
Jiangxi Yihangcheng Port Logistics Company ~ PRC/PRC 36% N/A 36% N/A" Port logistics business
Limited (“Jiangxi Yihang”) (Note a) HRE /B TER TEE BOORER
IAEMEEONRERAH
(DIAEM]) (FiFa)
JiuJiang BaoPu Assets Management PRC/PRC 20% N/A 20% N/A  Asset management business
Company Limited (“JiuJiang BaoPu") HE TER TR EEERER
(Note a)
NIRBEEEERERAA
(Thr#l) (Kizta)
Zhoushan Sea Rent New Energy Company PRC/PRC 20% N/A 20% N/A Technology invention of new types
Limited (“Zhoushan Sea Rent") (Notea) % E1 /# TEA @A of energy business
AR ERER A MR R MR EES
(TALEH])* (Hzta)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

*

Zhoushan Fishing and Zhejiang Lihe are associates of Zhejiang Ocean

22. Nt E D E 2 (4

)

pi

FHLUE R FAT & BT EF 2 & A A

# Zhoushan Ocean and Zhoushan Sea Rent are wholly-owned # AFILIEFE R AFIL G T AT 8 F 2 2 BN B A
subsidiaries of Zhejiang Ocean 7]

Notes: BifaE -

(a) Those associates were newly incorporated/acquired during the year (a) ZEBERARBE=—FT—tFE+=-A=1+—
ended 31 December 2017. B I F AT ML W

(b)  According to the shareholder agreement of Nantong Xiangyu, China (b) REBMABEREZRE GG AAAZEEEEN
Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, an indirect wholly BRAFHEET OFY)BR A AZH EASRIE
owned subsidiary of the Company, has 27% proportion of voting rights 27% 2 E e o
of Nantong Xiangyu.

(c) In January 2017, Merge Limited (“Merge”), the wholly-owned (c) R=EF—tF—F ARAZENBRARIEAE
subsidiary of the Company, has disposed of its 25% equity interest BRE([RE])A—EBLE=FHERERT
in Qiandao Financial Leasing to an independent third party at a SR E25% It m X 1E 49.429,118,0007 IT
consideration of approximately HK$29,118,000. The consideration was ZREEBAEAZETE=TIRTFAEEANH
settled by offsetting the other borrowing from that independent third b 15 B 408 (HTaE49(ii))
party to the Group. (Note 49(iii))

The disposal of Qiandao Financial Leasing is accounted for as a HETFSHEFESEHE &N r] B
disposal of an associate, and resulted in a loss of approximately HE—T—+tF+-A=1+—HIFEREE
HK$1,215,000 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 1B as [ B fth 2 YL 25 2k ERR BT 18 491,215,000/
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December 2017, JCETEAT
calculated as follows:
HK$'000
FHBT
Fair value of consideration received BRREZATE 29,118
Less: Carrying amount of 25% equity interest of B T B R A% R EE
Qiandao Financial Leasing (30,333)
Loss recognised B R E 8 (1,215)
(d) REFPEZEEECRR GE AARRESE

(d) According to the shareholder agreement of China Ocean Intelligent
Equipment, China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has 20% proportion
of voting rights of China Ocean Intelligent Equipment.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material associates are set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with

22. N E N E 2w ()

BREARZUBENHE

AEBTEBRENRZHBEMBEZERR
T TXEHIN M BENRBIERES
7B I 7% s Al R RO B 2 A R 2 T RS
RPHITREHE-

HKFRSs.
Set out below is the summarised financial information for FRAEREAR B E A MEERTE
associates which is accounted for using the equity method. B T3
Consolidated
Nantong Xiangyu Zhejiang Ocean
EpEEL BAWIIEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-t& —E—RE ZE—t& —T—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TEx FET
Current assets RBEE 274,369 = 1,693,329 1,533,470
Non-current assets ERBEE 683,709 = 2,317,917 1,249,206
Current liabilities mBEE (662,012) - | (1,843,457) (1,241,432)
Non-current liabilities ErRBaE (120,000) = (1,291,941) (843,605)

BIRAT F3H 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

22. Nt E N E 2w (&)

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of
associates (Continued)

BREARZUBENMRE (F)

Consolidated

Nantong Xiangyu Zhejiang Ocean
EjEEL FAWILER
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—t& —T-RF —E—+& “T—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FAET TERT TET
Revenue e 331,340 = 236,273 178,878
(Loss) profit for the year FRN(ER) & (61,270) - 93,724 68,760
Other comprehensive (expenses) FREMEME (FY) K
income for the year (2,664) - 10,718 (2,960)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income  FR2E (Fx) L5
for the year (63,934) - 104,442 65,800
Dividends received from associates FREWHE DR ZKE
during the year - - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REEE N T 2R (F)
(CONTINUED)
BENRIZHBERBE (&)

Summarised financial information of
associates (Continued)

LR ERMERN M B RRER 2R
BERR s REELER:

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interests in associates
recognised in the financial statements:

Consolidated

Nantong Xiangyu Zhejiang Ocean

AERIE REMTERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-t% N S “E-t% NS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TERT THT
Net assets BE¥E 176,066 - 875,848 697,579
Unpaid registered capital REGERE R - = 160,479 232,500
176,066 - 1,036,327 930,079

Proportion of the Group's AEE PR REERL D

ownership interest 24% - 20% 20%
Unpaid registered capital by the Group ~ RNEE K& B AR - - (46,860) (46,500)
Exchange adjustments B H AR - = 13 13
Goodwil BE - - 640 640
Carrying amount of the Group's interest ~ RN&EEE a2 REE 42,256 - 161,058 140,169
During the year ended 31 December 2017, Merge, the HEZZT—tF+-A=+—HLEFE &K
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had unpaid NAlz2EMBRARREBREN T T

registered capital of USD6 million (2016: USD6 million) to
Zhejiang Ocean.

8% 2 7t & 786,000,000% 7T (ZF— X
% :6,000,000%7T) °

PEETEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Aggregate information of associates that are
not individually material

22. Nt E N E 2w (&)

BRIFEEBRE AR 2ERER

2017 2016

—E—tF —EREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T T

The Group’s share of (loss) profit AEE DG (E1E) )& (2,348) 525
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AREE S (HEMEE R E

income (expenses) (%) 1,605 (142)

The Group's share of total comprehensive AEBHEE2E (FAX)

(expenses) income Gt L (743) 383
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERZEHERNRZ

interests in these associates M 7 BEREE 46,605 52,537

dme A Al a2
23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REELE R
Details of each of the Group's interests in joint ventures are AEBREELFE 2 SEERFBOT
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHE T
Unlisted cost of investments in joint ventures REELEREZ
FE LT 502,578 502,578
Share of post-acquisition profits, DGR = F - HBR
net of dividends received B U 2 (18) 52,358
Share of translation reserve of joint ventures DhEECEZBERE (16,580) (32,978)
Share of other reserve of joint ventures DEEECEZ EMEHEE - 5,503
485,980 527,461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. AR ER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the REEZSEEEFERNMEMRRZFFBAOT

reporting period are as follow:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests/
Principal place Group's effective interest Proportion of voting
Name of entities of operation held by the Group rights held by the Group  Principal activities
B3k Y rEEFEHE EEfi
ERER TEEERY ERR/ AEEERERLA REELA FTEEY
2017 2016 2017 2016

o Sl il e il s

Zhoushan Investment Fund (Note a) PRC/PRC 78.74% 78.74% 33.33% 33.33% Equity investment using its own

R ER % (Fizta) e capital fund and provision of
management consultancy services
and consultancy services for
setting up enterprises

MRAEERERECETRERE
REBGERHARBARIK L

RAREE RS
Jiangxi Yan Jiang Industrial Development PRC/PRC 20.79% 20.79% 40% 40% Equity investment using its own
Venture Investment Enterprise W/ (Note b)  capital fund and provision of
(“Jiangxi Yan Jiang”) (Hf7£b)  management consultancy services
IR IEL£ERAZFRECE (TAKT]) and consultancy services for

setting up enterprises

MAEEBERERETRERS
RIREE R A MRS A R S L
NGIE e

BRAT F#H 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &%= =

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement entered into between an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and two joint venture
partners on 6 August 2014 in relation to the establishment of a joint
venture company, Zhoushan Investment Fund, the Group contributed
RMB400 million to Zhoushan Investment Fund, which represented
78.74% of the equity interests in Zhoushan Investment Fund. Under
the joint venture agreement, all acquisitions and disposals of significant
investments of Zhoushan Investment Fund require the consent and
approval from all joint venture parties. The Directors are of the opinion
that Zhoushan Investment Fund is therefore classified as joint venture
of the Group.

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement entered into between two
indirect non-wholly subsidiaries of the Company and one joint venture
partner on 18 March 2016 in relation to the formation of a joint venture
company, Jiangxi Yan Jiang. Under the joint venture agreement, all
acquisitions and disposals of significant investments of Jiangxi Yan
Jiang require the consent and approval from all joint venture parties.
The Directors are of the opinion that Jiangxi Yan Jiang is therefore
classified as joint venture of the Group.

Summarised financial information of joint
ventures

The summarised financial information below represents

amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR FBIMIRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE
23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REB DX RER (F)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of joint SELECUBENME (&)
ventures (Continued)

TXEI R ENER
BRE -

Set out below is the summarised financial information AEREZUB
for joint ventures which is accounted for using the equity
method.

Zhoushan Investment Fund Jiangxi Yan Jiang

RLBRELE pIiich pal
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tE —E—RE —E-t5 —T—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET FET
Current assets MENEE 93,755 110,980 243 222
Non-current assets ERBEE 600,000 584,909 51,600 47,730
Current liabilities REAE (84,155) (26,384) - =
Non-current liabilities FERBERE - = - =
The above amounts of assets and L BEEREESE
liabilities include the following: BE TS EE:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 2,231 2,074 243 222
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade FiEIE1 %5 & (&
and other payables and provisions) (FREESR
Hib R FIEREE) (178) (23,752) - =
Non-current financial liabilities ERBIEEE
(excluding trade and other (TBREESHR
payables and provisions) HibEMFIEREE) - - - =
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint
ventures (Continued)

PAN
=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

Zhoushan Investment Fund

EhXIUBERBE (F)

Jiangxi Yan Jiang

RURELE pIiich P
Year ended 31 December 14 April 2016
BEt-A=t-RHLEE Year ended to
31 December | 31 December
2017 2016
BZ | B2 %
“E-tF | BATEAZE
+=AR ZE-RF
2017 2016 =t+-H +=A
—E-t5 “T-RF ILEE =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT TER TAET
Revenue Wz - _ - _
Profit (loss) for the year/period FR/HREF (EE) 453 66,327 3 (94)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) &1,/ B E i 2 F Uz
for the year/period (RA%) 13,602 (3,400) 27,359 -
Total comprehensive income (expenses) R,/ BN 2 HE Rz
for the year/period (Fix%) &% 14,055 62,927 27,362 (94)
Dividends receivable from the joint FR/HRERAEE
venture during the year/period TEIRE 58,236 - - =
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint
ventures (Continued)

The above profit (loss) for the year/period include the

following:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

I8 :

Zhoushan Investment Fund

23. REE ¥ R (&)

BELEzMBENBE ()

b ER/BMREN (BR)BEATSE

Jiangxi Yan Jiang

RLBERE PNiTh =N
Year ended 31 December 14 April 2016
BE+t-A=1+—-HLEE Year ended to
31 December | 31 December
2017 2016
B2 | 822 ~%
ZE—+& | WATWAZR
T=AH ZT—RE
2017 2016 =+-8 +-R
—E—tE “E—RF ILEE =t+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET BT TER TET
Depreciation and amortisation EREH - - - -
Interest income FIEMWA 6 13 6 =
Interest expense HMEH% - - - =
Income tax expense FrEHib X - 24,557 - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

23. RS (

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint
ventures (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in joint ventures
recognised in the financial statements:

m

pii

)

BELRMBENRE (F)

B BER R AR B RRER 2R

BECERENRABEYER:

Zhoushan Investment Fund

Jiangxi Yan Jiang

RLRERE PIich P
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF i Eel of -3 —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FTAET TER THET
Net assets BEHE 609,600 669,505 51,843 47,952
Unpaid registered capital REERE R - = 554,064 512,510
Net assets attributable to owners BENEEZEERE 609,600 669,505 605,907 560,462

Proportion of the Group's ownership AEE A ERERL

interest 78.74% 78.74% 20.79% 20.79%
Unpaid registered capital by the Group ~ ANEBRH AR - - (120,000) (116,239)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ AEE % 7 BREE 479,999 527,168 5,981 293

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
had unpaid registered capital of RMB104,720,000 (2016:
RMB104,720,000) to Jiangxi Yan Jiang.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials JRA R 54,075 21,586
Work in progress E®E 40,670 11,770
Finished goods BURK an 40,243 20,340
134,988 53,696
Note: Bt -
At 31 December 2017, finished goods of inventories of approximately R=ZF—+tF+=A=+—H " #8904,000/ (=F
HK$8,904,000 (2016: Nil) have been pledged to a financial institution in the —NEF ) 2 FEKGE BT R B % s
PRC to secure the Group’s borrowing (Note 41). LERAXEBEE ([:F41) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

25. EZEWFIER BN RE 1R
& HitEWRIEFANRE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/

PREPAYMENT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Trade receivables — non-current portion B 5 WA - IERE S D 1,391 683
Trade receivables — current portion B S EWEIE—REE 5 215,147 59,594
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts R REREE (4,135) (801)
Trade receivables — current portion, net of B 5 W IE — B &
allowance for doubtful debts (0B RERFEE) 211,012 58,793
Bills receivables FE W =& 1,214 =
Trade and bills receivables — current portion B 5N IE R E W=
—mEEH 212,226 58,793
Total trade and bills receivables, net of allowance & 5 & W IE 2 fE U Z % 48 58
for doubtful debts (Note a) (H0F RERBAE) (Mfata) 213,617 59,476
Deposits — non-current portion (Note b(i)) e —IEREIH
(KtaEb(i)) - 66,711
Other receivables (Note b) Efth pE W R IE (Katb ) 280,047 88,427
Value-added tax recoverable A] U [B] 18 71 18 139,633 149,453
Amounts due from the former shareholders of & Uk Fft /& A FIRTEAX B 2
a subsidiary (Note c¢) B (Matce) 264,102 =
Deposit paid for the construction BEfEEEe 22,581 =
Deposits placed to agents and a stakeholder MR —ZM=E#E T
(Note d) TR (K aEd) 26,330 77,002
732,693 314,882
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts T RERBME (23,690) (15,622)
Other receivables, net of allowance for E th fE Y I8
doubtful debts (R RERFAE) 709,003 299,260
Prepayment (Note e) TEIRRIB (Hfzte) 271,458 426,389
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/
PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade
receivables include (1) trade receivables from factoring services with
one year credit period; (2) trade receivables from intelligent car parking
and automotive device business with average 90 days credit period;
and (3) retention receivables for intelligent car parking with range from
one to two years under the respective terms of contract; and (4) trade
receivables from steel structure engineering and installation with 30
days credit period.

At 31 December 2017, trade receivables are non-interest bearing,
except for trade receivables from factoring services with aggregated
amount of HK$4,920,000 (2016: HK$2,331,000) which bear interest
rate of 12% (2016: 12%) per annum.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables, net
of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on contract date/

25. 5 R FIA R B RIB 1R

(\ﬁ/)ﬁi\flﬁEEL&%ﬁ’\IE/i‘Eﬁ%ﬁ’@E

BiaE:

(@ R-F—+tF+=-A=1+—HR=F—~F1+=
A=1—0 XEBEZEZEKFAEEIE1)EK
BRERE (EEHA—F)2EZEWHE :
QEBEEZEESRTEEFLE (FHEE
HIRO0K) 2 B S EWFIE ROV EBEEEE
5 ENR B & (IRIRAERE A AR BB —F
FE)  RDMEELIER TR S ENKHE
(EEHA30K) »

R-ZFE—+tF+=-A=1—H BZEKKBEEL
TatE EREREREZ B BERNEALS
4,920,000/ 7T ( =F—7N4F : 2,331,000/ T ) 1%
FEFIFKI2%:18 (ZF—NF:12%) °

I RIREE K AR T AHZIE 5K
KRR EWREE (B RERE) R SR

delivery date at the end of the reporting periods: AR T

2017 2016
—ET—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
0-90 days 0ZE90K 156,508 56,643
More than 90 days but not exceeding one year HBIAOKR BT BB —F 42,227 1,320
In more than one year HBiE—F 14,882 1,513
213,617 59,476
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the aging analysis of RZFE—tF T —A=1T—HAR=F—AF1=
trade and bills receivables that was past due but not impaired are as A=+—H ' BE@EERREZEZERKER

follows: FEW IR Z BRI ST 40T -

Past due but not impaired
ERHERRE
Neither
past due nor More than
Total impaired 1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90 days
BRBH
@t TRFEE 1£30H 312600 61£90H 90R LA E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+tHF 213,617 172,229 855 11,926 15,958 12,649
+=A=+-—A8
At 31 December 2016 RZZF—RF 59,476 58,984 471 21 = =
+=—A=+—8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=—Z—+tF+=-A=+—HILtFE

S i
25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/ 25. BESBRNRERERERE &
=+ =

DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/ € HibEWREIE FE A FE

A— —

PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED) (&)

Notes: (Continued) Kt : (&)

(a) The Directors considered impairment loss on trade and bills (a) EFRAR=F—+tF+-A=+—HEK=F
receivables that were past due as at 31 December 2017 and 31 —NF+ZA=+—HEBAHZEZEWHE
December 2016. The Group did not hold any collateral over these R EWZ R E B R EE1R - AN E IR
balances. AEERFF A A i o .

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for trade and bills B S ER TR ENEIR R G 8
receivables:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT

At 1 January n—A—H 801 -
Acquisition on subsidiaries U B BT BB 2 ) 3,207 =
Reversal of impairment loss B ERERBE (77) -
Impairment recognised BEERRE - 844
Exchange adjustments IE 5 A% 204 (43)
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H 4,135 801
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables were RIRERIR - KL 2 B 5 R IERENESE 7
individually determined to be impaired. JR1E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/
PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

At 31 December 2017, other receivables mainly represented:

(i) At 31 December 2016, the amount mainly represents the
non-refundable deposit paid to a property developer for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$66,600,000 (RMB60,000,000) which located in the PRC
with the total consideration of approximately HK$145,577,000
(RMB131,150,000). At 31 December 2017, the non-
refundable deposit reclassified from non-current asset to
current asset and the acquisition was still in progress during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

(ii) Dividend receivables of approximately HK$60,083,000
(approximately RMB50,069,000) attributed from Zhoushan
Investment Fund (2016: Nil).

(iii) At 31 December 2016, amount of approximately
HK$26,640,000 (RMB24,000,000) represented the earnest
money deposits paid in relation to the establishment of a
joint venture in the PRC under a cooperation framework
agreement dated 28 December 2016 (the “Cooperation
Framework Agreement”). The details of the Cooperation
Framework Agreement has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 December 2016. The earnest money
deposits were refunded during the year ended 31 December
2017 as the Corporate Framework Agreement was executed.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for other receivables:

At 1 January n—A—H
Exchange adjustments IE X %
Acquisition on subsidiaries W BE B/ A R)
Impairment loss recognised EERRERE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8

As at 31 December 2017, approximately HK$217,800,000 included
in the amounts due from the former shareholders of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$264,100,000 represented the amount under the
counter guarantee which were to be provided by the Vendors of Huakai
Heavy in favour of the Group under the Acquisition to indemnify the
Group for all losses arising from the corporate guarantee referred to in
Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

25. 5 R FIA R B RIB 1R

(\ﬁ/)ﬁi\flﬁEEL&%ﬁ’\IE/i‘Eﬁ%ﬁ’@E

Fitax - (&)
(b) R-FB—tF+-_A=+—H HEKRHIEE

(c)

215

(i) REZF—NEF+=A=+—H ZLEE
FIE5E A M (B 49145,577,0005 7T (A
E#131,150,0007T ) Yk fE iz R R BT 2 1)
2 BERIEGEMN —BEVEHEFZ
T A] 3R I8 1 & #966,600,000/8 7T (A B
#60,000,0007T) - R=—F—+F+=H
=1+—H TAREZZzEHRBEE
B S EERBEAE MEE-—T—t
F+=F=+—HILFEREDEET
’:F °

(ii) JE YL AR 8. #760,083,000% 7T (49 A B #
50,069,0007T) K EAHLUKRELZE (= F
N HE) -

(i) R=ZFE-—ANFTZA=1+—H %
26,640,000 it ( A E #24,000,000T )
EBEBREAH A -—FT—NF+=A
Z+/NHZEEIER HE ([A FIEL
FRFPEKTAEEREEMNZHED
B& - HHEEELBZEZFBERER
ARAHBR=—F—NFET=-A=+N
HZ A& -BIRA IEIER % B #7T
HECHSEREBEE—_FT—+F+=-A4
=T —HIFEERE-

E A ERHTH 2 REREZ S -

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
15,622 6,916
1,697 (471)
6,371 =

- 9,177

23,690 15,622

R-B—tF+-_A=+—H BER—FEH
B 2 A B (AR 3R 2 707 264,100,000/8 T H A
217,800,000/ TT BN E T & 75 5t Yo i F I
FEEBR m A SR A RIEREIERISR - LA
(B 7N 55 [B] g Ar & B B R 2K WY e 4587 4k 23 R HE 1R
FTEER BT B RER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/
PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain vessel buyers have
made progress payments for shipbuilding contracts to three agents and
one stakeholder (2016: four agents and one stakeholder) rather than
directly to the Group. The Group has the entitlement to these progress
payments in accordance with the contracts but the balances are in
custody of the agents/stakeholder to ensure the progress payments
are used to pay for the costs to relevant shipbuilding contracts. The
progress payments held in custody will be paid over to the Group
based on the shipbuilding progress.

Prepayment represents amount paid for purchase of raw materials,
steel plates and vessel components for shipbuilding at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.

Included in trade and bills receivables, deposits, other receivables and
prepayment are the following amounts denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the Group:

usb ETT
EUR BT
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25. EZEWFIER BN RE 1R
(\ﬁéﬂf&@t&fﬁtlﬁ/ﬁﬁ%ﬁ

Ftat - (4%)

(d) HE-F—+F1+-_A=1+—HIFE ETMH
MEREM=ERER—EF=HEE (=F
—NF OERER —AFZEERE) MFEE
AR5 (B 5 A B e 2 4 2 R R » AR B
BRRIEE KK ERE SRR AR a1
B AR E T E - A RERZSHEEHEAR
X ATIEBEEM A RIEL R - ZAEERE R
AR e A S I TN ]

(e) FBERNREHER=ZF—+tF+=-A=1+—HE=
TE—NEF A=+ ABEEMZ B
IR R AERASS RS T 2 288 o

B S RUSRRIERER EE R HRRAN
HEEHE T IIAARE B GE B AN EMEHEZ A -

2017 2016

S —ExE
'000 '000

TR T
24,483 23,450
18,570 17,434




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

26. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 26. HEEEZRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FE T
Listed securities: EmEH:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LT RAFES 54 2,177
27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 27. BB EHEERE
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Finance lease receivables within one year —FREWEEREFIE 10,570 20,348
Less: Unearned finance income R AR R ER Al A (925) (2,245)
Present value of minimum lease payment IR EFRIARE
receivables 9,645 18,103
Less: Accumulated impairment loss B BETREEE (292) (270)
9,353 17,833
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT F&TT
Accumulated impairment loss 2FHREEE
At the beginning of year FH] 270 287
Exchange adjustments PE 5 B 22 (17)
At the end of year FR 292 270
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

27.

28.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection
with finance lease arrangements or contingent lease
arrangements of the Group that need to be recorded as at
the end of the reporting period.

The finance lease receivables bear interest rate at 7.6%
(2016: 7.6%) per annum.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2016: from 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the pledged
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate ranging from 0.01% to
0.35% per annum and were pledged to a bank to secure the
Group’s borrowings (Note 41).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank balances

27.

28.

s EEERE (&)

MEARASERERERFAHARTEE
LHRARERRGEEERREHRARK -

FEWREHERBRENRTE6% (—F
—NE:7.6%)5tE .

EIRMRITFERBITHEBRRK
Be

RITEBRBRTHENXRWIMEF0.01%=E
0.35% (ZZF—7"F :0.01%%F0.35% ) Z 7
B o

BE_T—t+_A=t+—HILFE B
HRRITIF W ERE E B XEBF0.01%E
0.35% 2 M B T IR1T - AR K E
a8 (PaEal)

EERRTEAMRITEHRLRSBET

and cash are the following amounts denominated in FIAR SR B ge ¥ AINEEEETE 2 IR
currencies other than the functional currency of the Group:

2017 2016

—E—tF —EREF

'000 ‘000

T T

HKD BT 1,194 1,024

usbD x5 23 60

EUR BT 1 1
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS FEERARMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 28. BB ITER SBRITERK

BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash are the following amounts which are subject
to foreign exchange control regulations or not freely

Be (&)

EERRITEFARBITERLRECES
THIZIMNEEHIRPIRR KB Bk
Z A

transferable:
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THBT
Amounts denominated in RMB: FIALATIEH
(AAR®E) -
— pledged bank deposits — B FRITFERK 248 =
— bank balances and cash —RITHEBERE 13,761 100,167
14,009 100,167
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 29. At HERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in the PRC KA T2 RN 5 24,840 —

The equity securities are listed in the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in Beijing, the PRC. They are
measured at fair value determined with reference to quoted
market prices. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
change in fair value of approximately HK$9,240,000 (2016:
Nil) is recognised in investment revaluation reserve.

ZEBRAEFESFRFEILREEH/PNEER
NEERAG LM -ERE2EMERERE
EHAVEFE-BE_T—LF+_-A
=+—HIEFE  AFEZ 9,240,000
BR(ZT—RF B ERREEGHFHE
R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZ R HMENRIA
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Consideration payable for acquisition of property, FhiEE ¥ - ME L& EM
plant and equipment — non-current portion FERT 2 B —FEm BN AR 1D 5,337 4,937
Trade payables (Note i) B S RIE (Mfazi) 165,939 70,860
Consideration payable for acquisition of WETENHEERE 2
prepaid lease payments JERTRAE 45,260 41,865
Payable to guarantors (Note i) FERHHE R AFRIR (B i) 746 1,652
Contribution payables to labour union BNIgk#HBEESHK
and education funds 14,278 12,668
Accrual of contractor fees FEET B 16,204 7,135
Accrual of government funds EETRAES 33,466 28,860
Other payables and accruals (Note iii) EmERIBERERER
(Bt aiii ) 539,616 248,187
815,509 411,227
Notes: fffat -
(i) The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based (i) UTFRAFIBRBEEZARXEHAHZZE S
on invoice date or issue date, respectively, at the end of the reporting JERTFER IR & BIR 2 BR IR 7547 -
periods:
2017 2016
—g—t% S BNy =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
0 - 30 days 0—308 22,843 9,315
31 - 60 days 31-60H 6,173 7,439
61 - 90 days 61—90H 17,304 3,730
Over 90 days #B3EB90H 119,619 50,376
165,939 70,860
Payment terms are generally 60 to 180 days (2016: 90 to 180 days). [5}53?/5@ — AR B60E180H (= F — /N4 : 90F
180A) »
Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on ESENTR RN BB RAZEREE
demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

Included in trade payables is the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the Group:

usb e

(ii) The balances represented guarantee fee payable to several guarantors
in relation to their guarantee on the banking facilities and borrowings
obtained by the Group at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

(iii) Material balances included in other payables and accruals are as
follow:

(a) The Group has accrued the land use tax of approximately
HK$44,204,000 (equivalent to RMB36,836,000) at 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$38,404,000 (equivalent to
RMB34,598,000)).

(b) The Group has accrued salaries of approximately
HK$70,819,000 (equivalent to RMB59,016,000) at 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$31,573,000 (equivalent to
RMB28,444,000)).

(c) The Group has accrued the social security fund for its
employees of approximately HK$49,002,000 (equivalent to
RMB40,835,000) at 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$40,206,000 (equivalent to RMB36,221,000). Pursuant to
a repayment agreement signed between Jiangxi Shipbuilding,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the relevant
government authority on 26 January 2015, the amounts
of accrued social security fund should be repaid before
December 2019.

(d) The Group has outstanding principal amount of 2017
Convertible Notes | and 2017 Convertible Notes Il of
HK$52,000,000 and HK$45,000,000, respectively, were
matured and not settled to its noteholders at 31 December
2017.

Ffat - (%)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(&)

30. EZ R H AR =R (&)

HS B I T AR B B
HHEZ AR

2017 2016
Bt —ExE
'000 ‘000

Fi Fi
2,271 1,036

BRRER —F—tF T _A=t—HAR=F—X
F+=A=+—HE FERABTEBFIE
RITHE R ERREZ ERMENKEZ R

B

ST AR M EN IR Gt B2 BARMERIT

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

R-ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H KX%EHF
JE &t 1 1 (& F Fi 4944,204,0007% 7T (18
WA R#36,836,000;T) (ZF—N
4F : 38,404,000/8 L (HHERA R
34,598,0007T) ) °

R-ZTE—+F+-HA=+—H K&
B & 5 3 £ #970,819,0005% 7T (18 &
RA R#59,016,000T) (=ZF—X
4F :31,573,000/8 L (IHERARK
28444,0005T) ) °

R-_E—+tF+-_F=+—H"
AEEBAEESHNNEHRE S
& BB #949,002,000% T (#HE R A
R #40,835,0000t) (=F — N4
#740,206,0008 T (HERARK
36,221,0005T) ) - RIZA 2 7l = E 11 B
R AT P EM BB TS PIR = F
—AFE— A=+ NAFFTZEL
e RESEHARTE—NF+=
FHiEE -

R-FE—+t&E+_HA=+—H Z&£H
—E—tFEARRERIR=-F—tF
AR IR M R EE RS D 5 A
52,000,000/% T &45,000,000/% T * %
EZEO AR EEZRFEARTTRE
& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=ZF—t &+ =B =+ —HILtFE

31. AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS FOR 3. ENEF AN IREME

CONTRACT WORK

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT

Contracts in progress at the end of RMEARZEREH:

the reporting period:

Contract costs incurred to date S FTEE 2 A HIRK A 1,188,365 1,305,511
Recognised profits less recognised losses B MR 0m ARk B FE R ES 18 (635,798) (433,789)
552,567 871,722
Less: progress billings B ¢ SRR (888,736) (888,899)
Amounts due to customers for contract work BREFE&ATER (336,169) (17,177)

As mentioned in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Delay has impacted the Group’s shipbuilding business.

Up to the date of this report, the Group have not reached
any formal agreement with the Two Customers. In order
to deal with the issues surrounding the Six Vessels, the
Board of Directors has established a dedicated task force
to proactively negotiate with the Two Customers, banks and
potential customers.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

32. BORROWINGS 32. 8 &
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,273,581 992,857
Other borrowings HEMEE 1,240,599 1,095,339
2,514,180 2,088,196
Secured B HE A 815,737 554,862
Unsecured 42 4K 4 1,698,443 1,533,334
2,514,180 2,088,196
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable LEEZREERER T HREERE (M
as follow (Note): 5F)
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year R—FR 1,932,324 1,049,146
Within a period of more than one year —F LA _E1B 8 B W F B
but not exceeding two years 309,621 562,242
Within a period of more than two years M DA_E{B A F HI R
but not exceeding five years 272,235 476,808
2,514,180 2,088,196
Less: Amounts due within one year BT — & A R HNE B R
shown under current liabilities BEESE (1,932,324) (1,049,146)
Amounts show under non-current liabilities FIESEREN B EER 581,856 1,039,050
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in FizE - BIBHFRIB TS A B it Flat EE A H R B2 -

the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

32. f8E (&)

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the AEETEEENRBEAENEEBHBMT

contractual maturity dates were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Fixed-rate borrowings repayable: EEBERRTHHRES:
Within one year R—FA 1,472,618 803,446
Within a period of more than one year —F A BB E R 4F 2 R
but not exceeding two years 195,291 409,867
Within a period of more than two years M LA _E1B 8B h 4 B
but not exceeding five years 18,000 159,542
1,685,909 1,372,855

The exposure of the Group’s variable-rate borrowings and the

contractual maturity dates were as follows:

AEEZREENRARESOIIHAMT

2017 2016
—E—+t5F T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHTT
Variable-rate borrowings repayable: AEBZZEEER:
Within one year R—FA 459,706 245,700
Within a period of more than one year —F A HBE R B MR F H
but not exceeding two years 114,330 152,375
Within a period of more than two years M LA _E{B R iR 4 B
but not exceeding five years 254,235 317,266
828,271 715,341
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE ==

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

IR B WIRMIEE

—EFt_A=+—HLFE

32. & (%)

AEEEEZEREANE (TFHESREFTH

contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as FE) 2EEMT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
Effective interest rates: B A
Fixed-rate borrowings (bank and EEMEE RTREMEER)

other borrowings)

Variable-rate borrowings (bank and FREEE (RITREMEE)

other borrowings)

The details of other borrowings are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has loan advances
from employees of approximately HK$1,480,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,232,000)
(2016: approximately HK$2,268,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,043,000)) which bears interest
rate of 15% (2016: 15%) per annum and will be
repayable within one year. The proceeds were used to
finance the daily operation of the Group.

At 31 December 2017,
advances from several independent third parties
of approximately HK$734,632,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB612,193,000) (2016:
approximately HK$701,882,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB632,326,000)). The proceeds
were used to finance the daily operation of the Group.

the Group has loan

The borrowings carry variable interest of a range from
0.35% to 36% (2016: 0.35% to 43.8%) per annum
and are repayable on demand.

0.35% — 36% 0.35% — 43.8%

4.75% — 5.66% 4.75% — 8.03%

HtfEE ZFBWT
N R-ZB—ttF+-_A=+—8"

(ii)

AREEHRBERERERBZERER
#)1,480,0008 T (HMERHOAR
#1,232,0007T) (ZZE—RF: 4
2,268,000/ 7T (& » U}\Eﬁﬁ%
2,043,00070) ) F | &E15% (= F
— N 1 15% )5t E RIBE—FNIEE -
FISREE ARBHALEZ AEK
L&

R-ZE—+F+=-A=+—H &&E
EHRAHBBELE=FREZER
3R 49734,632,00078 7T (FHERLA
R #612,193,0007t) (ZZ—/ F:
#9701,882,000/%8 7t (FHE R AR
#632,326,0007T ) ) ° % 5 FT 15 5018
EARBNAEEAFEEE 25
EERNTTFEHFF035%236% (==
— 7N 1 0.35% F£43.8% ) 2 /2B F| =&
SR RABREREE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 32. 58 (&)

(ii) At 31 December 2017, the Group has loan advances
from one of the shareholders of the Group’s associate,
Zhejiang Ocean, of approximately HK$358,240,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB298,533,000)
(2016: approximately HK$326,779,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB294,396,000)). The proceeds were
used to finance the daily operation of the Group. The
borrowing carries interest of 8.5% (2016: 8.5%) per
annum. Mr. Li, the executive director of the Company
and an independent third party have provided a
guarantee to secure the payment obligations of the
borrowing and are repayable within one year.

(iv) At 31 December 2017, the Group has loan advances
from an associate, Zhejiang Ocean, of approximately
HK$146,247,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB121,872,000) (2016: HK$64,410,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB58,027,000)). The proceeds
were used to finance the daily operation of the Group.
The borrowing bears interest rate ranging from 5%
to 7.6% (2016: from 5% to 7.6%) per annum and
secured by deposit as details in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. The repayment
terms are ranging from 2 to 3 years.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, there was no repayment
on demand clause on the Group’s bank borrowings and other
borrowings.

At 31 December 2017, borrowings of approximately
HK$815,737,000 (2016: HK$554,862,000) were secured by
collaterals as details in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2017, a bank borrowing of
HK$128,897,000 (equivalent to RMB107,414,000) (2016:
HK$119,897,000 (equivalent to RMB108,015,000)), which
bears interest at 5.75% (2016: 5.75%) per annum, will be
repayable on 7 March 2019 and was secured by the entire
equity interests of Jiangxi Shipbuilding (Note 41).

All the borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
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(i R=Z2E—tF+=-A=+—H ' &
EEBEAEEHEARMITEF
ZHEHB—ZRRIREMEZBREARLY
358,240,000/ 7T (FHE R AR
298,533,00070) (ZZE—NF: 4
326,779,000 7T (HHERH AR
294,396,0007T) ) ° FT5 K IBE AR
BNAEBZARLE -ZEER
FEFR85% (ZF—NF:85% )+t
B ARRZATEESTRAER—F
BYE=HEREER UEREER
M REL ZEBEER—FAE
%o

(v) RZZE—tF+=ZA=+—RH &%
EFEEHEARMIEFHRZER
B 4146,247 00076 7T (FEERLA
R#¥121,872,0007T) (ZZF—/~F:
64,410,000/ 7T (FHE RO AR
58,027,0007T) ) ° FT8FIEE AR #
NAEBZ BELIE - ZEERFEFR
RN FE%ET.6% (ZE—7XF: 5%
276% )5t E- W HIEZESER (FI1B
R ERE IS RE M 5E22) - B3R H
FRITF2E34F ©

RZBE—+FR_ZTE—ARF+-_A=1+—
B AEBEWEFEITEEREMEESS

BREREEGK-

R—ZEBE—+E+-_A=+—H &
#1815,737,0008 ¢ ( =& — X :
554,862,000/ 7T ) J4 LA £k 18 I 48 @ {E 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

33. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 33. RERE

HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2016 R-ZZE—X¥—H—H =
Additional provision for the year FNREINE 3,539
Exchange adjustments PE W, 2 (182)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+=—A=+—H 3,357
Additional provision for the year FNEEINEAS 3,998
Exchange adjustments PE W 58 & 173
Reversal of provision B R (3,357)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—tHE+=-HA=+—H 4,171
The Group provides a one-year warranty on shipbuilding REEREMRE—FORENY  WAGHAE
and undertakes to repair or replace items that fail to perform BRBRREZELRIRNIER - BETY

satisfactorily. The provision is estimated based on historical RIR#E (S B RKTE 2 BESUE M 5T ©

data of the level of repairs and replacement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ImE B IMIRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Number of ordinary shares Amount
EBEREE &8
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tFE ZE-RE ZE-tf§ —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each ~ BREE0.05%8 L2 LB
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—B&
+=ZA=1+-H 20,000,000,000 | 20,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 January n—H—H 12,002,758,840 11,957,983,840 600,138 597,899
Issue of shares upon exercise of (T ER RRIERF 1T AR 17
share aptions (Note a) (Kizta) - 40,000,000 - 2,000
Issue of shares upon conversion ~ REBZT—N\F
of 2018 Convertible Notes THRREE (2R
(as defined in Note 35) Fi35) BT IR D
(Notes b and c) (Biztbkc) 163,580,000 4,775,000 8,179 239
Issue of shares for settlement of TR ABEREN S
contingent consideration ARE (Kiztd)
payable (Note d) 1,470,500,000 - 73,525 -
At 31 December RT=A=1+—-8 13,636,838,840 12,002,758,840 681,842 600,138
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) On 15 January 2016, the Company issued and allotted 40,000,000
new ordinary shares to the executive director of the Company, Mr. Li,
upon exercise of the share options by Mr. Li at the exercise price of
HK$0.211 per share.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the holder of the 2018
Convertible Notes converted HK$1,000,000 of 2018 Convertible Notes
for 4,775,000 new ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.2095
per conversion share.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the holder of 2018
Convertible Notes converted HK$32,000,000 of 2018 Convertible
Notes for 163,580,000 new ordinary shares at conversion prices
varying from HK$0.1884 to HK$0.2121.

(d) On 27 April 2017, the Company has allotted and issued
1,470,500,000 new ordinary shares to the vendor upon the fulfilment
of profit guarantee relating to the acquisition of the entire equity
interests of Success Capture Limited at the market price of HK$0.189.

All new shares issued during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 ranked pari passu with the existing shares in
all respects.

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES

(@) Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes I

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible
bonds with the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,000,000,000 (the “2017 Convertible Notes 1”).
The 2017 Convertible Notes | is denominated in HK$.
The 2017 Convertible Notes | carries interest at 7.5%
per annum and is payable annually. The holder(s) of
the 2017 Convertible Notes | may convert the whole or
part of the principal amount of the 2017 Convertible
Notes | into ordinary shares of the Company from the
issue date to the date before the maturity date (on the
third anniversary of the issue date, i.e. 26 June 2017),
at an initial conversion price of HK$0.20 per share,
subject to certain customary anti-dilutive adjustments.
If the 2017 Convertible Notes | have not been
converted before the maturity date (the conversion is at
the option of the holder of the 2017 Convertible Notes
), they will be redeemed on maturity date at principal
amount plus the accrued interest. Both the principal
and interest will be settled in RMB based on a fixed
exchange rate as set out in the agreement.

34. A (#])
ik

(@) R-F—RNF—HATHHA ARRRERAHT
BEFFAEEZITEEFRR 02118 TITEE
BRAETR [7] 3 55 4 3 77 K B #40,000,0008% 37 &
bl

(b) REE—ZT— N F+-_A=+—HItFE —F
—N\FAHRREZEZFEAAELLETR LR
& 170.2095/% 7T #1,000,000/8 7T 2 = F — )\ 4
] 8 % 22 15 5, 12 /54, 775,0008% 3 &8 AR

(c) REEZ=F—+tF+-A=+—HIFE =
T \FRHRREEZ FHHAELIRE (T
0.1884% ;T £0.2121% 7t ) #32,000,000/% T 2
ZT— N\ F AR F B X #2.7163,580,0008% %7
AR -

(d) REZFE—+FEMA=Z++H FREIREKE
44 BESuccess Capture Limited % &5 A% # i %
FilRF 14 1 7 (B0.189/8 7L (A1 B 77 B 35 I B 77
1,470,500,0004% %7 & 3 %

NEBEE-—E—+ER-_FT—~E+—- A
=+ BIEFERETZAEHIROESH
HEBERNZERSEa -

35. B RES

(@ BTUTARES -—F—+
FARRIEI

RZE—WFA=Z++EH &NAF
TITA S 485 51,000,000,000/8 TTHY
RES (2T —EFrRRER
1]) e ZT— L F A MR ERIAET
Pl —T—tFAIRRERIREF
75%H ARG BEWBFGEL T =F
— L F AR EIRIFE AR REITH
REINHBE (BTRAR=BFTZH -
= —+tF/,"A=+/x8)1—H
B2 W E SRR 70.207%8 T (7]
AEHETEEREEAR)E-F
— - F AR E IR IR 2 20k 20D A
CHBARRBEBER - H_F—+
F AR IR Z IR B HA B AT 8 R KR
(BREREEE T —HFErHI
ZRIFEA)  BREEEIZRAS M
FERT A BHE R - AN Rk B IE
F5IBEE FE R A A REEAETS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IS EMRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes | (Continued)

The 2017 Convertible Notes | on initial recognition
was considered as a compound financial instrument
that includes a debt element and a conversion option
classified as an equity element. Also at the initial
recognition, the liability component was measured
at the present value of the redemption amount.
The equity element is presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 18.27% per annum
determined at the initial recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, certain
holders of the 2017 Convertible Notes | had converted
the 2017 Convertible Notes | held by them with
outstanding principal amount of HK$282,000,000
in consideration for conversion of 1,410,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.20 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain
holders of the 2017 Convertible Notes | had converted
the 2017 Convertible Notes | held by them with
outstanding principal amount of HK$666,000,000
in consideration for conversion of 3,330,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.20 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no holders
of the 2017 Convertible Notes | had exercised the
conversion options to convert the 2017 Convertible
Notes | into ordinary shares of the Company.

On 26 June 2017, the Company was required
to redeem the 2017 Convertible Notes | at the
outstanding principal amount of HK$52,000,000 on
the maturity date.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

T e o e R

35. B RES (&)

(@) BATAIRRES -

g+t
FABBRREE (&)
RURERR  — T —tF o=
BRIWR BB SEEE D ko HARE
o m A AR EAE e S IS T A -
BEAN - MR MERE - BEH D ILEE
KB IREFTE - REZD 25 HE
itz TEH@H%,I\%%{%J HT e RIIIR
BRE BEBINERNEEER
BF18.27% °

REE-_ZT—NE+_A=+—A8HL
FE BT T —tFBRRERIZ
A AR BRESR IR 7DH0.2075
THRESEFAENERLBACTER
282,000,000/ T2 —E — L Frl
& Z %154, #% A 1,410,000,0008% & A
AL R -

REE-_ZT—RAFE+-_A=+—AHL
FE %¥_i—tiﬁﬁﬁxﬂf§|z
A AR BRESR IR 7D0.2075
THRESEFAENERLBACTER
666,000,000/ 7T 2 —Z —t Fal#
& Z %154, #% A 3,330,000,0008% & A
AL R -

REBE-_T-—A"FT-_A=1t—HL
FE BE_ZT—+FAIRRERIZ
FAATRELBRER T —tFrig
BERIHBRARR]EER -

REZE—EFXAZTAR KATF
BN B AEE — T —E AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes Il

On 8 July 2015, the Company issued convertible
bonds with the principal amount of HK$200,000,000
(the “2017 Convertible Notes I1"). The 2017
Convertible Notes Il is denominated in HK$. The
2017 Convertible Notes Il carries interest at 7.5% per
annum and is payable semi-annually in advance. The
holder(s) of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il may convert
the 2017 Convertible Notes Il into ordinary shares
of the Company from 8 July 2015 to 8 July 2016, at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.2481 per share,
subject to certain customary anti-dilutive adjustments.
Unless previously converted or cancelled or unless
the holder has previously issued an event of default
notice of repayment, the Company shall redeem on
the maturity date all the outstanding principal amount
of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il at an amount equal
to the aggregate of the outstanding principal amount
plus interest accrued. The 2017 Convertible Notes Il
on initial recognition was considered as a compound
financial instrument that include a debt element and
a conversion option derivative and other derivative.
Also, at the initial recognition, the liability component
was measured at the present value of the redemption
amount. The conversion option derivative and other
derivative was classified as a derivative liability and
was measured at FVTPL at initial recognition and each
reporting date. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 14.9128% per annum determined at the
initial recognition.

35. BT aRES (&)

(b) BITAIRRESF-—FT—+

FARBREEN

RZZFE—RAFEANR  RNAEET
7N £ %8200,000,0007% 7T 2 Al 2 A% {&
HF(ZZ—LFBRBRERN]) - =
Tt FARRERIRE T E

ZE L FAURRERIIRFEN X
75%:T B BAAB¥FELEIF =
T FABRRERIFFEARTR
E-—RAFtANBE_ZE—XRFLA
NB IRV RE S IRARH0.24817%8
T(AIEEETEERBESRAE) S
BRI FARBRERIBARRAA
A% o B FEST AT IE R I SESH SIS
BALREELERENSHEA

B RIAR B R B B 1R M R A
SEBINEFEERD T —t&Fak
BRERINZFBERLRANEE =T
— L FARBERIV L ERAETE
B D MR A TET AR E
fATETREZEEHB IR EoN

R HERE BEDDIRERFKIE
MIREE MR TETARE
T ETESBAITEBBELRYIT
HERE RN SRS B AFERFA
BRIAE -AEHH 2EBRFERY
HHERE L F | E14.9128%5T &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

35. B RES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes Il (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant bond instrument, if agreed
in writing by the Company and the holder(s) of
2017 Convertible Notes Il at least ten business days
prior to 8 July 2016 (“Initial Maturity Date”), the
maturity date of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il can be
extended to a date falling on the twelve months after
the Initial Maturity Date (“Extended Maturity Date”,
i.e. 8 July 2017). On 7 July 2016, the Company
and the 2017 Convertible Notes Il holders entered
into an acknowledgement and confirmation (the
“Acknowledgement and Confirmation”) confirming that
the maturity date of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il shall
be extended to 8 July 2017 and all other terms and
conditions of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il remained
unchanged. The modification is not accounted for
as an extinguishment under HKAS 39 as the terms
are not substantially different taking into account
that the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is less than 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial liability using the
original effective interest rate. Accordingly, any costs
or fees incurred will adjust the carrying amount of the
liability and are amortised over the remaining term of
the modified liability. The change in fair value of the
conversion option up to the date of the modification of
approximately HK$55,882,000 was recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

35. BT aRES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes Il (Continued)

The 2017 Convertible Notes |l after modification
contains a debt component and a conversion option
derivative and other derivatives. The derivatives are
measured at fair value through profit or loss with
changes in fair value being recognised in fair value
through profit or loss.

The valuation of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il was
performed by Greater China. The inputs used in the
model in determining the fair value of derivatives of
2017 Convertible Notes Il were as follows:

(b)

BROTUBRREZ-—FT—L
FHBREEN (&)

— L EURRERIGETAE
RIS M RIR R R ATE TAR
H AT T A - 474 T AR A FEs
AB#HE MATESBRATE
HABRETER -

“ELFARERERIZGETA
EERET EE_T—tFARRE
BISTETAZ R HEELFE R
BABBOT

2017 2017

Convertible Convertible

Notes Il at Notes Il at

7 July 31 December

2016 2016

R-ZE—XRE

R=ZF—RF +=A

tAtHZ =t+t—H%x2

—E—tHF —E2—tF

AR EEI AR E

Share price f&(E HK$0.161 HK$0.216
0.1617% 7T 0.216/ 7T

Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$0.2481 HK$0.2481
0.24817% 7T 0.248178 7T

Contractual life A #94F B 1 year 0.52 year
1% 0.524F

Risk-free rate 428 [ e A1) 22 0.7286% 1.1291%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B % 0% 0%
Volatility A 53.02% 37.34%

No conversation had been made by the holders of
the 2017 Convertible Notes Il during the year ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017. On 8
July 2017, the Company was required to redeem the
2017 Convertible Notes Il at the outstanding principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 on the maturity date.

ZE—tFBBRERIFEARE
BT —RFEF+ZA=1T—BRZ=ZZE
—tF+ A=+ —HILFELE
ETHB R _E—+FE+ANR -
RAWERREBAAER - —+
FABBREEIZHREERNSE
200,000,0005%8 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

35. B RES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018
Convertible Notes

On 6 December 2016, the Company entered a
subscription agreement with Macquarie Bank Limited
(the “Subscriber”) in respect of the issuance of
convertible bonds with the aggregate principal amount
of not more than HK$400,000,000 (the “2018
Convertible Notes”). The 2018 Convertible Notes is
denominated in HK$. The 2018 Convertible Notes
comprises of four tranches with each tranche with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000.
Each tranche of the 2018 Convertible Notes will be
subscribed at a price equal to 94 per cent of the
principal amount of the relevant tranche of the 2018
Convertible Notes. The aggregate principal amount
for each tranche will be deposited into a non-interest
bearing bank account of the Company opened with the
Subscriber which will be subject to a charge for the
benefit of the Subscriber as a restricted bank balance
(“Restricted Cash Account”) without interest.

The Company shall not make any withdrawal from
the Restricted Cash Account except with the prior
consent of the Subscriber. If the Subscriber is satisfied
that all amounts which may be or become payable by
the Company under or in connection with the 2018
Convertible Notes have been irrevocably paid in full,
the Subscriber will release, reassign or discharge the
security asset.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018
Convertible Notes (Continued)

On 15 December 2016, the 2018 Convertible Notes
with principal amount of HK$100,000,000 (i.e. the
first tranche) were issued by the Company to the
Subscriber. Proceeds of HK$94,000,000 were received
by the Company on 15 December 2016 and deposited
into the above mentioned Restricted Cash Account.
Due to the restriction as explained above, the bank
balance had been classified as “restricted cash” and
separately presented in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position. The 2018 Convertible
Notes carries interest at 2 per cent per annum and is
payable quarterly in arrears on 31 March, 30 June,
30 September and 31 December each year. The
conversion right in respect of the 2018 Convertible
Notes may be exercised, at the option of the holder
thereof, at any time on or after the issue date up to
the close of business on the date falling one day prior
to the maturity date (i.e. on the second anniversary of
the closing date i.e. 14 December 2018, which is no
later than five business days after all the conditions
precedent are satisfied), at a conversion price which
is 100% of the volume weighted average price of the
shares traded on the Exchange on the day on which
the Exchange is open for trading and the shares are
freely available for trading immediately preceding the
date on which such holder submits an irrevocable
notice of conversion to the Company, provided that
no conversion right may be exercised at a conversion
price which is lower than the floor price (i.e. minimum
conversion price of HK$0.18 per share (subject to
adjustment)). Unless previously redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled, the Company will redeem
the 2018 Convertible Notes at 94 per cent of its
principal amount on the maturity date.

35. BT aRES (&)

() RITAIRKRES-—-FT—N\

FHRKRERE (&)

R-ZFE-—AR"E+-_HA+tAA"
ARAEARBABRBTASER
100,000,000 7T 2 =& — A\ G A] 2
REZ(MEH T - N\FA#HK
BR) ARANRZZE—RFE+A
-+ 1 B W E AT 15 5 IE 94,000,000/ 7T
WA LTRGBS - AR
EXE RS RITEHRE DS
[RBGHIRE ] IR ANEEBES TG
ARARPEFLS —F— \FAJ#
BREBERFMNE2%:t 8 BAGF
WM=A=+—B -R"A=+H 1A
=tRERtTZA=+—HBERFERH
R —FB—N\FRIBKRERE ]
PR REITAYE ARKEREED
A (AKBEHE_—BEER (B
“E-N\FE+ZA+TIEABE)  MmEK
HEITER A SR G ERE D
E=% 8 2B F)/— B &XERE
BT \FrARBRREZHE AR
RITE MRESEREEFEAAR
ARRERXTAIHE R AR B B
R R BE R PR B B B IR Al B
HEBZHAFZAREMETHEZ
100% » MR AR NG LAMEREE (BD
REBREFBRA20.188 T (7] T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

35. B RES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018
Convertible Notes (Continued)

The Company may declare a committed conversion
period (the “Committed Conversion Period”) by
delivering to the Subscriber a one prior trading day
notice. The Committed Conversion Period is a period
of twenty qualified trading days during which the
Subscriber shall convert all outstanding convertible
bonds currently held by the Subscriber with the date of
issuing the first tranche 2018 Convertible Notes.

The Company may declare up to three non-conversion
periods by delivering to the Subscriber a three prior
trading days’ notice. Each non-conversion period
may last for up to 10 trading days, during which the
Subscriber cannot issue a conversion notice.

The 2018 Convertible Notes contains a debt
component and conversion option derivative and other
derivatives.

The 2018 Convertible Notes had been designated by
the management of the Company at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition and at each reporting
date.

The valuation of the 2018 Convertible Notes was
performed by Greater China. The inputs used in
the model in determining the fair value of the 2018
Convertible Notes were as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES 35. B[R E% (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) BITITBRBRES-——-FT—N

(c) Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018

Convertible Notes (Continued) FUBRRESE (&)
2018 2018
Convertible Convertible
Notes at Notes at

15 December

31 December

2016 2016

R=B—RF

R=F—R%F t=A

+=A+EHAH Ear=1g

Z-EBE-NF ZZE-—N\F

AREEE GIE: Yk

Share price &% (& HK$0.22 HK$0.216
0.2275 7T 0.216/8 7T

Exercise price T E Note 1 Note 1
Fff5EL BiEEL

Contractual life & %) Hf 2 years 1.96 years
2%F 1.96%

Risk-free rate 12 3 f ) 2R 1.5830% 1.7166%
Expected dividend yield TEER AR B 0% 0%
Volatility I 50.51% 50.07%

Note 1:Conversion price is 100% of the volume weighted average price
of the company’s share immediately preceding the conversion
date; but could not lower than the floor price at HK$0.18 per
share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Subscriber of the 2018 Convertible Notes had
exercised the conversion option to convert the
principal amount of HK$1,000,000 in consideration
for conversion of 4,775,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.2095 per
conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Subscriber of the 2018 Convertible Notes had
exercised the conversion option to convert the
principal amount of HK$32,000,000 in consideration
for conversion of 163,580,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at certain conversion prices varying from
HK$0.1884 to HK$0.2121.

Ffetl : AR (B 3R R AR (D R & ##4 H B AT
3B NEFIG(E Z100% B TFER
EEBZRR70.1SET -

RBEE_ZT-—RNF+_A=+—
BLEFE —T-N\FABRER
ZRBACTHEERMESRA
T #21,000,0008 7T A RHKREE
& 5, ¥ f% 150.20957% T # ER AN A ]
4,775,0000% & A% -

REBEZE-_ZT—+tF+_H=+—H
LFE —Z-NFAHRKRERZ
RBABITERRAEERASER
32,000,000/ 7T - A #& 91 F-0.18847%8
TTE0.21218 TTH A TR B EA
/2 8]163,580,0004% & i Ax
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018
Convertible Notes (Continued)

On 26 July 2017, the Company received a Relevant
Event Notice (as defined in the Company's
announcement dated 27 July 2017) from the
Subscriber, being the Subscriber of the 2018
Convertible Notes, to require the Company to early
redeem all the outstanding 2018 Convertible Notes
at 94% of the total amount of such 2018 Convertible
Notes held by the Subscriber together with accrued
interest. On 23 August 2017, the Company had
redeemed the balance of the principal amount of
the 2018 Convertible Notes and interest amounted
approximately of HK$62,980,000, including
outstanding principal and interests approximately of
HK$62,303,000 and HK$677,000, respectively and
the restricted cash approximately of HK$94,000,000
was released.

Issue of convertible bonds — 2019
Convertible Notes

On 10 November 2017, the Company issued
convertible bonds with the aggregate principal amount
of HK$189,000,000 (the “2019 Convertible Notes”).
The 2019 Convertible Notes is denominated in HK$.
The 2019 Convertible Notes carries interest at 10%
per annum and is payable annually. The holder(s) of
the 2019 Convertible Notes may convert the whole or
part of the principal amount of the 2019 Convertible
Notes into ordinary shares of the Company from the
issue date to the date before the maturity date (on the
second anniversary of the issue date, i.e. 11 November
2019), at an initial conversion price of HK$0.07
per share, subject to certain customary anti-dilutive
adjustments. If the 2019 Convertible Notes has not
been converted before the maturity date, they will be
redeemed on maturity date at principal amount plus
the accrued interest. Both the principal and interest will
be settled in RMB based on a fixed exchange rate as
set out in the agreement.
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EE-R_T—tFNA=Z+=8"
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES 35. B AR ES (&)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Issue of convertible bonds — 2019 (d) BITABRESF——-T—Hh
Convertible Notes (Continued) FABMBREE (&)
The 2019 Convertible Notes on initial recognition was - ?—ﬂi—ﬁ*ﬁ%%—‘%}ﬁ?ﬂ FIER A
considered as a compound financial instrument that wAEGBE D KA RREE (285
includes a debt element and a conversion option that HmEn) 2 EEP TR b R
was classified as an equity element. Also, at the initial IR AEISDIRE L FIERN
recognition, the liability component was measured fﬁfﬁﬁ%"%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ o (AR R E 5
at the present value of the redemption amount. 1.:%1%J HTNEV REZ R HER
The equity element is presented in equity heading BEBOINERFNEREEABT
“convertible bonds reserve”. The effective interest rate 25.5578% °

of the liability component is 25.5578% per annum
determined at the initial recognition.

2019
Convertible
Notes at

10 November

2017

R=ZB—tF

+—HAt+HZ

—E-NE

ARRERE

Share price gl HK$0.062

0.062/8 7T

Exercise price 1T1HEE HK$0.070

0.070/%8 7T

Contractual life ABHFH 2 years

2%

Risk-free rate i 7 2= 3.5721%

Expected dividend yield %EHJ%J& B X 0%

Volatility B & 40.88%

No conversation had been made by the holders of 5’3@5_ E—+tFF+HA=+—H1F

the 2019 Convertible Notes during the year ended 31 FE —ZT-NFUBRREEZEFE
December 2017. }\ﬁ%ﬁf’ﬁﬂjﬁﬁ"
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES 35. EN AT IRE S (&)

(CONTINUED)

(e) The movements of the liability, derivative and equity (e) —T—tHFABRERI - —T—+F
component of 2017 Convertible Notes |, 2017 AIHMRER - —F— \ErBRE
Convertible Notes II, 2018 Convertible Notes and 2019 BRZZE-NFOBHRERZEE:
Convertible Notes were as follows: METERERBD 2EFMAT

2018
Convertible
Liability Derivative Notes at Equity
component  components FVTPL component Total
BRAYE
FABREZ
fT£IR ZB-N\F
BEDD By TRREE Enia h

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TR THET THET

At 1 January 2016 R-E—~F—HA—H 238,714 55,018 - 11,343 305,075
Issuance of 2018 Convertible Notes 217 —Z—/\FaRRZ - - 94,000 - 94,000
Conversion of 2018 Convertible Notes i —F— N\ EalAREE - - (586) - (586)
Extension of 2017 Convertible Notes Il fER=Z—+F i
ZEI (14,736) 14,736 - - -
Interest charged (Note 11) BBH S (A1) 37,081 - - - 37,081
Interest paid BERME (18,899) - (460) - (19,359)
Change in fair value NTEED - (55,882) (107) - (55,989)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=1+—-H 242,160 13,872 92,847 11,343 360,222
Issuance of 2019 Convertible Notes 27 =E—NEAHRZE 146,873 - - 42,127 189,000
Conversion of 2018 Convertible Notes ~ #i#E=Z—\EaKkZRE = - (31,111) - (31,111)
Interest charged (Note 11) BRUF S (FraEl) 23,950 = 678 = 24,628
Interest paid BAFE (12,018) - (678) - (12,696)
Transfer of 2017 Convertible IEEE T8
Notes | and 2017 Convertible BREEIR=T—tF
Notes Il upon maturity ARREE (252,000) = - - (252,000)
Redemption of 2017 Convertible JBBEE-—S—tF
Notes | upon maturity BRRZEE S - - (11,343) (11,343)
Early redemption of 2018 REBE-Z-N\EF
Convertible Notes pEalied - = (62,980) - (62,980)
Gain on redemption of 2017 JBBEE-—S—tF
Convertible Notes Il upon maturity REER K = (13,872) = = (13,872)
Gain on early redemption of 2018 REBE-Z-N\EF
Convertible Notes HRRRE 2 W s - - (5,003) - (5,003)
Change in fair value AT EZE) - = 6,247 = 6,247
At 31 December 2017 RZB-+%
+=ZA=t-H 148,965 - - 42,127 191,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES 35. B E S (&)
(CONTINUED)
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Convertible bonds — liability and AMERES-—8ENR
derivative components: METERS:
Analysed for reporting purpose as: REHRENT A
Non-current liabilities ERBEAE 148,965 92,847
Current liabilities mEaE - 256,032
148,965 348,879
36. DEFERRED TAX 36. EEIER IR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RIETIRE E 130 120
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE B & (106,971) (86,071)
(106,841) (85,951)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

36. IEFER IR (&)

TIHRRAFERBEFECHER IR

36. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

EXERE(EE)BBEREERE

prior years:
Fair value
adjustments on
prepaid lease
Withholding payments,
tax on goodwill,
undistributed intangible
earnings of assets and
the PRC investment
Provision subsidiaries properties Total
A
HEME
R mE
HELR BFEER
AAREF REMEZ
B Z BB AFERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT THET TAT
At 1 January 2016 RZFE—-—RFE—H—H - 6,447 108,761 115,208
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 58 B - - (11,877) (11,877)
(Credit) charge to profit and loss R (T A) kR
(Note 12) (K1aE12) (120) 14,850 (32,110) (17,380)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—H (120) 21,297 64,774 85,951
Exchange adjustments PE X R (10) = 18,712 18,702
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) M E& B A &) ( Af7£39) = = 25,457 25,457
Charge (credit) to profit and loss KRB (FGTA)
(Note 12) (KraE12) - 4,199 (27,468) (23,269)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+tF
+=A=+—H (130) 25,496 81,475 106,841

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against its
future taxable profits.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$212,565,000 (2016:
approximately HK$194,419,000) and approximately of
HK$1,581,943,000 (2016: approximately HK$984,632,000)
available for offset against future profits in Hong Kong
and the PRC respectively. The Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profits streams.
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The tax losses arising from the PRC operations expire five

36

years after the relevant accounting year end.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows the details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

Proportion of

Place of incorporation ownership interests and

37.

JEEBIE (&)

h B T B 2 BOE B M S
FEEREAFER-

FERER

BEREAFERESRNIFZEMN
BRAFR

TREFIAEEREA BRI ERERAIE
2EMBARFE:

Total comprehensive

and principal place voting rights held by income allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AMRLGER FERESMEHEEERK FEREZRIEMN
HEAR AR TEEENY RERELH 2EBELE R FERER
31 December | 31 December |31 December | 31 December |31 December | 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
TEtE | 2 REF | ZBtF | ZEF | ZB-tE | ZE1F
+=A +=A +=A +=A +=A +=A
=t+-H =1 =t+-H =1 =t+-H =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET FHT
China Ocean Materials Trading PRC 45% 45% (9,504) (6,521) 51,449 39,953
(Shenzhen) Company Limited H
(collectively referred to as the
“China Ocean Materials Trading”)
and its subsidiaries (“China Ocean
Materials Trading Group”)
FEME ORI ERAA
(GEHEnE]) R
HitEAR ([HanEsE])
Others Hith (375) (241)
51,074 39,712
PBETIEEBRAT F3R 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB MRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

37. FEEpfER ()

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of
the China Ocean Materials Trading Group that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts before intra-

group eliminations.

BRABEERNFEREGENTEYEEHE
ZIREMBERBEHIIMT - TXHME
MHEMBRRIEEEARRRR ZEIHA
kel

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHE T

Current assets mENEE 260,930 153,875
Non-current assets ERBEE 64,518 116,814
Current liabilities mENBE (216,859) (188,740)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (38,974) (21,275)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KAaEA AELER 18,166 20,721
Non-controlling interests FEFE R i = 51,449 39,953
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37. kR ER (&)

(CONTINUED)

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T T

Total revenue HEAl g 778 4

Total expenses 485 (17,049) (12,075)

Loss for the year FREE (16,271) (12,071)

Loss attributable to owners of the Company RABIHER AEGEE (7,244) (6,128)

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEfE R fE = E (L BT 1R (9,027) (5,943)

Loss for the year FRNEE (16,271) (12,071)

Other comprehensive expenses attributable to AR & #E A A FE(L

owners of the Company HEt2mAX (4,204) (164)
Other comprehensive expenses FE P2 AR e 2 A

attributable to non-controlling interests HEib 2w 477) (578)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FAEMEERA (4,681) (742)

Total comprehensive expenses attributable to NN Z DN )

owners of the Company 2HAS B85 (11,448) (6,292)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to FE 12 AR e 2 B4

non-controlling interests THRX A (9,504) (6,521)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FAEHEMASERE (20,952) (12,813)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests A FE 12 e e 2 2 A9 RO RS, - -
Net cash outflow from operating activities EEEES 2B REFRE (4,674) (88,954)
Net cash inflow from investing activities WEHEBEE 2 REMNFRE 27,549 33,631

Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing activities FE&E EFEL 2R S
O H) A EE (31,799) 59,201

Net cash (outflow) inflow /e ORb) RAFHE (8,926) 3,878
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38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE

Acquisition of Success Capture Limited
During the year ended 31 December 2016

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable of approximately HK$317,628,000
which represented the market value of 1,470,500,000
consideration shares on 31 December 2016 as the Directors
are of the opinion that the Company shall allot and issue
1,470,500,000 consideration shares to the vendor of
Success Capture Limited (“Success Capture Vendor”) due
to the fulfillment of profit guarantee for the year ended 31
December 2016 relating to the acquisition of the entire
equity interests of Success Capture Limited. A fair value
loss of approximately HK$1,888,000 had been recognised
in the consolidation statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2016. Details are disclosed in the announcement dated 27
April 2017.
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Yz & Success Capture Limited
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HREERRBEE_ZT—A"F+=A
=+ —HIEFEBBUIESuccess Capture
Limited & &P AR # &9 )% A 4R B 2 E K
KX B fE [ASuccess Capture Limited&
7 (TSuccess Capture® 77 | )@E%’*&?ﬁfﬁ
1,470,500,0008x R E M7 X —F — /N F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

38.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Success Capture Limited
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017

On 27 April 2017, the Company has allotted and issued
1,470,500,000 shares to the Success Capture Vendor. The
fair value of the contingent consideration is remeasured at
the market value on 27 April 2017 and the Group recognised
a gain on settlement of contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$39,704,000 in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as a result
of the decrease in share price of the Company.

38. BN HANKE (&)

Wz & Success Capture
Limited (#&)

BE—FE—tFF+-F=+—HIUIF
E

RZZE—+t&EFWA=-++tHB ARQF
M Success Capture® 7 B 2 K& 17
1,470,500,0008% & fn - M = F —+F /M A
—ttH HAREBAFEEMEENA
B MERRRRE TR AEEBRGEE
m R EAMEEREER AR EE RS SAR
18 ifn #E 58 Uk 25 £939,704,0009%8 7T

HK$'000

AT

At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—XF—HF—H 315,740

Fair value change NEEES) 1,888

At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—ARF+=-A=+—H 317,628

Gain on settlement of contingent BN ANRE 2 W=

consideration payable (39,704)
Issuance of shares for settlement of A BN AREBEITIRD

contingent consideration payable (277,924)

At 31 December 2017 R=B-—tF+=A=+—8H -
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38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Huakai Heavy (as details in
Note 39)

During the year ended 31 December 2017

Since Huakai Heavy has achieved the 2016 Guarantee Profit
(as defined in Note 39) for the First Relevant Period (as
defined in Note 39), the Directors are of the opinion that the
second consideration of RMB54,000,000 shall be paid to
the Vendors of Huakai Heavy in full. And therefore, the fair
values of the contingent consideration payable arising from
the achieving the 2016 Guarantee Profit at 11 April 2017
and 31 December 2017 were approximately HK$61,020,000
(equivalent to RMB54,000,000) and HK$64,800,000
(equivalent to RMB54,000,000) respectively.

And after taking into account the expected shortfall of
profit from the 2017 Guarantee Profit (as defined in
Note 39), the Directors determine the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable for the 2017 Guarantee
Profit to be approximately HK$94,591,000 (equivalent to
RMB&3,709,000) at 11 April 2017, with reference to the
valuation carried out by Greater China, an independent
professional valuer.

At 31 December 2017, since Huakai Heavy has not achieved
the 2017 Guarantee Profit for the Second Relevant Period
(as defined in Note 39), the Directors are of the opinion
that the final consideration of RMB88,127,000 shall be
paid to the Vendors of Huakai Heavy. Therefore, the fair
values of the contingent consideration payable regarding
the final consideration at 11 April 2017 and 31 December
2017 were approximately HK$94,591,000 (equivalent to
RMB83,709,000) and HK$105,752,000 (equivalent to
RMB88,127,000) respectively.

A change in fair value of contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$5,081,000 (equivalent to RMB4,418,000)
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= ==

WEBESET (FIRMHEE39)

BE—_F—+F1+-A=+—HILE
E

HREIEIRE —EEHEHME(EEXR
M3 ER T — A FREEFM (T X
RMi39) EERBEMENETIES
BEZHE 2K EAR%S54,000,000
ToBA RZEFE—tFNHNA+—HEZ
T—tFF+_A=+—HAEEZEK_Z—K
FREZFMELE BENRARNEAFE
2 Bl # /61,020,000 7T (B E R AR
54,000,0007T ) 264,800,000/ 7t (48 & 7
AR #54 000,0007T )

Bk —E2—tFRBEMN (CEERMFE
39)Z%Eﬁ’ﬂmﬂ SR EF2ERUER
MEMEEMEZHEREE R-F—+
FOA+—BAR-_ZF—tFREGDMZ
JE S AR AE A FE#) /94,591,000 7T
(1B E R A K #83,709,0007T ) °

R-ZE—+F+-_A=1+—H BAREI
BT RERFE (AR AR (EXRHEE
VMER—ZE—LFRIRHN EFERAR
ERZENETIEASINERREARE
88,127,0007c ALt - M =ZF—t £ A
+—BR=ZZE—+tF+-A=T—HEH#
HBRREZENIARERALES RO AE
94,591,000 7T (1B E 1 A K #83,709,000
70) }105,752,000% 7T (HHE R AR
88,127,0007T ) °

JEAT S ARAE A FE R E) 495,081,000/ 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Huakai Heavy (as details in

Note 39) (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2017

38. BN HAKE

(%)

WESESE T (FImMMEE39)

BE_—_FT—+tFf+-FA=+—HIUF

(Continued) E (&)
The movement of the contingent consideration payable for HWEENET 2 ENIAREZZE N
acquisition of Huakai Heavy are as follows: T
HK$
BT
Initial recognition at the date of the Acquisition REBBRVEER(BSEER
(included the second and final consideration) =RRE) (FiFE39)
(Note 39) 155,611
Change in fair value of contingent consideration ERAREN R FEEE)
payable 5,081
Exchange adjustments bE 5 S 9,860
Contingent consideration payable at 31 December RZZE—+F+=A=+—H8 ZEf=k
2017 ARE 170,552
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017

On 16 November 2016 and 18 January 2017, China Ocean
Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”), entered
into the sale and purchase agreement and supplemental
agreement (collectively known as the “Sale and Purchase
Agreements”) with Nantong Xinda Shipping Technology
Development Company Limited, Mr. Huo Qi and Mr. Ma
Zhengiang (collectively referred to as the “Vendors”), in
relation to the acquisition of the entire registered capital of
Huakai Heavy (the “Acquisition”) at an initial consideration
of RMB81,000,000, which shall be adjusted upward to a
maximum of RMB270,000,000 if the audited consolidated
net profit after tax of Huakai Heavy and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Huakai Heavy Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (the “First Relevant Period”)
and the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Second
Relevant Period”) shall not be less than RMB15,000,000
(the “2016 Guarantee Profit”) and RMB50,000,000 (the
“2017 Guarantee Profit”), respectively. The maximum
consideration for the Acquisition is RMB270,000,000 (to
be adjusted based on the 2016 Guarantee Profit and 2017
Guarantee Profit), which shall be satisfied by way of cash by
the Purchaser to the Vendors in following manners:

i) initial consideration as to RMB81,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$91,530,000) payable to the
Vendors within 90 days after Completion;

i) second consideration as to a maximum of
RMB54,000,000 (if the 2016 Guarantee Profit for
the First Relevant Period is attained) is payable to the
Vendors within 5 business days upon the 2016 audited
consolidated financial statements of Huakai Heavy is
issued or completion of the registration (whichever is
later); and
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39. WEBF B 2 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE ==

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued)

i) final consideration as to a maximum of
RMB135,000,000 (if the 2017 Guarantee Profit for the
Second Relevant Period is attained) is payable to the
Vendors within 5 business days upon the 2017 audited
consolidated financial statements of Huakai Heavy is
issued or completion of the registration (whichever is
later).

On 11 April 2017, the Acquisition was completed. The
Acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase
method. The Directors considered that Huakai Heavy
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
and the financial performance of Huakai Heavy would be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group after the completion of the Acquisition.

Huakai Heavy is engaged in manufacturing and selling of
steel structures and fittings for ship, marine, equipment,
mining equipment, ro-ro equipment, ship, bridge and
building steel structure in the PRC. The Directors consider
that the Acquisition could diversify the existing business
activities of the Group.

IR B WRMIEE

—EFtA=t+—HALFE

39. WIEM B AR (&)

—tF+=A=+—H

:l:—?

IEFE (&)

i) REAREZRZ AREL35000,0007T
(R —ERMHPMEN _—T—tF
REBHN)REJNET T+ FK
ERGAMBERREMKTRER
(AR & E R 7E) 12582 % B A
TES-

R-FE—tFHA+—BERKRBER
WBEEERABEEA AR -EFRR PRI
BERTKE FIEIXNRAEEZE
BE2EMB AR RENET 2MBEEH
HRAARKBZERAMBRE -

FYHETRFRNERERFEEMAME

BREM FUBRME RBERE RERE
AR BREEENEE -EFERR
WRESHEAIZTCARBZRAELES

Consideration Transferred FrEZENE
HK$'000
FHBIT
Cash Be 91,530
Contingent Consideration Payable (Note 38) FEAT S ARAE (F7E38) 155,611
Total consideration R(E 247,141
DBETEBERAT F# 2017

257



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. WiBK B 2 & (&)

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued) IFE (&)

Fair value of consideration transferred (Continued)

BT +tF+=-A=+—H

R EZ L FE (&)

HK$'000
FHEIT
Acquisition — related costs (included in administrative 4 88 48 B8 A A
expenses in the consolidated statement of (BREREGEEZE R
profit or loss and other comprehensive income) Ht2EW =R ZTHAZ) 3,718

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of the

REER BB EERFMER AR

Acquisition were as follows: R
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) M B E KR (KaEl7) 210,270
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) A& A (1E19) 62,342
Intangible assets (Note 21) mEE (MFE21) 36,276
Inventories FE 97,913
Trade receivables B 5 e IE 25,517
Other receivables and prepayment & WO IE M T8 5 5OE 421,626
Tax recoverable AT Uk [B] 75 18 88
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 14,690
Pledged bank deposit BRI 251
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIRE 194
Trade, bills and other payables B ZERHMEMNKIE (210,809)
Receipts in advances TR IE (9,663)
Bank borrowings RITEHE (205,095)
Other borrowings HEmEE (48,509)
Provision for financial guarantee B TS E R (208,981)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 36) RIERIA R E (M17E36) (25,457)
Net identifiable assets acquired BT U B8 ] 35 Bl & = =B 160,653
Goodwill arising on the Acquisition (Note 20) U B = A 2 B2 (MEE20) 86,488
Fair value of consideration REZAFE 247,141
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Huakai Heavy because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Huakai Heavy
Group. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Huakai Heavy

39. WIEM B AR (&)

WREIETELHE  HANAHRAE
E—SEHRREMSC N EFAHK
BERSRERBRHRMD  KesE R R
RKisRERENETEBZBE T A
SBRZEB BRNZEFNE TN A&
MEFEEMERERE SULZEMNEL

WEHAREXENTE

Wi E S E T Y5 2 7 HiFEE

HK$'000

T T

Cash consideration paid BENIRERE 91,530
Less: Pledged bank deposit B B ERRITER (251)
Bank balances and cash RITINE MR (194)
91,085

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December 2017
is a profit of approximately HK$3,779,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by Huakai Heavy
Group. Revenue for the year ended includes approximately
HK$281,019,000 generated from Huakai Heavy.

BE_T—+F+_A=+—HIEFEZ
5187 493,779,000/ 7T 2 i F TR S 5
ETREZHMBEG -BEZALFEL
Wz /R 49281,019,0008 T Ty EE 4 B S B
To

BRAT FH 2017
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39.

40.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Had the Acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, total group revenue for the year would have been
approximately HK$369,350,000 and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$653,706,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the “pro-forma” loss of the Group had Huakai
Heavy been acquired at the beginning of the current year, the
Directors have calculated depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, amortisation of intangible assets, prepaid lease
payments and deferred tax liabilities acquired on the basis of
the fair value arising in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than carrying amount recognised in the
pre-acquisition financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE

USEFUL LIVES

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets
of intelligent car parking and automotive device
business

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of goodwill
and intangible assets (net of accumulated impairment
losses) relating to the Group’s intelligent car parking and
automotive device business segment were approximately
HK$133,594,000 and HK$146,856,000 respectively (2016:
HK$123,574,000 and HK$205,840,000 respectively).
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ANEE 2 F NI 458 15 A 47369,350,000
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EERAER W m RIS EEBENEE
I E AR IR FEETER -
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40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets
of intelligent car parking and automotive device
business (Continued)

The goodwill with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
with definite useful lives has been allocated to one individual
cash generating unit (“CGU”) for the acquisition of Success
Capture Limited and its subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors
conducted a review of the Group’s goodwill and intangible
assets and appointed an independent professional valuer,
Greater China (2016: BMI Appraisals), to assist them to
determine the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate of 24.07% (2016: 20.55%). The cash flows
beyond the b5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%). This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of intelligent car parking and automotive device business to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of intelligent car
parking and automotive device business.

40. ERERAERAFHHER

ERERAEHFH2EBTE
EZRERH (&)

ERFERTEEFREBHEEREL
BELBER (&)

[ U % Success Capture Limited 5 £ M B 2~
AIMEENEERAIMGEAFHNEERA
BRAERFHNEREEN S EEEE—
MERIRESELEN ([(REEEEBAM]) -

RBE_ZE—tF+_A=1+—HILFE"
EFCEHASERERELEE UL
B X AEREE (ZZ2—RXF : F M
HE) B EEE RS-

BENANESERBEEREERIAE
MEE - Zt EERANRSRETEATE
REEEHERELFHNMBEEE

24.07% ( —ZZF — /X : 20.55% ) #9 &R 3t Bl
FREFE -BBAFHNRESREG AR
FEHI3% (ZF—RF:3% ) BREHH -
SR KRR TGERARRTTREIE R LI &
BHAEBTENFORIPERR - KA
Rt BEEREENEIERRSINERERE
HEREMORSIRA M H - &
AAERBEUAEERBELREEEH TS
HRNEH - EEERREMTZERRE
EREEAEEH I EEHEERFERNA
BEEFRGNAKREEBEETKONE
TR
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40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 40. EEERuAFAEHsHER

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets
of intelligent car parking and automotive device
business (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment test on the license which
had been allocated to the CGU of the intelligent car parking
and automotive device business segment, the recoverable
amounts were evaluated by an independent professional
valuer, Greater China (2016: BMI Appraisals), by using the
Multi-period excess earnings method applied to the license,
covering a detailed 5-year budget plan plus an extrapolated
cash flow projections, provided by the management, by
applying a long term growth rate subsequent to this 5-year
plan, with an after-tax discount rate of 21.7% (2016:
19.54%).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the intelligent
car parking and automotive device business segment was
downturn due to the Group's failure to realise the expected
objective of adjustment of sales strategies of car-parking
equipment affected by limitations of local policies on car
park construction and insufficient working capital of the
Group, the Group recognised an impairment loss of goodwill
and intangible assets relating to the Group’s intelligent
car parking and automotive device business segment of
approximately HK$Nil and HK$16,925,000 respectively
(2016: HK$64,483,000 and HK$NIl respectively).

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ERERAUERAEH 2 ETE
B2 RERR (E)

EEFERNMEEFRABHERE
BELBERZ (F)

HEPREBEFEERTEEFESLD
E’ﬁﬂ@%iﬁma’aﬁ‘m’qmﬁﬁuaﬁﬁa d
AER SR RB L BEMGEMESE (=
T RNF RANHBER)ERERARANZ
HERRE RN A (TR - BE B IEFFAAS
FRENEIRHEEERERBNZSFT
%\Jféﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁEﬁﬁi‘ﬁiﬁﬁﬂfé,ﬂa&ﬁ%zlj%

—T—NF:1954% ) BHEMEER SR
?E/E\Ih

REBEE-_Z—+F+A=1+—HLFE"
BEFERAEETEBIBEAEER
B EESEENBER RAEEE
BEAST RN EACERFERBHER
BAENBAEEMRBELX XEFH
ARERAEESEEFEERRBETFES
DENEERENEERIREBENT
7570 116,925,000/ 70 (= —7~F : 5 7
64,483,000/ T R Z B IT) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets
of steel structure engineering and installation

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of goodwill
and intangible assets (net of accumulated impairment
losses) relating to the Group's steel structure engineering and
installation segment were approximately HK$48,551,000 and
HK$36,554,000 respectively (2016: Nil and Nil respectively).

The goodwill with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
with definite useful lives has been allocated to one individual
cash generating unit (CGU) for the acquisition of Huakai
Heavy Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors
conducted a review of the Group’s goodwill and intangible
assets and appointed an independent professional valuer,
Greater China, to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate of 21.57%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of steel structure
engineering and installation to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of steel structure engineering and
installation.

40. A ERUEAFH 2 HER

ARERAEHFHZRER
EZRENS (#)

ﬁ@nn%;’_gﬁﬂ'%ﬁﬁﬁ
o 1E R

FEEH

R-B—tF+-_A=1t—8 AKHIH#
REIRMZEDHNHERELEE
(MR BEBR NREED NS
48,551,000/ 7T £ 36,554,000 7T (=&
—NEFDRENE) -

R o B T S B i & 4 /) B &R A 2
RERNEERABRAERFHOET
BEDOREE-—MERNREESM (R
TELAEM)-

REE_ZT—tFt+-_A=1+—HLFE"
ESCERNASEREREREE Y&
EBUEXBEMZEEHHREEE AL
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FENANOSENREEREBEZAE
MEE - ZatBEERANRERERATE
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21.57 %M R B ATHT IR K5 & ttﬂiﬁﬂ
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ERBUNBERRAREREH TSR
WEAE - B IR B R A EMZFREHEMA
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40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 40. EEERuAFAEHsHER

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible

assets of steel structure engineering and installation
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of intangible assets has been
determined on the basis of its fair value. Relief-from-royalty
method was applied in the valuation of the intangible assets.
In applying the method, an estimate of a reasonable royalty
rate was made assuming that the intangible assets was
licensed at a fair rate as a result of arm’s length negotiations.
Royalty rate of 4.5% was adopted in the valuation of
intangible assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the steel
structure engineering and installation segment was downturn
due to the difficulties facing the shipbuilding industry, the
business of ship equipment and ocean engineering related
equipment experienced a contraction in sales volume,
which fell short of expectation and adversely affected
the performance of the steel structure engineering and
installation segment, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of goodwill and intangible assets relating to the Group’s
steel structure engineering and installation segment of
approximately HK$40,771,000 and HK$Nil respectively.
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41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. EEIEHF
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were REERR RAEERTHEREET
pledged for the Group’s banking facilities and borrowings: BIR 2 EEWNT:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Bank deposits (Note 28) R1T71F R (KfaE28) 248 =
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) VI - BB R (MaEl7) 327,912 148,835
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) FENEEZRE (FF19) 221,799 129,870
Inventories (Note 24) FE (Kfat24) 8,904 -
558,863 278,705

As at 31 December 2017, the Company pledged the RZE—+tF+=ZHA=+—H8B &K
entire equity interests of Jiangxi Shipbuilding to secure RAIBEHEBIAEM 22 R E:
a bank borrowing of HK$128,897,000 (equivalent to ERIRITE E128,897,0005 & (M &
RMB107,414,000) (2016: HK$119,897,000 (equivalent to R AR®107,414,000L) (=& — X
RMB108,015,000) (Note 32). % :119,897,0008 ¢ (HHER AR

108,015,0007T ) ) Z HH# (H17E32) °
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 27
May 2002 (the “Scheme 2002"). Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 June 2012, the Scheme 2002 was
expired and those options under the Scheme 2002 shall
remain exercisable pursuant to the rules of the Scheme
2002, and a new share option scheme (the “Scheme 2012”")
was adopted.

The purpose of the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2012 is to
recognise and motivate the contribution of any employee,
adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client and supplier
and/or such other person who in the sole discretion of the
board of Directors, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group and to provide incentives and help the Company in
retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic
interest in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Company.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$1 per person. Options may be exercised at
any time during the exercise period. The subscription price
of the option shall be determined by the Directors but in any
case shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Exchange on the date of grant which must be a trading day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share.
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42. BRI ESTE
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017, the number of outstanding share
options under the Scheme 2012 and Scheme 2002 were
876,000,000 (2016: 876,000,000) and 46,449,780 (2016:
46,449,780) respectively, representing 6.76% (2016:
7.69%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

Scheme 2002

The following table discloses details of the options held by
Directors, employees and other persons and movements in
such holdings during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016:

42. B st &l ()

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H ZF—=
FHER—TST_FFEI THRITEZE
B & B 9 Bl £876,000,00015 (= ZF—7<
4F : 876,000,00015 ) %46,449,78013 (=&
— N :146,449,7801n) AR EEHE
BTN 26.76% ( —ZF— N5 7.69% ) °

—EE-FH
TREBEBEHE_Z—+tFRZZ—RF
+=AS+—RILFE EF EAREM
A5 B BB 2 B4 DA B
289

Number of

share options
outstanding at

31 December 2017

Exercise price and
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 31 December 2016
R-ZE—tHF
+=A=+-AR
—2—RF
+=HA=+—H
=E & A AI4T fE 53 B BRITEE HATEBREHRE
(Note a)
(Kizta)
Directors 5 March 2008 5 March 2008 to
= —EENFE 4 March 2018
= HAH — T NF=ARAB=E HK$5.693
—ET-N\FE=AWMA 5.693/8 7T 2,529,600
5 March 2009 to
4 March 2018
—EENF=HAARBE HK$5.693
—ET-N\F=HAWNA 5.69378 7T 1,897,200
5 March 2010 to
4 March 2018
—E-TF=-ARAZE HK$5.693
—E-N\F=HAWNA 5.6938 7T 1,897,200
6,324,000
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

Scheme 2002 (Continued)

42. IR st & ()

2T F5E (E)

Number of

share options
outstanding at

31 December 2017

Exercise price and
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 31 December 2016
R=Z—tHF
+=ZRA=+—HRK
—B-XxE
+t=A=+—H
=L BB A 47 fE A B BRITEE HATEBREREB
(Note a)
(Ktita)
Directors 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to
E= —ZEENF 6 May 2018
hA+EH —EENFRALRZE HK$4.523
—E-N\FRARHA 4.5237% 7T 1,644,240
7 May 2009 to
6 May 2018
—ETENFRALRE HK$4.523
—ZE-N\FAHAKAH 4.5237% 7T 1,233,180
7 May 2010 to
6 May 2018
—E-ETFHALRZE HK$4.523
—E-N\FRANH 45238 7T 1,233,180
4,110,600
10,434,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 42. BIRRETH &l (&)
(CONTINUED)
Scheme 2002 (Continued) —EE_FFE (E)
Number of
share options
outstanding at
31 December 2017
Exercise price and
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 31 December 2016
R-ZZE—tHF
+-A=+—-HE
—EB-RF
+=ZBA=+—H
=L ®H A A 4T fE 53 BRITEE HATEBRERE
(Note a)
(Ktata)
Employees 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to
=] —EENF 6 May 2018
TALEH —EENFHEALERE HK$4.523
—E-N\FRAKRAH 45238 7T 935,952
7 May 2009 to
6 May 2018
—ETAFHAALAE HK$4.523
—E—-\FhHARAH 45238 7T 701,964
7 May 2010 to
6 May 2018
—E-TFRALRAE HK$4.523
—E-\FRHARA 45237 7T 701,964
2,339,880
Consultants 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to
(Note b) —EE)NF 6 May 2018
B (ffatb) A A+EH T N\FRALR=E HK$4.523 33,675,300
—E-N\FHRAAH 4.5237% 7T 33,675,300
46,449,780
Exercisable at
the end of the year
RERAIITHE 46,449,780
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

- =
42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 42. EERETTE (&)
. e s -

Scheme 2002 (Continued) —EF_FFE (&)

Notes: Mo -

a. The initial exercise prices of the share options granted on 5 March a. RZZFEZENF=ZARAR-_FTZENFRA L
2008 and 7 May 2008 are HK$0.18 and HK$0.143 respectively. HiZhZ BREZ M2 T1EE 5 5 R0.18E T
Upon the share consolidation became effective on 25 June 2009 and RO.I43BTL - FER D EHR=ZFZENFNA
the open offer and the related bonus element became effective on 7 Z1+AAEM AR AFEERIBEAFIEHSR
September 2010, the exercise prices of share options were adjusted to T FFNALALEME BREZTEER
HK$5.693 and HK$4.523 accordingly. 5 Bl FE & 3 B =5.6933% 7T )2 4.5238 T ©

b. The consultants provided consultancy service with regard to the b. BT L M B % 4R & INPAXEE B 42 (1 B8 2 R 75

acquisition and operation of INPAX Group.

The weighted average remaining contractual life and —ERFFEIE TN ZRARITHEERED
weighted average exercise price of the outstanding share kB G L F B R InkE 9T E
options under Scheme 2002 is approximately 0.3 years DRKBOIF(ZZE—RF:13F) KT
(2016: 1.3 years) and HK$4.682 (2016: HK$4.682) per f% B 19 4.68278 7T ( =& — /)N F : 4.6827%8
share respectively. JL) °
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(CONTINUED)
Scheme 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

IR FEEMIRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE
42. B REST 8 (4])
“E 558

Number of share options
BREZE

Outstanding at
Exercise 31 December
OQutstanding at ~ during the year 2016 and
Subscription 1 January ended 31 31 December
Name Date of grant Exercisable period price per share 2016  December 2016 2017
R-B-RE
+=8
: =t-AR
RZB-1F RBE-Z-KF —E-tf
. -B-B +=A=t-B +=A=t-H
#3 RHAH TiTESE SRABE WRTE  LEERTE o K 176
Directors 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 to HK$0.211
6 May 2024 o 120,000,000 (40,000,000) 80,000,000
Bz “F-NERAtHE —Z-NERRLAZE 0211737
ZZZEERARA
4 November 2015 4 November 2015 to HK$0.28
3 November 2018 o 270,000,000 - 270,000,000
“Z-RFT-AMB ZE-RFt-AMHE 02857
—Z-\E+—A=H
390,000,000 (40,000,000) 350,000,000
Employees 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 to HK$0.211
6 May 2024 o 50,000,000 - 50,000,000
EE “ZT-MERALA —Z-NERALAZE 02113
“Z-MERARA
4 November 2015 4 November 2015 to HK$0.28
3 November 2018 L 280,000,000 - 280,000,000
ZE-nE+-AMA ZE-RET-AEEZE 02857t
—Z-\E+-A=H
330,000,000 - 330,000,000
Consultants (Note a) 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 to HK$0.211
. 6 May 2024 o 196,000,000 - 196,000,000
R/ (fiita) “T-NERALA —E-RERALAZE 02117%7T
ZZ-NERAAA
916,000,000 (40,000,000) 876,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 916,000,000 876,000,000
RERFLTHR
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.252 Note b
EFATRE 0.250% 7T M b
Weighted average remaining
contractual life 5 years Note b
METAFIRENFH 56 HizE b
Note: et -
a. The consultants provided consultancy service with regard to the a. BRI GEARS [B  m & - A K R IR R AR
financing, restructuring and development of the Group. e
b. The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding b. FAELL - (8 R TIEBE R BRI INHE T 1985 T & AV 4F
at the end of the year was 2.9 years (2016: 3.9 years). The weighted B B2.9F (ZF— N :3.99F) o R (4K

average exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year
was HK$0.254 (2016: HK$0.254)

TT1E R AR K& 49 JIAE P 19771 (B /30.254)8 7T (=
T—NF:0254%8T) °

PBETEBBERAT F3 2017

271



272

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

42.

43.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: 40,000,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group and in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% or HK$1,500 since
June 2014 in maximum of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which is matched by employees.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of PRC. The retirement scheme contributions,
which are based on a certain percentage of the basic salaries
of the relevant subsidiary’'s employees, are charged to the
profit or loss in the period to which they relate and represent
the amount of contributions payable by the subsidiary to the
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme operated by the government
of PRC is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or loss
represents contributions paid and payable to the scheme by
the Group at rate specified in the rules of the scheme.
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B EBEREETRE(ZZ—XR"F+=A
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g3 SR

AEBRBEAMAREREERL AR
HEAEEREE ([BEEFE])  -2ES
Bl BERAKBECEEDRRA  BiE
FEANESAER - KEEMBEDF S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

44. LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has not paid the
social security fund for and on behalf of its employees
which expose the Group to the risk of being imposed
the penalty by the relevant government authority.
The social security fund accrued up to 31 December
2017 of approximately HK$49,002,000 (equivalent
to RMB40,835,000) in aggregate, were recorded
as “Trade and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position (2016: HK$40,206,000
(equivalent to RMB36,221,000)).

A repayment agreement was signed between Jiangxi
Shipbuilding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the relevant government authority
on 26 January 2015 in respect of the settlement of
the unpaid social security fund. Per the agreement,
all outstanding amounts should be repaid before
December 2019. The Directors considered that if the
Group could settle the unpaid social security fund
according to the repayment agreement, no penalty
would be imposed by the relevant government
authority.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has not paid the
housing provident fund contributions for and on
behalf of its employees which expose the Group to
the risk of being imposed the penalty by the relevant
government authority. The housing provident fund
contributions accrued up to 31 December 2017
of approximately HK$8,724,000 (equivalent to
RMB?7,270,000) in aggregate, were recorded as “Trade
and other payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position (2016: HK$5,483,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,940,000)).

The Directors are of the opinion that the possibility to
the risk of being imposed the penalty by the relevant
government authority is remote.

44.

(a)

(b)

HFARRIAEE

RZB—+F+-_A=+—H K&
B AARREREEBHMATRE
& FARSERZWAEBEBATEPE
NERZRBR HE-T—tF+=
A=+—BZEFHRESE XL
£49,002,0008 7T (H & W A R
40,835,0007t ) * BEFELRA MR TR
FU B REMBERAFIE] AR (=
= — XN 1 40,206,000 7T (#HE R
AR #36,221,0007T) ) °

ARFZ2EWB AR AEM R
BTSN E—RE— A=+
BREMKBTRESEITERD
HEoBEBBE MARNESEANRS
T-NF+ZARER -EERAM
AEERBERBBENRELRE
% AR S I T~ InE & o

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H &&E
EuRARREEEEHSNEREAE
B R (AN &R B A 45 4R B U 3D
FIRASI Rz B -BE T — L5
T A=+ —BZEFEEAESMH
KA FAI8,724,000/ T (HHERAR
#7,270,0007T) * BEEARE B SRR
WMEAE 5 R EAMERNFKIE] AR
—F— N4 :5,483,000%8 7T (HB=E
R A R4 940,0007T) ) °

&5 R/ H AR R B B0 P9 Ba LA BT K
B 2 AT BETE BB o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

The Company had recognised the provision in relation
to the litigations of approximately RMB14,971,000
(2016: RMB13,812,000) under “Trade and other
payables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017. The management
are of the opinion that it is not probable that these
claims would result in an out flow of economic benefits
exceeding the provisions made by the Group. Details
are set out as follows:

(i) In August 2017, an insurance company filed
its writ to Wuhan Marine Court against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding for the failure to make payment of
shipbuilding insurance premium. At the end of
the reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB1,241,000 in aggregate.

(i)  In June 2016, a contractor filed its writ to
Jiangxi Province Nanchang County People’s
Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failure
to make payment of contracting services. At
the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was judged and the outstanding payable of the
principal payment and the relevant interests
accrued of approximately RMB313,000 in
aggregate.
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RZZ—tFN\A " —BRRA
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SR RIMEHR - ZFAC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c) (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

In August 2016, a supplier filed its writ to Gaoyou
City People’s Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding
for the failure to make payment of the sale of
cable. At the end of the reporting period, the
litigation was judged and the outstanding payable
of the principal payment and the relevant
interests accrued of approximately RMB392,000
in aggregate.

In September 2015, a contractor filed its
writ to Wuhan Marine Court against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding for the failure to make payment of
provided vessel decoration services. At the end
of the reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB4,636,000 in aggregate.

In November 2015, a supplier filed its writ to
Jiujiang Arbitration Commission against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding for the failure to make payment
of provided gas services. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB3,525,000 in aggregate.

In November 2015, a contractor filed its writ to
Shanghai Jinshan District People’s Court against
Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failure to make
payment of provided vessel decoration services.
At the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was judged and the outstanding payable of the
principal payment and the relevant interests
accrued of approximately RMB763,000 in
aggregate.

44.

() (#8)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

FaRkIAEE (F)

R-ZF—R"ENR —2HER
AmEBHARARE DS T
PO M LR ST SHE B IA
SR - R E IR ZFFAE
e ARAEEZBRNASN
AR FIEE KB A
R #392,0007T

R-Z—RFNA —BOEH
FEE S E AR O EITA
M LR S B R B IR X
TR SR o ¥R E BK - %A A
BEER BRAERZENAS
NREBBEAMEARROR
A K #4,636,0007T ©

R-F—AF+—A —aHE
ERATHEHZE SRS
T 78 3 i A 2R S4B SR AR 755 3K
SR - R E IR ZFFAE
e ARAEEZRNASN
AR FIEEEHNBA
R #3,525,0007T

R-ZF—AF+—A —208
EREEmEUEARERE
& 3T 78 & 3R S B
FRERBHRBNSH]R - NS
R ZHFReERE BRAEER
Z A AN & 51 K A8 B8 FE AT A
BA*#H R AR¥763,0007T
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RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(Continued)
(vii) In December 2014, a contractor filed its writ to
Wuhan Marine Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding
for the failure to make payment of provided
vessel decoration services. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB4,101,000 in aggregate.

On 3 December 2015, Merge and other shareholders
of Zhejiang Ocean as counter guarantors (collectively
referred to the “Counter Guarantor”) entered into the
counter guarantee agreement with Zhoushan Marine
Comprehensive Development and Investment Co., Ltd
(M8 F4RE AR EFRAT]) (the “Guarantor”),
pursuant to which the Counter Guarantors shall, in
proportion to their respective shareholding in Zhejiang
Ocean and upon demand of the Guarantor, indemnify
the Guarantor for all liabilities and expenses which may
be incurred by the Guarantor under any guarantee
given or to be given by the Guarantor in favour of
Zhejiang Ocean during the period from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2020 in respect of loan agreements
and asset securitization agreements entered into by
Zhejiang Ocean (the “Guarantee”), up to an aggregate
amount of RMB900,000,000, together with any
interests, penalty, compensation and related fees and
expenses which may be payable by the Guarantor
under the Guarantee. Accordingly, the maximum
amount which Merge shall indemnify the Guarantor
is 20% of the aforesaid aggregate amount, being
RMB180,000,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE ==

44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24
February 2017 (the “VSA Circular”), the financial
guarantee of approximately HK$217,800,000 represent
the back-to-back corporate guarantees provided
by Huakai Heavy (which became the Company’s
subsidiary on 11 April 2017 upon completion of
the Acquisition of Huakai Heavy Group) in favour of
Huatai Heavy Industry Limited in 2014 (the “Corporate
Guarantee”) which remained outstanding as at 31
December 2017. The relevant information including
the details of the relevant guarantee agreements are
disclosed in the VSA Circular. Due to the failure of
two ship owners to fulfill its payment obligation under
the relevant shipbuilding contracts, Huatai Heavy
Industry Limited had cancelled the relevant export and
import cooperation agreements with the vessel agency
companies. Pursuant to the terms of the export and
import co-operation agreements and the civil mediation
agreements, Huatai Heavy Industry Limited was liable
to refund the prepaid amount received from the vessel
agency companies (the “Prepaid Amounts”).

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregated outstanding
balances of the Prepaid Amounts are RMB76,446,000.

The Vendors of Huakai Heavy undertake to use the
consideration payable to indemnify Huakai Heavy
for all losses and liabilities incurred by Huakai Heavy
under the Corporate Guarantee.

Other than disclosed above, the Directors are of the opinion

that the Group has no other material contingent liabilities at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

44.

(e)

IR B WRMIEE

—tEFt-A=t+—HALFE

FaRkIAEE (F)

BMARRBHA-_ZT—+tFE_A
ZtBzEE([EEERKED
EK ) BT B 28 0 B 7% £ 17217,800,000
%ﬁ%ﬁﬂél(ﬁ#%&%%%ﬂ
BETEEER _ZT—tHFWA+—
EW%$AEWE A)R=ZT—N
FUERSTARARBZHAED
MEHEQRER(TARERD -
ZBEFRN-_Z—tFt+t=_A=1+—
BhARET -BEER (BIEHE
ERGHFB) BBERETERNNKE
A o HN B MR ARBEBITEHR
EREMAYNET ZNREME EX
ETHRRAFREEHEMMRIERR]
FITHREBEL DA EHS B
EOEERERRERARE G
ERETERAREFTERERMM
REABKBRZEBNSE (B
gl) -

RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H" &
NE&ENHREEABREAARE
76,446,0007T °

EYBETEN AKERNAER
BEIEIRERER 7%%%%2
FrAERKRAE

BREXFERBEEIN EERBNEENR
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RS B IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

45. PROVISION FOR FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2017, Huakai Heavy provided several
corporate guarantees in favour of Huatai Heavy Industry
Limited in relation to the outstanding payments to five
independent third parties, of approximately HK$217,843,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB181,536,000) (Note
25(c)).

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following significant
transactions and balances with related parties during the
year as follows:

(@) Amounts due to related parties

45, B IEREE

R_ZE—tF+=—A=1+—H FEJETMN
ERETARAAAX T ARREEMNK
MR EBILE =5 Rt #9217,843,0007 7T
(FRERL A RE181,536,0007T ) Hy#E T8
A EHER (FiEE25(c) ) °

46. EABA LR Z
BRIMRAMBRERMBIFMBEE A

SERNFRRAREBAL CERR S RE
FRInN

(@) ENEBEBALRE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Mr. Wang San Long (“Mr. Wang”) (Note i) E=fedc4E ([FEHR4E])
(KraEi)
— consideration payable for the — FRURBE )T < 088 T A
acquisition of Jiujiang Jinhu and ZREREFES
accrued salaries 508 -
Mr. Wu Ge (“Mr. Wu") (Note ii) REEA ([REE])
(Kt aii)
— advanced loan —BER - 25
— consideration payable for the — FhURBE )T 088 T A
acquisition of Jiujiang Jinhu and ZREREFES
accrued salaries 303 400
811 425
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BB A LR S (&
(CONTINUED)
(b) Amounts due to directors (b) ENESEFIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T T
Mr. Li (Note iii) 5 (fatii) 455 1,046
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong (“Mr. Zhang”) (Note iv) sk TR 5 4 ([5R%E£E])
(Ktaziv) 9,579 5
Mr. Wang (Note i) TR (Hiati)
— consideration payable for the — BLUEE T & 4 T FE AT
acquisition of Jiujiang Jinhu and ZREREFES
accrued salaries - 470
10,034 1,521
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Amounts due to directors (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Mr. Wang was resigned as an executive director of the
Company and becomes a senior management of the Group on
21 November 2017. The amount is unsecured, interest— free
and repayable on demand.

Mr. Wang had provided a personal guarantee in favour of the
Group to guarantee a facility to RMB 158,015,000 granted by
banks in the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Mr. Wu is the senior management of the Group. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Mr. Li, is the executive director of the Company, the amount is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Mr. Li has provided a personal guarantee in favor of the
Group to guarantee a facility of RMB701,300,000 (2016:
RMB525,000,000) granted by banks in the PRC during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Mr. Li also had provided a personal guarantee to secure the
payment obligations of the borrowings of RMB200,000,000
(2016: RMB200,000,000) from one of the shareholders of the
Group'’s associate, Zhejiang Ocean during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Mr. Zhang is the executive director of the Company, the amount
is unsecured, interest at 12% per annum (2016: Nil) and
repayable on demand.

Mr. Zhang has provided a personal guarantee in favour of
the Group to guarantee a facility of RMB430,000,000 (2016:
RMB430,000,000) granted by banks in the PRC during the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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46. BERABEA LR 5 (&)

(b) ENESNE (&)

i

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ELER _F—tF+—A_+—H#
EARR A ZHTTEFIL K B EE =R
EHEEK S - ZARRERR RERER
REREE -

REBEE—F—tHF 1T _A=+—HILF
B EALEBUREBRZ s AR
ABRAERFE 2 RITRMLZHBEN
R #158,015,0007T °

REERAEBSREEEKE %K
BERIEEAR B8 RRLBELEE

FPHEERARRBIZHITEE ZHER
B 2B RARESNEE

REZ—F—tF+=-A=+—HIF
B FhEEUAREE AT AREE
AR IERF B2 iRITHRHZ @ EA
R #701,300,0007C (= F —~NF: AR
#525,000,0007T ) °

REZ=—F—tF+=-A=+—HIF
B FAREDRIEREE—SEATL (BE
EEBE QAL AR —BRE)
& A B #200,000,0005T (= ZF— X
£ : A & #200,000,0007T ) 2 & F12 £t
A FELR -

KRELERARRARIZHITEF XN A DAE
A REFKI2%TE (ZF—NF:
) R AR BESAEE

REZE—F—+FF+_A=+—HIF
B REECURNEEF BT ALEEE
AERAIERAF E 2 SRITIR 2 BAA
R #430,000,0007C (= E—XNF: AR
#430,000,0005T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+_A=+—HIFE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

46. BERABEA LR 5 (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) The key management of the Group comprises (c) XEEZTEEEBOELBESEN
all Directors and chief executives, detail of their FETHAR  EEMFBEEREGSE
remuneration are disclosed in Note 14 to the SRR EI4NEE - EEREE
consolidated financial statements. The remuneration TBRABZFHMBEEFMEESKS
of Directors and chief executives recommended by EMGBEmEZ-
the remuneration committee and with reference to the
market trends.

(d) During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 d) R8—ZT—+&#+-_A=+—80K
December 2016, the Group entered into the following —E-REFF+_A=+—HLFE"
transactions with several associates. AEBHEEFTHERRGTANUNTR

%0
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Rental income B A 99 -
Interest expenses MERZ 4,628 3,343
Service income PR 75 M 2= 1,901 213
(e) The Directors are of the view that the terms of (e) E=RRLUMBMEALRS 2GR

the above related party transactions are fair and
reasonable, based on normal commercial terms where
no charge over the assets of the Group is created in
respect of the above transactions.

BRFEERIE - RERGET
HApfiEp LR S HARE 2 EE

BAVALEVE

PEEITEE

BRAT F#H 2017
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

47. AP E 2 MR R R R #E

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FExT T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - BB Mkt 1,416 =
Investments in subsidiaries R BRRZRE - 433,770
Restricted cash ZRFIRE - 94,000
1,416 527,770
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H {th fE 5k I8 23,441 =
Loan to a subsidiary REF—RHBARIZER (b 60,000 95,258
Investments held for trading BHIEEB 2RE 54 2,177
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 303 300
83,798 97,735
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables H b A< 5018 133,632 30,612
Amount due to subsidiaries RN 466 =
Amount due to a director JEN—ZE=EEHIA (a) 400 1,000
Contingent consideration payable JERSRARE - 317,628
Convertible bonds payables FER AT R B - 256,032
134,498 605,272
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE(BEFHE)
(LIABILITIES) (50,700) (507,537)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERABAEE
LIABILITIES (49,284) 20,233

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

47. AP a2 MR R R R

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (%&)
(CONTINUED)
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KtaE FE T FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Financial guarantee B ISR 701,043 672,460
Convertible bonds payables FEf AT AR B 148,965 92,847
850,008 765,307
NET LIABILITIES EERHE (899,292) (745,074)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BB R
Share capital TN 681,842 600,138
Reserves {1 (c) (1,581,134) (1,345,212)
(899,292) (745,074)

The Company's statement of financial position was approved

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2018 and consigned on its behalf by:

LI Ming
Z= 8
Director

EF

ExecR T N\F=ZA-TNLBEAEB
NERBETZEARRRMBARE X h T
EERRBRERE:

ZHANG Shi Hong

[t~
Director

Ex

PEETE@EBRAT F3k 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

47. AP a2 MR R R R wHE

=t
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (%)
Notes: BifaE -
(a)  Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and repayable on (a) B —BEFBREIELMF £ERALZENKE
demand. =e
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, a loan of approximately b) REE=ZF—tF+=A=+—HIFE &
HK$108,434,000 (principal of HK$60,000,000 and accumulated 2 A [7] )T 78 & 44 1% 1 B 54 49108,434,00078 &
interest of HK$48,434,000) (2016: HK$95,258,000 (principal of (7 £60,000,000/% T & £ &t Fl 548,434,000
HK$60,000,000 and accumulated interest of HK$35,258,000)) L) (ZZFE— /N :95,258,000% 7T (K
was granted to Jiangxi Shipbuilding by the Company, in which, is 260,000,000/ 7t K& & 5t 7 £.35,258,000&
unsecured, interest bearing at 7.5% per annum and repayable within JL) ) X B RER IR EFI K7 5%5 B R
one year. AR —FREE -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, impairment loss of REZE-—F—tF+=-A=+—HIFE Bt
approximately HK$48,434,000 (2016: HK$Nil) have been recognised 1R T it 2 B HERR 5 (B fE5 18 4948,434,000
in respect of the loan to Jiangxi Shipbuilding. B (ZFE—NF:FHx) -
(c)  Movements in the Company’s reserves (c) ARAIF#HZEZE
Share Convertible
Share Contributed option bonds  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TREEH
R EE BABH  BRERE 1 RitER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FAL TAT FHT FHT FAT
(Note 35)
(Hi3#35)
At 1 January 2016 R=E—"E—fA—-H 1,630,063 3,368,411 135,050 11,343 (5,521,013) (376,146)
Loss for the year, representing total rEEHE
comprehensive expenses for the year  (EVER2ER % E%) - - - - (975,853) (975,853)
Issuance of shares upon exercise of share /T BRI
options 11,580 - (5,140) - - 6,440
Issuance of shares upon conversion of R IR AR EHEEITRA
convertible bonds 347 - - - - 347
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A"E+-A=1+—A 1,641,990 3,368,411 129,910 11,343 (6,496,366) (1,345,212)
Loss for the year, representing total rEEEE
comprehensive expenses (ERZERTEE)
for the year - - - - (505,380) (505,380)
Issuance of shares for settlement of FIRDIVEEERZARE
contingent consideration payable 204,399 - - - - 204,399
Redemption of equity component of R R AT AR R 2
convertible bonds upon maturity Baidsn - - - (11,343) 11,343 =
Recognition of equity component of BRIARES 2 ExdH
convertible bonds - - - 42,127 - 42127
Issuance of shares upon conversion of R IR AR EHEEITRH
convertible bonds 22932 - - - - 22932
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t&+=-A=1+-H 1,869,321 3,368,411 129,910 42,127 (6,990,903) (1,581,134)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KA T 2 M B A B8
THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RBEHR BARBEELEEEZEEDN
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below: (SEPNEIES S UNNE
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ERARL/
HWEARER BEXBLY BARA/HRER KRAfEHERERER 2B ARAFERER LA TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
“EB-tf it SS —B-tf BN
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# k3 H# 53 i i B 563
% % % % % % % %
INPAX Technology Limited British Virgin Islands* 50,000 ordinary 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
SRREE” shares of USD1 each RERR
50000 B REEIET
ZEBR
Merge Limited Hong Kong 300,000,000 ordinary 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Trading and investment
FEARAH B shares of HK$1 each holding
300,000,000 B REE BHREEER
1 LRk
China Ocean Shipbuilding British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited RRRIES USDI1 each RERR
PENMIERERAR 1REREEIETL
China Ocean Natural Gas British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited LERTES USD1 each RERR
IREREAEIETL
EER
China Ocean Shipbuilding Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Senvices Limited i HK$1 each EEZK
RENRARBERAR 1kBREEIETL

PEETEE

BIRAT F3H 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRB M B A BFF1E (&)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RBEEHR BARAERERAZRFEH
B RBFBEWT : (&)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
FMARL/
KWEARER BEXHBA BiRE/ERER ARAFERERRERER 2L KAAMBRER2ILA TERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF N3 “B-tF —IRE
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B k4 B% ik B 3 B#% 3
% % % % % % % %
China Ocean Shipbuilding Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited B HK$1 each and sale agent for
PENH (B%) BRAR IREREEIBTZ shipbuilding
LAk REBRRERHEERRE
China Ocean (LNG) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
FERARARAR B HKS$1 each EREH
1RERAEIETL
Lak
Jiangyi Shipbuilding PRC** USD59,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing metal
Pt R registered capital vessel, vessel ancillary
59,000,000 72 products and reparation
EGEMmER of vessels
HESRIH HHEE
ERAREEHH
Jiwdiang Jinhu Equipment PRC* RMB30,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Metal structure
Manufacturing Company Limited I registered capital and component
NIEHEBRERRAR AR 30,000,000 manufacturing
BAGIMAR SREBREMNEE
China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) PRC* RMB300,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Provision of financial
Financial Leasing Company Limited ~ & ** registered capital leasing, acquisition and
FEET (R REREARAR AR#300,000,0007C sale and lease back
EGMmER of fixed assets and
advisory services, and
business factoring in the
PRC
RPERERARE K
BHRHERBOERE
BERERRE MR
FHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

48. AR F 2B A RS (&)

RBEHR BARREERAZRRFER
MEBARFENT: (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
HRRL/
hWEARER BeEpuy BARA/ERER ARAFERERERER 2L KRARBRER2ILA TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF —E-RE “E-tF N3
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B [GE B 53 B k4 B# 5673
% % % % % % % %
Jiangxi Jincao New Energy PRC RMB3,000,000,000 - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100 Development of new
Development Company Limited i paid-up registered energy technology and
IR RERERAR capital energy conservation
AR 3,000,000,0007C facilities
B MAR BRI RRITRE R
Brilliant Plus Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
SRREE USDI each RERR
1REREEIETL
LaEk
Power On Investment Limited British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
REROES USD! each RERR
IREREEIETZ
LER
China Ocean Prosperity Logistics Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Import and export
Limited B HK$1 each electronic devices
PEEGARAR 1REREEETL EfREELD
LaEk
China Ocean Materials Trading PRC** RMB65,000,000 paid-up - 55 - 55 - 75 - 75 Manufacturing and sales
(Shenzhen) Company Limited el registered capital and (Note c) (Note ¢) of intelligent car parking
(Note c) RMB35,000,000 unpaid (Histc) (Hic) inthe PRC
TE0E R BRAR (Hatc) registered capital RPEIREREERHE
AR 65,000,007 Bk
EHGRERR
AR 3500000070
AAERER

PEBEISEEBRAT F3 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRB M B A BFF1E (&)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RBEHR AL EEMEEREN
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below: B ARGEEMT : (&)
(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
AL/
KWEARER BEXHBA BiRE/ERER ARAFERERRERER 2L RRAFFERERZLAH TERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF N3 “B-tF It Y3
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
i 3 B% 5573 B 3 B#% 3
% % % % % % % %
Power On Heavy Lift 1071 Limited ~ Marshall Islands * 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 = 100 Investment holding
SRREE USD1 each RELER
IBSRERIER,
LAk
Power On Heavy Lift 1072 Limited Marshall Islands * 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
SRmNE* USDI each RERR
1RERAEEIETL
LAk
Success Capture Limited British Virgin Islands * 10,000 ordinary - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EBRTES shares of USDI each RERR
10000k EREEIXT
ZEFER
Shandong Ruitong (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Parking Management Services &k shares of HK$1 each RERR
Company Limited 10,000R B8R EELET
W3R (B4 PEERRBEARAA a3l
Shenzhen China Ocean Saige PRC RMB50,000,000 - 55.25 - 55.25 - 55.25 - 5525 Investment and
Intelligent Parking Development i RMB58,823,500 management of
Company Limited (Note €) intelligent car parking in
(“Shenzhen Saige”) (Note e) AR #50,000,00070 the PRC
MR EERESRERRERAT AR 588235007 REBREREREE
(TRSIER]) (Fizte) (Mfite) gi5
Liaochen Dereton Industrial PRC** USD3,500,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Development Co. Ltd g registered captal REER
BHERBEXERERAR 3,500,000%7
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

48. AR F 2B A RS (&)

RBEHR BARREERAZRRFER
MEBARFENT: (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
EMARL/
hWEARER BEXBBH BARA/ERER ARAFERERERER 2L KRARBRER2ILA TERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
Zg-tf “Fi% Zg-tf e
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Ei 5t E% ik i 3 B#% ik
% % % % % % % %
Shandong Dereton Automotive PRC** RMB30,000,000 paid-up - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100 Designing, manufacturing
Parking Equipment Co. Ltd R registered capital and and installation of
LRGBEERERRAR RMB20,000,000 unpaid intelligent automotive
registered capital parking equipment in
AR 30,000,000 the PRC
EaEMERR KBRS R Tk
AR 20,000,007 BRAERERE
AAERER
Shenzhen Shanling Automotive PRC RMB,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Operating of “Internet of
Electronic Technology Co. Ltd p registered capital Vehicles “and designing
RMTERTEEFRHHARAR AR #5,0000007 and manufacturing of
EaGHREA electronic automotive
devices in the PRC
REBEHEERBEER
FTRREEETR
8
Jiangxi Anlianshang Parking PRC RMB5,000,000 paid-up - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60 Investment and
Management Service Co. Ltd i registered capital and management of car
IR HEEREEEERAR RMB5,000,000 unpaid parks
registered capital REREERES
AR 5,000,000
EaEMERR
AR 5,000,000
AAERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRB M B A BFF1E (&)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RBEEHR BARAERERAZRFEH
B RBFBEWT : (&)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
FMARL/
KWEARER BEXHBA BiRE/ERER ARAFERERRERER 2L KAAMBRER2ILA TERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF N3 “B-tF —IRE
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B 3 B# 5573 B 54 B#% 3
% % % % % % % %
Shandong Anlianshang Parking PRC RMB1,000,000 paid-up - 60 = 60 - 60 - 60 Investment and
Industry Co. Ltd 1 registered capital management of car
WRRBHEEEZERAR AR#1,0000007 parks
ERGMEAR REREREES
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing PRC RMB100,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Consulting and advisory
No.1 (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd 1 registered capital services
ARE100,0007T FHARERRE
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing PRC RMB100,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Consulting and advisory
No.2 (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd 1, registered capital services
AR 10000070 FHAREHRE
China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) PRC** RMB100,000,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited i registered capital RERR
PEET (R ERAR ARH100,000,00070
Jiangxi China Ocean Industry PRC RMB100,000,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Company Limited 1, registered capital TEEK
IEREEIERAR AR#100,000,00070
ABEHER

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRB M B A S (&)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RBEHR BARREERAZRRFER
MEBARFENT: (&)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
EMARL/
hWEARER BEXBBH BARA/ERER ARAFERERERER 2L KRARBRER2ILA TERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF —E-RE “B-tF N3
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Ei 5t E% ik i 3 B#% ik
% % % % % % % %
Xian China Ocean Huafu Parking PRC RMB50,000,000 unpaid - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100 Investment and
Management Company Limited i registered capital management of
BRPEEEREERERAA AR 50,000,007 intelligent car parking in
ABEMER the PRC
RPERERERERE
B2
Shenzhen Qianhai Yuandongi PRC RMB34,500,000 unpaid - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69  Inactive
Communication Technology HE registered capital TEEL
Company Limited AR 34,500,007
RMITAE LD NBERTERAT AeERER
Shenzhen Yuandongli Technology PRC RMB500,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Invention of software and
Company Limited i registered capital information technology
AT AMEER AT AR E500,0007T services, selling
E4amER software
RERAREAMRR
B HEas
Nantong Huakai Heavy Industry PRC RMB150,000,000 paid-up - 100 - - - 100 - - Manufacture and sales
Company Limited (Note ) e registered capital of steel structures and
HREIETERAR (HiFb) AR #150,000,0007 fitings for ship, marine
ESaMmER equipment, mining
equipment
HEREENARERER
Rft-migRG KB
Nantong Fangzheng Ocean PRC RMB25,000,000 paid-up - 100 - - - 100 - - Manufacture and sales of
Engineering Technology Company & registered capital steel structure
Limited (Note b) AB#25,000,0007C HERMERLE
HEAEEF TRARERAR EaamER
(Kizto)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

48. AT 2B A RS (&)

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

RBEEHR BARAERERAZRFEH
B RBFBEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
FMARL/
KWEARER BEXHBA BiRE/ERER ARAFERERRERER 2L KAAMBRER2ILA TEEH
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF N3 “B-tF —IRE
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B k4 B# ik B 3 B#% 3
% % % % % % % %
Nantong Huakai Ship Painting PRC RMB5,000,000 paid-up - 100 = = - 100 = - Provision of pretreatment
Company Limited (Note ) 1, registered capital and painting services of
HAENMZEERAR (M) AR 5,000,000 steel plate
ERGMEAR REARERERERR
%
Nantong Huakai Software PRC RMB10,000,000 unpaid - 100 - - - 100 - ~Inactive
Technology Company Limited 1, registered capital TEEE
(Note a) AR 10,000,000
HREIEHRRERERAR AEMER
(Kizta)
Ruichang Jinhai Shipping Company ~ PRC RMB2,000,000 paid-up - 100 - - - 100 - - Inactive
Limited (“Ruichang Jinhai") (Note @) registered captal TEEE
mEneBEhERAR AR#2,0000007T
(RE£8]) (Ad) ERGMAR
China Ocean Intelligent Equipment PRC** RMB100,000,000 unpaid - 100 - - - 100 - - Inactive
Technology Industrial Park s registered capital FEEK
(Shenzhen) Company Limited AR %100,000,00070
(Note ) AAHEMER
PERRARBNRERE
(RINERAR (Hizta)
HuNan China Ocean Saige Intelligent ~ PRC RMB25,500,000 unpaid - 51 - - - 51 - - Inactive
Parking Company Limited (Notea) registered capital IEEK
AR EERERREERERAR AR 825,500,000
(Hiita) AEMER
Shandong Ruitong Intelligent Parking ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 unpaid - 100 - - - 100 - - Operating and
Construction and Operation Company HEl registered capital management of
Limited (Note a) AR #50,000,0007 intelligent car parking in
WRHEERFERRERER AR AEAR the PRC
(Hiita) REBEERERELE
g5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR B WIRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

ok

Notes:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

The companies are engaged in investment holding and have no
specific principal place of operation.

The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

Jinjiang Jinhu is controlled by the Company through contracted
agreements.

It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2017.
It was a newly acquired during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group is able to exercise control over China Ocean Materials
Trading because it appointed three out of four directors of China Ocean
Materials Trading.

Ruichang Jinhai was incorporated on 15 April 2005, in which
the Group acquired 100% of their issued registered capital at a
consideration of HK$960,000 (equivalent to RMB800,000) on 15
June 2017. Ruichang Jinhai was inactive at the date of acquisition
and hence the Directors considered that the considerations paid were
approximately to their fair value at the acquisition date.

The non-controlling interest has injected HK$21,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB17,500,000) Shenzhen Saige as registered capital during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at 31

December 2017 and 2016 or at any time during both years.

49. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(i)

Repayment of trade receivables by
investment properties

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
revenue of approximately HK$7,660,000 (2016:
HK$16,386,000) was recognised by the intelligent
car parking and automotive device business which
represented the fair value of 13 (2016: 12) properties
located in Shandong Province and Shanxi Province at
the settlement date in exchange for the intelligent car
parking structure. The properties were recorded as
investment properties as disclosed in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=—Z—+tF+=-A=+—HILtFE

VERFRERZ (&)

49. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Repayment of trade receivables by
property, plant and equipment

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$132,126,000 was recognised by the steel
structure engineering and installation business which
represented the fair value of property, plant and
equipment of a former related company used to settle
the amount due from this former related company to
the Group (Note 17).

Settlement of borrowing through disposal
of an associate

In January 2017, Merge, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has disposed of its 25% equity interest
in Qiandao Financial Leasing to an independent
third party at a consideration of approximately
HK$29,118,000. The consideration was settled by
offsetting the other borrowing from that independent
third party to the Group (Note 22).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE ==

50. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

(a)

On 1 June 2016, the non-controlling shareholders
acquired 20% paid-up registered capital in China
Ocean Materials Trading with the cash consideration of
HK$11,100,000 (RMB10,000,000), the Group’s equity
interests in China Ocean Materials Trading was diluted
from 100% to 80%.
consideration received and the carrying value of net

The difference between the cash

assets deemed disposed of in an equity transaction
with non-controlling interest resulted from the change
in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control over the subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$457,000 was
recognised in equity as other reserve and an increase
of approximately HK$10,643,000 was recognised in
the non-controlling interests.

On 13 December 2016, the non-controlling interests
shareholders further acquired 25% paid-up registered
capital in China Ocean Materials Trading with the cash
consideration of HK$38,849,000 (RMB35,000,000),
the Group's equity interests in China Ocean Materials
Trading was further diluted from 80% to 55%. The
different between the cash consideration received
and the carrying value of net assets deemed disposed
of in an equity transaction with non-controlling
interest resulted from the change in the Group’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control over the subsidiary amounting to
approximately HK$4,706,000 was recognised in equity
as other reserve and an increase of approximately
HK$34,143,000 was recognised in the non-controlling
interests.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 51. 2 &
PERIOD

There is no significant event after the reporting period.

£

EHRMRABEANFIR-

52. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 52. EARHEIE
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —TE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
Contracted for but not provided in BRI AVBERRERE BTG ER TR AT
the consolidated financial statement: R
Unpaid registered capital for the associates Bt &N A 2 REVEM B A 103,260 128,787
Unpaid registered capital for the subsidiaries B ARz REBUEMME AR 636,240 419,802
Unpaid registered capital for a joint venture —HeEEZ
AEOEMME R 120,000 116,239
Capital expenditure in respect of BB  HE &
the acquisition of property, B2 EARTH
plant and equipment 29,498 78,977
888,998 743,805
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

53. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 53.mEETEMELEBHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

TRAMHARAEERETHMELAE
including both cash and 22F BIERS MRS BEETH
FELABEERASERABESRERNA
PEARMERDMEEZRERELARK

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities,
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will

be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash BemsEzafE
flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Finance
costs
payable
Convertible  Contingent (included
Bank Other bonds consideration in other
borrowing borrowing payables payable payable) Total
BRI
B
AT Bt (GEAEf
ROBE HifEE WRRES  SARE  EERE) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FAT FHT FAT FHT
(Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 35) (Note 38)
(H#32) (Hz#32)  (Hiz#35) (Hiz#38)
At 1 January 2017 —Z—+E—f—A 992,857 1,095,339 348,879 317,628 1,652 2,756,355
Changes from cash flows: Henmegs:
— Borrowing raised -BEBRHE 105,590 47581 - - - 153,171
— Repayment of borrowing —EERRE (102,019) (124,230) - - - (226,249)
- Interest paid -BERFE (45,113) (16,040) (12,696) = (9,771) (83,620)
— Net proceeds from issuance of ~ RN TRREFNMERETE
convertible bonds payables - - 189,000 - - 189,000
— Early redemption convertible bonds - REBEERATRRES
payables - - (62,980) - - (62,980)
Settlement of convertible bonds payables R EBREE R AR ES
upon maturity - - (155,000) - - (155,000)
Non-cash changes EHEET
— Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) —WeEEHIB A Al (A7£39) 205,095 48509 - 155,611 - 409,215
— Finance costs recognised (Note 11) ~BHERBERA (f£11) 57,241 78,109 24,628 - 13513 173,491
— Issuance of shares for settlement of — BRI INEEER
contingent consideration payable SARE - - - (277,924) - (277,924)
— Change In fair value -ATEED - - - 5,081 - 5,081
— Gain on early redemption of convertible —RAIEE R AR
bonds payables R fE% 2 - - (5,003) - - (5,003)
— Gain on settlement of contingent ~RERNIARE 2N
consideration payable - - - (39,704) - (39,704)
— Change in fair value of convertible —ERTRRES 2
bonds payables ATEEE - - 6,247 - - 6,247
— Equity component of convertible —ERTARES 2 Ex D
bonds payables - - (42,127) - - (42,127)
— Transfer of convertible bonds payables — A E R R T 7]
upon maturity BRES - - (97,000) - - (97,000)
— Conversion of convertible bonds payables — —EHAER AR ES - - (31,111) - - (31,111)
— Gain on redemption of convertible bonds ~ — 2| HARE 1 & [ AT HA AR E % 2
payables upon maturity Hﬁlﬁé - - (13,872) - - (13,872)
~ Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exggye 59,930 111,331 - 9,860 134 181,255
At 31 December 2017 “Z—+F+-A=1-H 1,273,581 1,240,599 148,965 170,552 5,528 2,839,225

BBERAT F3k 2017 297



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiZ =T —+tF+ A=+ —HIFE

54. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 54. K&EHEAE
The Group as lessor EEEEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RMEBR NEBEE EHBP T2 ARK
with tenants for the following future minimum lease HEBEERNREAT
payments:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Within one year —F R 2,176 96
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EFERF
(BHEEEMF) 4,352 =
6,528 96
The Group as lessee EEBEREAEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R ERR NEBRBE T HSELE A
commitments for future minimum lease payments payable WMAER TSN 2 R REERER
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as SRR
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHEIT
Within one year —FR 10,246 4,378
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EFERF
(BIEEERMF) 13,712 697
23,958 5,075
Operating lease payments represent rental payables by the REMENFTEASEREETHRAEY
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated EEMNcHE BHLEAMBESZENR2
and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from 2 years to 3 EIEMFH(ZF—AF26F)FlE-

years (2016: 2 years).
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RS FEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE —ZE—+F+ - A=+—RHIEE

55. DIVIDEND 55. K&
No dividends were paid or proposed for ordinary KRBt FUWERNIERRERE T
shareholders of the Company during 2017, nor has any AR EBRARE B WS A RBINE
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period ERRBEMRE(ZZTE—XRF &)
(2016: Nil).
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Financial Summary

HEE
Year ended 31 December
BZt+t-A=t—-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Z2-tHF | ZT—RF T-RF _—T-OF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T FHET T T
RESULTS 4
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AFEREE (620,952) (359,226) (500,813) (633,177) (337,440)
At 31 December
Rt+t=-—A=t+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—tF | Z2—XRF ZT—RF ZT—NFE T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHT FHT FTAT THT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZERERE
TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 3,455,754 2,679,607 2,321,824 1,859,744 1,653,894
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELHE (4,351,884) | (3,284,359) (2,708,596)  (2,638,022)  (2,691,096)
NET LIABILITIES BEFHE (896,130) (604,752) (386,772) (778,278)  (1,037,202)
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